TOWN OF HOWEY-IN-THE-HILLS CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS CENTRAL AVENUE ALLEY WASTEWATER PROJECT

TOWN OF HOWEY-IN-THE-HILLS CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS CENTRAL AVENUE ALLEY WASTEWATER PROJECT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 1	General Provisions
Section 2	Measurement and Payment
Section 3	
Section 4	
Section 5	Temporary and Permanent Erosion and Sedimentation Control
Section 6	Utility Excavation, Trenching, and Backfilling
Section 7	Grassing and Sodding
Section 8	Surface Restoration
Section 9	
Section 10	Horizontal Directional Drilling
Section 11	Pipe, Fittings, Valves, and Appurtenances
Section 12	
Section 13	
Section 14	Wastewater Gravity Sewer System
Section 15	Wastewater Service Connections
Section 16	Wastewater Force Main System
Section 17	Wastewater Lift Stations
Section 18	
Section 19	
Section 20	
Section 21	
Section 22	
Section 23	
Section 24	
Section 25	
Section 26	

SECTION 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. Purpose: The Town of Howey-in-the-Hills (Town) Construction Specification Manual (CSM) establishes the minimum standards, construction specifications, submittal requirements, and approval or acceptance procedures for potable water, wastewater, reclaimed water, and stormwater systems. The Town CSM is not intended to address every situation that may arise. The application of engineering/surveying principles, construction techniques, and best practices, combined with information contained in this CSM are necessary to complete projects and protect the safety, health, and welfare of the public and the Town. The approval of Construction Specifications, Construction Drawings, and submittals shall not relieve the Engineer or Developer from required compliance with the provisions of this CSM.
- B. Jurisdiction: This CSM shall apply to:
 - 1. All privately constructed development projects containing potable water, wastewater, reclaimed water, and/or stormwater systems that will be dedicated to the Town for ownership, operation, and maintenance.
 - 2. All privately constructed development projects subject to the jurisdiction of the Land Development Regulations that proposed to contain potable water, wastewater, reclaimed water, and/or stormwater.
 - 3. All Town potable water, wastewater, reclaimed water, and stormwater capital improvement project, including all rehabilitation and replacement projects.
- C. All potable water, wastewater, and reclaimed water system components must be flood proofed against the 100-year flood occurrence and against inflow and infiltration.
- D. Intent and Scope of Town CSM and Drawings: It is the intent of the Town CSM and the Construction Specifications (Specifications) and Construction Drawings (Drawings) that one shall supplement the other, but not necessarily replace one another. Any work called for in one and omitted in the other shall be executed as if called for in both in order that the work be fully-completed according to the design as determined by the Design Engineer (Engineer) and approved by the Town's Project Manager. Should any discrepancy appear between the Town CSM and the Specifications and Drawings, the Town CSM, shall govern. The

Contractor shall provide all items of labor and materials necessary for the satisfactory completion of the project in accordance with the Town CSM, Construction Specifications, and Construction Drawings. Any provisions contained in the Town CSM, Construction Specifications, or shown on the Construction Drawings which are not applicable to the work pertaining to the Project shall be disregarded. All testing shall be accomplished in accordance with the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills CSM Specifications and Drawings and only at the discretion of the Town shall any portion of the testing be waived.

- E. The Contractor shall check all dimensions, elevations, quantities and instructions shown on the Construction Drawings or given in the Specifications and shall notify the Engineer of Record should any discrepancy of any kind be found in the Drawings, Specifications or conditions at the site. If any discrepancy, error, or omission is discovered by the Contractor or others, they should notify the Engineer of Record, Town, and Town's Representative. The Engineer of Record, with the Town's and/or Town's Representative approval, will issue full instructions pertaining thereto to resolve any discrepancy, error or omission and the Contractor shall carry out these instructions.
- F. The Town CSM and Construction Specifications are divided into Sections for convenience of reference. The materials, work, etc., mentioned or specified in one part are not intended to be limited to that part only, but shall be applied with equal force to any other part or division of work where such materials, work, equipment, etc., are mentioned or required to properly provide acceptable work according to the true intent of the drawings and specifications. Reference to standard specifications (ASTM, AWWA, ANSI, etc.), national codes, and local or state codes, laws, and ordinances shall mean the latest edition of said document in effect at the project approval or bidding unless specifically stated otherwise.
- G. Construction Drawings shall be followed in construction of the work and all dimensions and elevations shown on the Drawings shall be accurately maintained. The Contractor shall field verify all measurements and elevations. Scaled measurements will not be allowed and no work shall be performed when dimensions or elevations are not indicated until such dimensions or elevations are obtained from the Engineer.
- H. Time Period of Approved Construction Specifications and Drawings: Construction Specifications and Drawings shall be valid for construction for a period of 1 year from the date of Town approval only. All items not under construction within 1 year of the approval date shall require a new approval before the commencement of construction.
- I. Utility Coordination: It shall be the Developer's and/or Engineer's responsibility to coordinate all utilities within the development.

- J. Town Standards and Specifications: Copies of the Town CSM may be obtained from the Utility Department or online at the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills website.
- K. Definitions and Terminology: Wherever used in the Town CSM and printed with initial capital letters, the terms listed below will have the meaning indicated which are applicable to both the singular and plural thereof. In addition to terms specifically defined, terms with initial capital letters in the Town CSM include references to identified articles and paragraphs, and the titles of other documents or forms.

Definitions:

- 1. Application for Payment The form acceptable to Engineer which is to be used by Contractor during the course of the Work in requesting progress or final payments and which is to be accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the Contract Documents.
- 2. As-Built Survey Field measurements of vertical and horizontal dimensions of constructed improvements certified by a Surveyor, licensed in the State of Florida, so that the constructed facilities can be delineated in such a way that the location of the construction may be compared with the approve Construction Drawings.
- 3. *Boundary and Topographical Survey* Boundary and topographical survey, map, and report certified by a Surveyor licensed in the State of Florida that meet the requirements of Chapter 61G17-6 'Minimum Standards', FAC.
- 4. Change Order A document recommended by the Engineer that is signed by the Contractor and Owner and authorizes an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work or an adjustment in the Contract Price or the Contract Times, issued on or after the Effective Date of the Agreement.
- 5. Construction Drawings (Drawings) That part of the Contract Documents prepared or approved by the Engineer that graphically shows the scope, extent, and character of the Work to be performed by Contractor. Shop Drawings and other Contractor submittals are not Drawings as so defined.
- 6. *Construction Specifications*(*Specifications*) That part of the Contract Documents consisting of written requirements for materials, equipment, systems, standards, and workmanship as applied to the Work, and certain administrative requirements and procedural matters applicable thereto.

- 7. *Town* The Town of Howey-in-the-Hills, Florida, the entity for whom the work is being performed.
- 8. *Contract* The entire and integrated written agreement between the Owner and Contractor concerning the Work. The Contract supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, whether written or oral.
- 9. Contract Documents Those items so designated in the Agreement. Only printed or hard copies of the items listed in the Agreement are Contract Documents. Approved Shop Drawings, other Contractor submittals, and the reports and drawings of subsurface and physical conditions are not Contract Documents.
- 10. *Contract Price* The moneys payable by the Town to the Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents as stated in the Agreement.
- 11. *Contract Times* The number of days or the dates stated in the Agreement to:
 - a. Achieve Milestones, if any.
 - b. Achieve Final Completion.
 - c. Complete the Work so that it is ready for final payment as evidenced by Engineer's written recommendation of final payment.
- 12. *Contractor* The individual or entity with whom the Town or the Developer has entered into the Agreement.
- 13. *Design Engineer* The Florida-registered Professional Engineer responsible for preparation of Construction Drawings, Specifications, and permits.
- 14. Engineer of Record The Florida-registered Professional Engineer responsible for Construction Administration and Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) Notification of Completion of Construction.
- 15. Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations Any and all applicable laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes, and orders of any and all governmental bodies, agencies, authorities, and courts having jurisdiction.
- 16. *Notice of Award* The written notice by the Town to the Successful Bidder stating that upon timely compliance by the Successful Bidder with

- the conditions precedent listed therein, the Town will sign and deliver the Agreement.
- 17. *Project* The total construction of which the Work to be performed under the Contract Documents may be the whole or a part.
- 18. *Samples* Physical examples of materials, equipment, or workmanship that are representative of some portion of the Work and which establish the standards by which such portion of the Work will be judged.
- 19. Shop Drawings All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, and other data or information that are specifically prepared or assembled by or for the Contractor and submitted by the Contractor to illustrate some portion of the Work.
- 20. Site Lands or areas indicated in the Construction Drawings and Construction Specifications where the Work is to be performed, including rights-of-way and easements for access thereto, and such other lands designated for the use of the Contractor.
- 21. Standard Details Drawing details that are contained in this CSM (Appendix B) related to potable water, wastewater, reclaimed water, and stormwater.
- 22. Subcontractor An individual or entity having a direct contract with Contractor or with any other Subcontractor for the performance of a part of the Work at the Site.
- 23. Supplier A manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, materialman, or vendor having a direct contract with the Contractor or with any Subcontractor to furnish materials or equipment to be incorporated in the Work by the Contractor or Subcontractor.
- 24. *Underground Facilities* All underground pipelines, conduits, ducts, cables, wires, manholes, vaults, tanks, tunnels, or other such facilities or attachments, and any encasements containing such facilities, including those that convey electricity, gases, steam, liquid petroleum products, telephone or other communications, cable television, water, wastewater, storm water, other liquids or chemicals, or traffic or other control systems.
- 25. *Unit Price Work* Work to be paid for based on unit prices.
- 26. *Work* The entire construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof required to be provided under the Contract Documents. Work

includes and is the result of performing or providing all labor, services, and documentation necessary to produce such construction, and furnishing, installing, and incorporating all materials and equipment into such construction, all as required by the Contract Documents.

Terminology: When the following words or phrases are used in Town CSM, They shall have the indicated meaning.

- 1. Intent of Certain Terms or Adjectives: The CSM includes the terms "as allowed," "as approved," "as ordered," "as directed" or terms of like "effect" or "import" to authorize an exercise of professional judgment by the Town, Developer, or Engineer. The adjectives "reasonable," "suitable," "acceptable," "proper," "satisfactory," are used to describe an action or determination of the Town, Developer, or Engineer as to the Work. It is intended that such exercise of professional judgment, action or determination will be solely to evaluate, the work for compliance with the information in the Town CSM, Specifications and Drawings and the overall design concept and intent of the Project as a functioning whole (unless there is a specific statement indicating otherwise). The use of any such term or adjective is not intended to assign to the Town, Developer, or Engineer any duty or authority to supervise or direct the performance of the Work, or any duty or authority to undertake responsibility contrary to provisions of the Specifications, Drawings, and/or Town CSM.
- 2. *Day*: The word "day" means a calendar day of 24 hours measured from midnight to the next midnight.
- 3. *Defective*: The word "defective," when modifying the word "Work," refers to Work that is unsatisfactory, faulty, or deficient in that it:
 - a. Does not conform to the Contract Documents or Town CSM.
 - b. Does not meet the requirements of any applicable inspection, reference standard, test, or approval referred to in the Contract Documents.
 - c. Has been damaged before the Engineer's recommendation of final payment.
- 4. Furnish, Install, Perform, Provide:
 - a. The word "furnish," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment, shall mean to supply and deliver said services, materials, or equipment to the Site (or some other specified location) ready for use or installation and in usable or operable condition.

- b. The word "install," when used in connection with services, materials, or equipment shall mean to put into use or place in final position said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.
- c. The words "perform" or "provide," when used in connection with services, materials or equipment, shall mean to furnish and install said services, materials, or equipment complete and ready for intended use.
- d. When "furnish," "install," "perform," or "provide" is not used in connection with services, materials, or equipment in a context clearly requiring an obligation of the Contractor, "provide" is implied.
- 5. Unless stated otherwise in the Town CSM and Construction Specifications and Drawings, words or phrases that have a well-known technical, construction industry, or trade meaning are used in accordance with such recognized meaning.

1.02 PRE-DESIGN CONFERENCE

- A. Pre-design conference between the Developer, the Engineer and the Town shall be required to be held prior to submittal of utility system plans (Maps, Construction Specifications, and Construction Drawings).
 - 1. A complete set of conceptual drawings and/or maps indicating the proposed utility system should be provided for the meeting (one hard copy and one electronic copy on CD/DVD in a potable digital file (*.pdf) format capable of being printed as 11"x17" page size).
 - 2. For phased projects, a conceptual master utility plan/map of the entire project shall be provided that shows the proposed phase lines, utility main sizes, pump station locations, roadways, utility easements (onsite and offsite), right-of-ways, and lot lines.

1.03 SUBSTITUTIONS

A. Manufacturers and model numbers that the Contractor would like to use as a substitution the ones listed in Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer's List will be reviewed and approved by the Town on a case-by-case basis.

1.04 SUBMITTAL PROCESS

- A. The following is the general process for submitting utility system plans (Maps, Drawings, Specifications, etc.), permit applications, and supporting information for a typical development project to the Town for review, approval, and acceptance of the utility system for ownership, operation, and maintenance. A "Submittal Checklist Form" is provided at the end of this Section for the Engineer and Developer use.
- B. It shall be the responsibility of the Engineer, Developer, and/or Contractor to obtain and comply with all applicable federal, state, and local regulatory permits.
- C. The submittal package shall contain the following items:
 - 1. A completed Construction Drawing set (one full size 22"x34" hard copy and one electronic copy in potable digital file (*.pdf) on a CD/DVD capable of being printed as 11"x17" page size), including the project Construction Drawings (cover sheets, general sheets, site plans, profiles, sections, details, etc.) of the project and utility system, signed, dated, and sealed by a Florida-registered Professional Engineer and in accordance with Part 1.04, Project Documents and Submittals, of this Section.
 - 2. If applicable, one hard copy (22"x34") and one electronic copy in potable digital file (*.pdf) on a CD/DVD (capable of being printed as 11"x17" page size) of the Draft Final Plat showing the approved utility easements, rights-of-way, street names, lot numbers, etc.
 - 3. One hard copy and one electronic copy in potable digital file (*.pdf) format on CD/DVD of a Master Plan for water, wastewater, reclaimed water, and/or stormwater prepared and submitted in accordance with Part 1.04, Project Documents and Submittals, of this Section.
 - 4. FDEP Wastewater Construction Permit Applications. Submission shall be delayed until the Town notifies the Engineer or Developer that the Submittal Package has been reviewed and approved by the Town. Submit one electronic copy in potable digital file (*.pdf) format on CD/DVD.
 - 5. FDEP Public Water System Construction Permit Applications. Submission shall be delayed until the Town notifies the Engineer or Developer that the Submittal Package has been reviewed and approved by the Town. Submit one electronic copy in potable digital file (*.pdf) format on CD/DVD.
 - 6. FDEP Stormwater Permit Applications. Submission shall be delayed until the Town notifies the Engineer or Developer that the Submittal Package

- has been reviewed and approved by the Town. Submit one electronic copy in potable digital file (*.pdf) format on CD/DVD.
- 7. St. Johns River Water Management District (SJRWMD) Environmental Resource Permit Applications. Submission shall be delayed until the Town notifies the Engineer or Developer that the Submittal Package has been reviewed and approved by the Town. Submit one electronic copy in potable digital file (*.pdf) format on CD/DVD.
- 8. If applicable, Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Utility Permit Applications. Submission shall be delayed until the Town notifies the Engineer or Developer that the Submittal Package has been reviewed and approved by the Town. Submit one electronic copy in potable digital file (*.pdf) format on CD/DVD.
- 9. Town of Howey-in-the-Hills applicable permit applications. Submission shall be delayed until the Town notifies the Engineer or Developer that the Submittal Package has been reviewed and approved by the Town. Submit one electronic copy on a CD/DVD.
- 10. Electronic copy on a CD/DVD of all models and calculations used to design the potable water, wastewater, reclaimed water, grease inceptor sizing, and stormwater systems. Specification Sections 12, 14, 16, 17, 21, and 22 provide specific design calculation requirements. Calculations shall be signed, dated, and sealed by a Florida-registered Professional Engineer and in accordance with Part 1.04, Project Documents and Submittals, of this Section.

1.05 PROJECT DOCUMENTS AND SUBMITTALS

- A. Overview: This Section outlines the project documents that are required to be submitted for review and approval by the Town for proposed potable water, wastewater, reclaimed water, and stormwater systems that will be owned, operated, and maintained by the Town upon final acceptance.
- B. The Town uses geographic information system (GIS) technologies to manage the Town's utility assets geographically and spatially. GIS-related work and submittals shall be in accordance with Section 3, Utilities Digital and CAD Requirements.
- C. All Construction Drawings must be prepared in AutoCAD format. The version of AutoCAD used shall be compatible with the current version used by the Town at the time of submission. No other CAD software shall be used in preparation of Construction Drawings unless authorized in writing the Town Public Services

- Director, or their designee. AutoCAD related work and submittals shall be in accordance with Section 3, Utilities Digital and CAD Requirements.
- D. System Modeling and Analysis: The Engineer/Developer shall submit one electronic copy on CD/DVD of all system modeling and calculations to the Town Utilities Department along with the Construction Drawings for the Potable Water, Wastewater, and Reclaimed Water Systems. The modeling and calculations shall have the following:
 - 1. Address the calculated demands and flows with the properly sized systems in accordance with the requirements of the Town CSM and the Federal, State, FDEP, and other permitting requirements.
 - 2. Show the proposed connection points to the Town's utilities.
 - 3. The Potable Water System modeling and calculations shall demonstrate that the system satisfies the fire flow demand, maximum day demand, and peak hourly demand in accordance with the requirements of the Town CSM and the Federal, State, FDEP, and other permitting requirements.
 - 4. The Engineer/Developer shall coordinate with the Town Utilities Department on all connection points.
 - 5. Modeling results and calculations shall be signed, dated, and sealed by a Florida-registered Professional Engineer.
- E. Master Plan: Shall be to be submitted (one hard copy and one electronic on CD/DVD in a potable digital file (*.pdf) format) by the Engineer/Developer for projects constructed in multiple phases.
 - 1. The Master Plan shall include the layouts and the design calculations.
 - 2. The Master Plan shall be signed, dated, and sealed by a Florida-registered Professional Engineer.
 - 3. The Master Plan shall include separate layouts for the potable water, wastewater, reclaimed water, and stormwater lines superimposed on a project map. The Master Plan sheet(s) shall include the following general items:
 - a. Minimum Scale of 1 inch equals 200 feet.
 - b. Topography.
 - c. Lines indicating planned development phasing.
 - d. Development phase numbering/coding.

- e. Existing/proposed improvements in sufficient detail for demonstration of design intent.
- f. Identity of utility service providers.

4. Potable Water:

- a. Calculations for potable water demand shall be based on the projected ultimate development. A minimum of two flow scenarios shall be estimated and provided:
 - (1) Maximum day demand plus fire flow.
 - (2) Peak hour flow.
- b. A summary of each unit or tract stating type of use (single-family residential, multi-family or mobile home dwellings, commercial, etc.) and unit flows shall be calculated based on factors provided in Section 12, Potable Water Distribution System, of the Town CSM.
- c. Calculations shall include a pipe network analysis for flow and pressure distribution. The Master Plan shall include connection points to the Town water system and pipe sizes.
- d. Delineate existing, approved, and future units or tracts.
- e. Show all existing and proposed pipe diameters.
- f. Location of the 100-year floodplain elevation.

5. Wastewater:

- a. Existing manhole inverts and top of elevation for the manhole that is being connected to by the new collection system.
- b. Pipe diameters (both force mains and gravity mains).
- c. Total wastewater flow (both average daily flow and peak hour flow) to each lift station. A summary of each unit or tract stating type of use (single-family residential, multi-family or mobile home dwellings, commercial, etc.) and unit flows calculated in accordance with the flow factors provided in Section 14, Wastewater Gravity Sewer System, of the Town CSM.
- d. If the Project will be sending wastewater flow to an existing Town lift station or gravity system the capacity of the existing lift station shall be evaluated and included in the design. If upgrades are required as a result of the increase flow, they shall be included in the design.
- e. Lift station locations with top and bottom elevations.
- f. Delineate existing, approved and future units or tracts.
- g. Lift station and manhole nodes and numbers.
- h. Location of the 100-year floodplain elevation.

6. Reclaimed Water:

- a. Calculations for reclaimed water demand shall be based on projected ultimate development utilizing flows calculated in accordance Section 22, Reclaimed Water System, of the Town CSM.
- b. Calculations shall include a pipe network analysis for flow and pressure distribution. The Master Plan shall include connection points and pipe sizes.
- c. Delineate existing, approved, and future units or tracts.
- d. Show all existing proposed pipe diameters.
- e. Location of the 100-year floodplain elevation.

7. Stormwater:

- a. Design storm calculations.
- b. Stormwater sewer pipe diameters.
- c. Stormwater pond sizing and water levels.
- d. Additional drainage calculations required for permitting.
- e. Location of the 100-year floodplain elevation.

F. Construction Drawings:

- 1. All Construction Drawings, including the cover page, shall be signed, dated, and sealed the Engineer of Record that is a Florida-registered Professional Engineer.
- 2. Typical line types and callouts shall be used to distinguish between existing and proposed utilities, structures, roads, etc. Future facilities to be constructed under a different project or phase shall be identified as not part of the current project or phase using distinguishing line types and callouts such as "not in contract" or "future".
- 3. Drawings shall show location of existing and proposed underground and aboveground potable water, wastewater, reclaimed water, and stormwater piping, structures, and related appurtenances within the project area.
- 4. The cover sheet shall include:
 - a. Full name of the project.
 - b. Section(s), Township(s), and Range(s) of the project.
 - c. The address of the project, if applicable.

- d. A map that includes the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills limit and includes the location of the project, major roadways, and a north arrow.
- e. A vicinity map that includes the project boundaries, major roadways, and a north arrow.
- f. Developer's name, company name, business address, fax number, and telephone number.
- g. The Engineer of Record and, as applicable, other design professionals' names, company names, business addresses, fax numbers, and telephone numbers.
- h. A signature block for the Engineer of Record information and space for the Engineer's signature, date, and seal.
- i. Notation on the status of the Drawings "Construction Drawing" or "Record Drawing".

5. The Drawings shall include:

- a. Index to all drawings.
- b. Key map(s).
- c. Abbreviations and legend that identify symbols, meaning of all line types used on the plans.
- d. Graphic scales.
- e. Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Standard Details and Notes.
- 6. Potable Water, Wastewater, Reclaimed Water shall be shown on the same Drawing sheet. Stormwater system shall be included on a separate Drawing sheet. Drawings shall include the following information:
 - a. General information such as project name, north arrow, Engineer of Record information and signature block, designer, revision block with dates, graphic scale(s), and Drawing sheet number.
 - b. The Overall plan shall be prepared at a scale not to exceed 1 inch equals 100 feet. Unless otherwise approved by the Town, plan and profile sheets shall be legible and prepared at a horizontal scale of no smaller than 1 inch equals 30 feet and at a vertical scale of no smaller than 1 inch equals 5 feet. Special details shall be of sufficiently large scale to show pertinent construction information.
 - c. Potable water mains, wastewater gravity sewers, wastewater force mains, reclaimed water mains, and stormwater sewers shall be drawn in plan and profile, including existing and proposed utility locations and elevations. Plan and corresponding profile shall be on the same Drawing sheet. The profile shall be vertically aligned

- at the beginning station or left match line for each Drawing sheet. Utility infrastructure to be privately owned may be shown in plan view only.
- d. All connections to utilities; crossings; and conflicts with other utilities, drainage systems, and structures shall be shown in detail with field-verified elevations. Drawings shall include the following note "All existing utilities have been field verified (vertically and horizontally) at all points of connection and at all areas of conflict with the Town and other utilities." **The Drawings will not be approved without this note.**
- e. Manholes with invert and rim elevations shall be on the corresponding profile and/or plan view.
- f. Stormwater inlets and drainage structures with invert and rim elevations shall be on the corresponding profile and/or plan view.
- g. Existing and proposed pipe data including size, length, and material type. Provided slopes of wastewater gravity sewer and stormwater sewer mains.
- h. Size, type, and locations of fittings, valves, hydrants, air valves, and other related appurtenances.
- i. Limits of pipe joint deflections.
- j. Limits of changes in pipe linings and coatings other than the standard pipe lining and coating.
- k. Limits of retrained joints.
- 1. Limits of special bedding requirements.
- m. Details of connection to the existing system, which have been field verified. Show in a detail drawing proposed fittings and restraints.
- n. Location(s) and layout of wastewater lift stations. Show the top elevation of the proposed wet well and the elevation of the centerline of the road at the extension of the access driveway to the lift station.

- o. Drainage system plans and locations and limits of stormwater retention ponds and water levels and outfall structures including structure types, invert elevations, and sizes.
- p. Construction notes regarding cover, horizontal and vertical control, special construction requirements, and references to details.
- q. Location of the 100-year floodplain elevation.
- r. Existing and proposed right-of-way lines, property lines, and utility easements. Distinguish between existing and proposed utility easements and callout as public or private. Provide book and page numbers for existing easements.
- 7. The Drawings shall include all applicable Town Standard Details and Drawings included in Appendix B, Standard Details, of the Town CSM. Drawing sheets containing only Town CSM standard details shall not be required to be signed, dated, and sealed by the Engineer of Record. Additional details shall be prepared and included for conditions not included in the Town CSM Standard Drawings such as connections to existing mains, aerial and underwater crossings of rivers, streams, canals, and ditches.
- 8. The following shall be provided if applicable: recorded cross-access utility agreement; signed, dated, and sealed wastewater lift station calculations; and fire flow hydraulic calculations.

9. Survey Requirement:

- a. Horizontal and vertical controls shall be shown on the Drawings sufficiently to determine locations and elevations for the Contractor to establish their Work.
- b. The Surveyor's name, registration number, and the date the survey was performed shall be indicated on the Drawings.
- c. Baselines shall be parallel to the right-of-way and monumented at the beginning and end of the project and at all changes in direction. The Drawings shall indicate the types of monuments used and shall include state plane coordinates with vertical elevation (x, y, z) for all monuments.
- d. All proposed utility easements and tracts shall be shown with dimensions and offsets tied to the baseline of the design survey.

- e. Found or set monuments for existing right-of-ways, easements, or lift station sites shall be adequately depicted on the Drawings.
- f. The Surveyor shall survey the existing underground utilities marked by the respective utility owners.

1.06 WARRANTY

- A. Warranty shall be provided to the Town at the time of final acceptance.
- B. For at least 1 year after final acceptance, the Contractor warrants the fitness and soundness of all work done, materials, and equipment put in place under the contract including manufacturing and/or design inadequacies, materials, and workmanship not in conformity with the Town CSM, improper assembly, hidden damage, failure of devices and/or components, excessive leakage, or other circumstances that would cause equipment failure under normal design and/or specific operating conditions.
- C. In addition, the Town shall be provided 5-year warranties on all equipment such as pumps, motors, electrical panels, etc., by the manufacturer before final acceptance by the Town.
- D. Warranties shall be extended by 6 months from the date of any repair to warranted items.
- E. Neither the final certificate of payment nor any provision in the Town CSM nor partial or entire occupancy of the premises by the Town shall constitute an acceptance of work not done in accordance with the Contract Documents or relieve the Contractor of liability in respect to any express warranties of responsibility for faulty materials or workmanship.
- F. The Contractor shall replace and install each piece of equipment, device, or component which shall fail within the above-specified term of the guarantee with reasonable promptness without increase in the Contract Price. If the Contractor fails to proceed promptly to comply with the terms of the guarantee, the Town may have the defects corrected and the Contractor and their Surety shall be liable for all expenses incurred, or the Town may issue a claim against the Contractor's Bond. In some instances, if approved by the Town, the Contractor may be allowed to repair the equipment.
- G. As part of the guarantee, the Contractor shall verify compliance with the Town CSM, Specifications, and Drawings, and submit two copies to the Town of the warranties, bonds, and service and maintenance contracts executed by each of the

respective manufacturers, suppliers, and subcontractors. The submittal of warranties, bonds, and service and maintenance contracts shall be included in submittals for review and before final acceptance and shall include:

- 1. Table of Contents: Neatly typed, in sequence of the Specifications. Provide completion information for each item as follows:
 - a. Product or work item.
 - b. Firm, address, telephone and fax numbers, and E-mail and name of the principal.
 - c. Scope.
 - d. Date of beginning of warranty, bond, or service and maintenance contract.
 - e. Duration of warranty, bond, or service and maintenance contract.
 - f. Provide information for Town's personnel:
 - (1) Proper procedure in case of failure.
 - (2) Instances that might affect the validity of warranty or bond.
 - g. Contractor, with address, telephone and fax numbers, E-mail, and the name of the responsible principal.
- H. A second Town inspection shall be conducted 10 months after the date of final acceptance. The Contractor shall be notified of observed defects after the "10-month" inspection is conducted. The Contractor shall promptly correct any defects.
- I. If in fulfilling the requirements of the Contract or of any guarantee embraced therein or required thereby, the Contractor disturbs any work guaranteed under another Contract, the Contractor shall restore such disturbed work to a condition satisfactory to the Town, and shall guarantee such restored work to the same extent as it was guaranteed under such other Contract.
- J. In addition to the guarantee stipulated in the Contract, the Contractor shall fully maintain all work performed under the Contract for 60 days after final completion and acceptance of the work. The retained percentage of Contract Payments shall not be due until after the 60–day maintenance period, except that the Town may at their discretion release such retainer earlier.

1.07 MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP

A. It is the intent of these Specifications that the Contractor shall furnish first-class materials and do all Work in a first-class manner so that the completed job shall be thoroughly satisfactory in every respect. To this end, the Contractor shall use

all of their construction experience and shall consult with the Engineer regarding items in the Drawings and Specifications that may be altered to the benefit of the Work.

- B. Materials, Services and Facilities: It is understood that except as otherwise specifically stated in the Specifications, the Contractor shall provide and pay for all materials, labor, tools, equipment, water, light, power, transportation, superintendence, temporary construction of every nature, and all other services and facilities of every nature whatsoever necessary to execute, complete, and deliver the work within the specified time. Materials must be approved for use by the Town or the Town's Representative before being purchased by the Contractor. The Contractor shall submit to the Engineer of Record, the Town, and the Town's Representative a list of such materials or products, and the shop drawings, together with such samples as may be necessary for determination of their acceptability and obtain material/product approval. No request for payment will be approved until this list has been received and approved by the Town. Delay caused by obtaining approvals for substitute materials will not be considered justifiable grounds for an extension of construction time.
- C. Material Inspection and Testing: All materials and equipment used in the construction of this project shall be subject to adequate inspection and testing, in accordance with requirements and accepted standards. All testing shall be done after fabrication and performed within the continental limits of the United States.
 - 1. Materials of construction, particularly those upon which the strength and durability of the structure may depend, shall be subject to inspection and testing to establish conformance with specifications and suitability for uses intended.
 - 2. Laboratory or Inspection Agencies shall be selected, or approved, by the Town and Engineer of Record. Preparation of test samples and shipment to an independent laboratory shall be by the Contractor. The Contractor shall pay for all tests and reports, except those that may be specifically excluded by other Sections of the Specifications.

1.08 SHOP DRAWINGS

A. Shop Drawings are original drawings prepared by the Contractor, or a subcontractor or supplier, which illustrate some portion of the Work and show fabrication, layout, and setting or erection details. Shop drawings shall also include manufacturer's catalog sheets, brochures, diagrams, schedules, performance charts, illustrations and other standard descriptive data, as required. Shop drawings shall be clearly marked to identify specific materials, finishes,

- products or models, and shall show all required dimensions and clearances, performance characteristics and capacities, wiring diagrams, and controls.
- B. Shop drawings shall be submitted to the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills or the Town's Representative for review and approval. Shop drawings must be reviewed and approved by the Engineer of Record and the Town and/or the Town's Representative before being released for construction.
- C. Submittal of shop drawings and documents for the Town or Town's Representative review shall in no way relieve the Contractor of full responsibility for providing a complete, safe, reliable, operating, and coordinated Work.
- D. The Contractor shall review and check all shop drawings for accuracy and conformance with the Contract Documents. The Contractor's review shall include verifying field measurements, field construction criteria, dimensions, catalog numbers, and similar data. Before submission to the Engineer of Record and the Town, all shop drawings shall be marked, stamped, or otherwise certified as approved by the Contractor, dated, and signed or initialed. Any shop drawings not so marked will be returned to the Contractor without the Engineer of Record's and the Town or Town's Representative review.
- E. The Contractor shall schedule the submission of shop drawings to allow sufficient time for review by the Engineer of Record and the Town, corrections and resubmissions by the Contractor, and re-checking by the Engineer of Record/Town, as necessary. The Engineer of Record will review shop drawings within 2 weeks from date received, unless otherwise noted.
- F. Unless otherwise requested, shop drawing shall be submitted electronically to the Engineer of Record and the Town and/or the Town's Representative.
- G. The Contractor shall not begin fabrication or work that requires submittals until return of submittals with the full approval from the Engineer of Record and the Town or Town's Representative.
- H. Prior to submitting any shop drawings, the Contractor shall provide to the Town a list of shop drawings that will be submitted and the schedule for submittal.
- I. Town or Town's Representative Submittal Review:
 - 1. The Town/Town's Representative review of the Contractor's documents and shop drawings shall not relieve the Contractor of the responsibility for meeting all of the requirements of the contract nor of the responsibility of correcting the documents and shop drawings furnished. The Contractor shall have no claim for additional cost or extension in time because of

- delays due to revisions of the documents that may be necessary for ensuring compliance with the Contract or Agreement.
- 2. No partial shop drawing submittals will be reviewed. A shop drawings submittal or re-submittal not complete will be returned to the Contractor for completing and re-submittal.
- 3. Documents submitted by the Contractor for approval by the Town/Town's Representative will be returned bearing a project-specific stamp bearing the dated signature of the reviewer and one of four boxes checked:
 - a. NO EXCEPTIONS NOTED indicates that the submittal appears to be in compliance with the requirements of the performance specifications and that the Work may proceed.
 - b. MAKE CORRECTIONS NOTED indicates that the reviewer has added a minor correction to the submission and that the Work (modified in accordance with the correction comment) may proceed. The Contractor shall accept the responsibility of the modified document and resulting Work with no additional compensation.
 - c. AMEND AND RESUBMIT indicates that the submittal will require Contractor modifications based on the reviewer's comments that accompanied the returned submittal. The Contractor will be cautioned that work may not proceed under this review status.
 - d. REJECTED indicates that the submittal is not in conformance with the requirements of the performance Specifications and cannot be modified to gain compliance. A new submittal will be required in the instance of a "reject" status and the Contractor will be cautioned that work may not proceed under this condition.

1.09 CONSTRUCTION

A. Start:

- 1. Notification: The Town shall be notified in writing by the Contractor of the proposed date of the beginning of construction of the potable water, wastewater, reclaimed water, roadway, and stormwater facilities. Any time that work is to stop for a period in excess of 2 working days, the Town shall be notified of such interruption.
- 2. Pre-Construction Conference: At least 2 days before the preconstruction conference, the Engineer of Record shall provide the Town's Project Manager with four sets of Drawings and Specifications stamped "issued for construction." Project cut sheets and applicable shop drawings shall be

provided as soon as possible after the preconstruction conference and prior to starting construction. A pre-construction conference shall be held at least 2 days before the commencement of construction. The Developer shall be responsible for arranging this conference with the Town. The conference shall be attended by:

- a. Town's Project Manager.
- b. Town's Construction Inspector.
- c. Representative of Design Engineer and Engineer of Record.
- d. Representative of the Contractor and/or the Contractor's Project Foreman.
- e. Representative of any Subcontractors involved with project.
- f. Other utilities servicing the project.
- 3. Required insurance certificates will be provided by the Developer to the Town when work involves Town property, right-of-ways, or easements. Work shall not begin until such certificates are provided. The surety shall have an A.M. Best Financial Performance rating of no less than "A-".
- 4. The Contractor will cause the Bonds to be recorded with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in Lake County. Failure of the Contractor to deliver required Bonds in the form prescribed may constitute and event justifying termination of construction for cause. The expense for all Bonds shall be the Contractor's responsibility.
- 5. During construction, the project documents shall be updated and maintained and shall be submitted to the Town.

B. Completion:

- 1. Record Drawings: Within 2 weeks following final inspection, the Developer shall submit Record Drawings in accordance with Part 1.13 of this Section, Record Drawings.
- 2. Certificates of Compliance: Certificates of compliance with the Specifications furnished by the material supplier shall be submitted on all materials used in the completion of this Work.
- C. Off-Site Pollution Protection: It will be the Developer's responsibility to provide downstream siltation protection during construction. In the event such protection is inadequate, it will be the Developer's responsibility to remove any downstream siltation before final inspection. (See also Section 5, Temporary and Permanent Erosion and Sedimentation Control of the Town CSM.)

- D. Verification of Dimensions and Elevations:
 - 1. Dimensions and elevations indicated on the Drawings in reference to existing structures, location of utilities, sewer inverts, or other information on existing facilities, are the best available data obtainable but are not guaranteed by the Design Engineer. The Design Engineer or Engineer of Record will not be responsible for their accuracy. Before proceeding with any work dependent upon the data involved, the Contractor shall field check and verify all dimensions, grades, inverts, lines, elevations, or other conditions of limitations at the site of the Work to avoid construction errors or damage to existing facilities. If any Work is performed by the Contractor, or any subcontractors, before adequate verification of applicable data, any resultant extra cost for adjustment of work necessary to conform to existing conditions, or damage to existing facilities, shall be assumed by the Contractor without reimbursement or compensation by the Town.
 - 2. If the Contractor, in the course of the work, finds any discrepancy between the Drawings and the physical conditions of the locality, or any errors or omissions in the Drawings or in the layout as given by survey points and instructions, he shall immediately inform the Engineer of Record, in writing. The Engineer of Record will promptly investigate the reported conditions and, after Town approval, shall issue such instructions as may be necessary for the proper execution of the Work. Any Work done after such discovery and before receipt of such instructions shall be at the risk of the Contractor.
- E. Care of Existing Facilities: In executing the Work, the Contractor shall exert every effort not to damage any existing utilities or the Town's existing facilities or to break into them. Any damage done shall be promptly reported to the affected utility for repair. Any damage that is done thereto shall be promptly repaired by the Contractor or by the Owner, at the Owner's option, and at the Contractor's expense. The Town of Howey-in-the-Hills, at the Contractor's expense, shall repair damage to Town of Howey-in-the-Hills utilities. The Contractor shall not interrupt or interfere with the operation of existing utilities or facilities during construction except when necessary. When this is the case, the Contractor shall notify with the Engineer of Record, the Town, and the utility company at least 1 week ahead of interruption or interference to coordinate and develop a resolution by their direction.
 - 1. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to locate and protect all such existing facilities before beginning construction.

- 2. The Contractor shall conduct their operations in a manner and sequence that will provide for the continued transportation of wastewater flows during construction of this project. The Contractor shall take all actions required to prevent discharge of sewer flow from the system to the ground or any stream. Any construction actions that impede or interrupt flow shall be carefully executed and monitored to prevent surcharging and overflow.
- 3. Any existing surface or subsurface improvements, such as pavement, curbs, sidewalks, pipe or utilities, footings, or structures (including portions thereof), trees, and shrubbery not indicated on the Drawings or noted in the Specifications as being removed or altered shall be protected from damage during construction of the project. Any such improvements damaged during construction of the project shall be restored to a condition equal to, or better than, that existing at time of Award of Contract.
- 4. Any such improvements damaged during construction of the project shall be restored to a condition equal to, or better than, that existing at time of Award of Contract. All repairs to utility services shall be coordinated with the applicable utility company, and shall be made in strict accordance with their requirements.
- F. Connecting to Existing Work: It shall be the express responsibility of the Contractor to connect their work to each part of the existing work or work previously installed as required by the Drawings and Specifications to provide a complete installation. Connections to existing sewer lines, before completion, may be allowed by the Town on a case-by-case basis where requested by the Contractor and approved by the Town's Project Manager; otherwise, connections to existing sewer lines shall be made only after all inspections are completed and all punch list items have been adequately addressed. During construction of new sewer lines, no physical connection to any existing pipeline by open channel or sawed off pipe shall be allowed until all lines upstream and/or downstream of connection have been approved for use by FDEP.

1.10 INSPECTION

A. The Engineer of Record, the Town, and/or Town's Representative shall provide for the inspection of materials used and the Work by assistants and inspectors under their direction. Such inspection may extend to any or all parts of the Work and to the preparation or manufacture of materials used, whether within the limits of the Work or at any other place. The Contractor shall furnish the Engineer of Record, the Town, and/or Town's Representative all information relating to the Work and to the materials, which the Engineer of Record, the Town, and/or Town's Representative may deem necessary or pertinent and with such samples of materials as may be required. The Contractor shall, at their own expense,

- supply labor and assistance as may be necessary in handling material for proper inspection.
- B. The representatives of the Town, Engineer of Record, and any State, Federal or other agency having jurisdiction over the Work, shall have access to the Work wherever it is in preparation or progress, and the Contractor shall provide proper facilities for such access and inspection.
- C. Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Inspectors shall be authorized to inspect all Work done and all materials furnished, including preparation, fabrication, and manufacture of the materials to be used.
 - 1. The Town will periodically visit the project site to observe the progress of the Work and methods of construction. Upon observation of Work not done in accordance with the Drawings and Specifications, the Town will notify the Developer's Contractor, and request that necessary corrections be made or tests performed to assure compliance with the Specifications, at no cost to the Town.
 - 2. All projects shall be subject to inspection during and upon completion of construction by an authorized representative of the Town. Presence or absence of an inspector during the construction does not relieve the Owner and/or Contractor from adherence to the approved Drawings and Specifications. The Inspector may reject materials or suspend Work until questions at issue can be referred to, and decided by, the Town's Project Manager or designated representative. The Inspector shall not be authorized to alter or waive requirements of the Drawing and Specifications.
 - 3. The Work shall at all times be subject to inspection by authorized representatives of the Town, and materials and/or workmanship found not meeting the requirements of approved Drawings and Specifications shall be immediately brought into conformance with said Drawings and Specifications.
 - 4. An authorized representative of the Town shall make final inspection of the project after completion to determine acceptability of the Work. Before this final inspection can be made, the Owner/Contractor shall notify the Town in writing that the Work has been completed in accordance with the approved Drawings and Specifications.
- D. The Contractor shall furnish all necessary facilities and assistance to make any examination of the complete work if the Engineer of Record, the Town, and/or Town's Representative deems such examination advisable. If any of the Work is

- found defective in any respect, the Contractor shall pay the expense of the examination and satisfactory reconstruction. If the Work is found acceptable, the expense of the examination shall be added to the Contractor's final estimate.
- E. Work covered up without consent or approval of the Town must, if required by the Inspector, be uncovered for examination and properly restored at the Contractor's expense. Pictures of the Work that is covered up, at the discretion of the Town or Town's Representative, will be allowed in place of an in-person inspection.
- F. If the Specifications, the Engineer of Record's, the Town's and/or Town Representative's instructions, codes, laws, ordinances, or any public authority requires any Work to be specially tested or approved, the Contractor shall give the Engineer of Record, the Town, and/or Town's Representative timely notice of its readiness for inspection; and, if the inspection is by an authority other than the Engineer, Town, and/or Town's Representative of the date fixed for such inspection.
- G. Final Inspection: Upon 48 hours' notice from the Contractor that the Work is complete, the Engineer of Record, the Town, and/or Town's Representative will make a final inspection, and will notify the Contractor in writing of all defective, incomplete, or otherwise unacceptable Work revealed by the inspection. The Contractor shall immediately correct all such deficiencies to the satisfaction of the Engineer of Record, Town, and/or Town's Representative. The Engineer of Record will then certify the project in writing to FDEP or appropriate regulatory agency, and request a final regulatory agency inspection.

1.11 TESTING

- A. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to provide the necessary equipment and personnel for all inspections and testing, including televising the sanitary sewer laterals. This shall include all safety equipment necessary to meet OSHA requirements. Inspections will be cancelled if proper testing or safety equipment is not on site and readily available at the time of the inspection.
- B. All testing shall be witnessed by the Engineer of Record, the Town, and/or the Town's Representative.
- C. Access to the Work shall be provided by the Contractor for all required inspections. In cases where the Contractor has proceeded with Work which the Town had requested to inspect or witness without said requested inspection, the Contractor shall bear all costs associated with uncovering, retesting, additional testing, or any other means necessary to provide physical evidence as to the acceptability of the Work performed by the Contractor. Such costs shall be the

responsibility of the Contractor regardless of whether or not the Work is found to be defective or acceptable to the Town.

1.12 INSURANCE

The Contractor shall not start Work under this Contract until he has obtained all the insurance required under this paragraph and such insurance has been approved by the Town. The Contractor shall not allow any subcontractor to start work on their subcontract until the insurance required of the subcontractor has been so obtained and approved. **The Town shall be named as additionally insured.**

- A. Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance: The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of the Contract the statutory Workmen's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance for all of their employees to be engaged in work on the project under the Contract. The Contractor shall require all subcontractors to provide Workmen's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance of all their employees to be engaged in such Work.
- B. General Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance: The Contractor shall procure and maintain General Public Liability and Property Damage Insurance during the life of the Contract. Insurance shall include vehicle coverage, to protect him from all claims for destruction of or damage to property, arising out of or in connection with any operations under the Contract, whether such operations are by himself or by any subcontractor under him, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Contractor or by a subcontractor under him. The amount of such insurance shall be not less than the following limits of liability.
 - 1. \$500,000 for all damages arising out of bodily injury, including death, at any time resulting therefrom, sustained by any one person in any one accident and \$500,000 aggregate for any such damages sustained by two or more persons in any one accident.
 - 2. \$200,000 for all property damage sustained by any one person in any one accident and \$200,000 aggregate for any such damage sustained by two or more persons in any one accident.
- C. Special Hazards Insurance: Where special hazards are encountered in the Work under this Contract, such hazards shall be covered by a rider to the policy or policies required under subparagraph B in an amount not less than those stipulated under subparagraph B. The Contractor shall be responsible for procuring this insurance before performing any work involving special hazards.
- D. Flood Insurance: The Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of the Contract adequate flood insurance to cover all Work on this project.

- E. Certificates of Insurance: Before starting any Work, the Contractor shall furnish the Town with certificates showing the type, amount, class of operations, effective dates, and expiration dates of all insurance policies. Each certificate shall contain the following statement: "The insurance covered by this certificate shall not be cancelled or materially altered, except after ten (10) days written notice has been received by the Town."
- F. Railroad Insurance (if required): Insurance shall be furnished in accordance with CSX or applicable requirements

1.13 FINAL

A. Final Acceptance:

- 1. The Town shall be notified in writing when the project is complete. Upon receiving a written request for final inspection of the completed Work, the representatives of the Town, together with the representatives of other interested agencies, shall perform the final inspection within 2 weeks of the receipt of the request.
- 2. All disturbed earthen areas shall be sodded before acceptance.
- 3. When facilities qualify as public facilities, the Town will accept ownership of the completed facilities when the Work has passed the final inspection, proper acquisition documents are completed, and acceptable Record Drawings are submitted to the Town. The Record Drawings shall be completed by the Engineer of Record for the project in accordance with Part 1.13 of this Section, Record Drawings.
- 4. Final acceptance by the Town will be made in writing upon satisfactory completion of the project, including final inspection and submittal of the following documents:
 - a. Record Drawings in accordance with Part 1.13, Record Drawings, of this Section.
 - b. Certifications of Completion from all Regulatory Agencies (i.e., FDEP, SJRWMD, FDOT, etc.).
 - c. Recorded easement documents.
 - d. Maintenance Bond in the amount of 10% or all contributed assets, with a duration of 2 years. Maintenance Bond shall be accompanied by a letter prepared by the Engineer of Record documenting the Bond amount.

- e. Copies of all approved Testing Results (i.e., Hydraulic Pressure Test, Air Test, Lamping, Mandrel, Densities/Compaction, copy of sanitary sewer videotape, etc.).
- f. Results of Bacteriological Sampling on potable water lines.
- 5. Final acceptance by the Town will be made in writing upon satisfactory completion of the project, including all items above. The Developer/ Contractor shall warrantee the work for a period of at least 1 year from the date of final acceptance and shall immediately correct any deficiencies in the Work due to materials and/or workmanship, which occur during the warranty period. The date of final acceptance shall be the date on which the Developer/Contractor has fulfilled all conditions necessary for final acceptance.
- B. Changes: All field changes to previously approved Construction Drawings shall be in accordance with these specifications and approved by the Town before implementation.
- C. Maintenance: All items or systems must be designed in such a manner to minimize future maintenance. Warranties shall be extended by 6 months from the date of any repair to warranted items.
- D. Transfer of Private Ownership: When transfer of private facilities to public ownership takes place, all such private facilities shall be brought up to the current Town standards at no cost to the Town insofar as construction and maintenance are concerned, before the Town will accept such facilities. The Town is to be furnished copies of all approvals; permits, certificates of completion, etc., to or from completion, etc., to or from other agencies such as Lake County, FDEP, SJRWMD, FDOT, railroads, etc., before proceeding with construction. Proof of satisfactory completion of water and sewer facilities, positive water bacteriological tests, and submission of quit claim deeds, bills of sale, prior and current permits, warranties, manufacturers manuals, and a 2-year maintenance bond shall be furnished to the Town before acceptance.
- E. Property Ownership: All facilities to be owned or maintained by the Town shall be located on Town property, within Town right-of-way, or on easements dedicated to the Town for the uses intended.

1.14 RECORD DRAWINGS

A. General Submittal Requirements:

- 1. After the successful completion of the Work, a preliminary set of Record Drawings shall be submitted to the Town by the Developer/Engineer for review and acceptance before finalizing the Record Drawings.
- 2. Three hard copy sets, two electronic copies in portable document file (*.pdf) format, and AutoCAD format on a CD/DVD of Record Drawings. The version of AutoCAD used shall be compatible with the current version used by the Town at the time of submission.
- 3. The Record Drawings shall be properly signed, dated, and sealed by the Engineer of Record and the Florida Licensed Surveyor.
- 4. Certification: Each page of the Record Drawings shall bear the name, date, and original signature of the general Contractor responsible for the Work and the name, date, and original signature and seal of the Floridaregistered land surveyor or Floridaregistered Professional Engineer who provided the horizontal and vertical dimensions and elevations on the Record Drawing. The signatures shall certify that the Record Drawings do, in fact, reflect the true as-built conditions as located under the direct supervision of the Floridaregistered surveyor and/or Professional Engineer. The Drawings shall be certified using the form provided by the Town (provided at the end of this Section).
- 5. Record Drawings shall be clearly labeled Record Drawings in 1-inch high printed letters on 22"x34" size paper.
- 6. The Contractor shall make documents and samples available at all times for inspection by the Town and Engineer of Record.
- 7. The Contractor shall have a Florida-licensed Land Surveyor certify the Record Drawings as being correct and complete.
- 8. Record Drawings shall be maintained in a clean, dry, and legible condition. Record Drawings shall not be used for construction purposes. The Contractor shall store documents and samples in the Contractor's field office apart from documents used for construction and shall do the following:
 - a. Provide files and racks for storage of documents.
 - b. Provide cabinet or secure storage space for storage of samples.
- B. At a minimum, Record Drawings shall contain:

- 1. Record Drawings shall show all changes in the work including verbal field changes, addenda, change orders, supplemental work authorizations and other Engineer of Record, Town, or Town's Representative directives.
- 2. Record Drawings shall contain a vicinity map, and street names shall be shown for all streets and right-of-ways.
- 3. All wastewater and reclaimed water facilities shall be located in two directions. One location shall be referenced perpendicular to the right-ofway line. The other location shall be parallel to the item being located and shall be referenced to the right-of-way line. Centerline intersections of pavement, curb, sidewalk, or utility structures are not acceptable unless these are in turn referenced to right-of-way lines. Centerline of right-ofway may be used for reference in lieu of the right-of-way line. A project base line shall be completely defined and shall be centered in the right-ofway, where possible. Stationing may be used as an alternative providing the point of beginning is referenced to an existing right-of-way line that is shown on the Drawings. A "point of beginning" and Town easements shall be defined from a known Town block corner as defined in the Town's land base maps and tied to lot/property corner. A single lot survey shall include the lot address. The horizontal and vertical datum referenced shall be clearly stated on the Record Drawings.
- 4. GPS coordinates shall be provided of Third Order Class I survey accuracy or 1.64-foot (50-cm) positional accuracy. Contractor's questions regarding the GPS data should be directed to the Town's GIS/CAD Standards Department.
- 5. Field changes of dimension and detail.
- 6. Details not on original Construction Drawings.
- 7. Changes made by change order or supplemental Work Authorizations.
- 8. Record Drawings shall contain horizontal dimensions to the nearest 0.10 foot and vertical dimensions shall be to the nearest 0.010 foot.
- 9. Record Drawings shall contain horizontal locations perpendicular to the right-of-way at 100-foot intervals.
- 10. Wastewater Gravity Sewers and Stormwater Sewers:
 - a. The location of all piping, fittings, valves, manholes, drainage inlets, cleanouts, points of deflection, and points of connection to

- the existing system shall be referenced in two perpendicular directions.
- b. Storm retention pond contours and topography and outfall locations and inlets shall be identified.
- c. Runs of gravity and stormwater sewers shall be identified (i.e., 300 feet of 8-inch PVC SDR35 at S = 0.004).
- d. Elevations shall be given for the north rim of the top of all manhole covers and all manhole inverts.
- e. Elevations on the service piping and finished grade shall be required at the property line for only those sewer service laterals which result in more than 60 inches of cover or less than 30 inches of cover (these exceptions must be Town approved).
- f. For wastewater sewer service laterals that are totally perpendicular to the main, the location of the end of sewer services shall be given to the plug and be located from the side property line or by station and offset. For sewer service laterals, which include bends and offsets that result in a service that is not totally perpendicular to the main, the location of all fittings between the sanitary tee and the plug (at the property line) shall be provided.
- g. All wastewater service connections shall be measured from the downstream manhole. Each stub-out shall be accurately referenced to the center of the manhole, and the actual invert elevation of each end of the stub out shall be accurately recorded. For service connections not located perpendicular to the main, locate the end of the service from two property corners.

11. Potable Water, Wastewater Force Mains, and Reclaimed Mains:

- a. The location of hydrants, valves, fittings, air valves casings, and points of connection to the existing system shall be referenced in two perpendicular directions.
- b. Elevations on the main and finished grade shall be required at points of connection to the existing system, fittings (bends, valves, tees, plugs, etc.), 500-foot intervals, at high points, and where the standard depth of cover is not provided.

12. Wastewater Lift Stations:

- a. Wet well size and location shall be indicated and located to property lines and/or right-of-way lines.
- b. All lines within the pump station site shall be located to property lines and/or right-of-way lines.

- c. Elevations shall be indicated at inverts, wet well top and bottom, and at ground adjacent to wet well. All types and sizes of lines and fittings shall be indicated.
- d. All schedules that show pump, motor, and electrical data shall be corrected to show the as-built condition and submitted with the pump station Drawings.
- e. As-built information should be provided for the lift station site plan. Within the pump station boundaries, the following shall be located horizontally: pump-out, water spigot and cross-connection control device, wet well, control panel, bends, fittings, manholes, generator and fuel tank (if applicable), transformer, irrigation system, fence, and auxiliary electrical enclosures, as applicable.
- f. The Contractor shall provide a boundary survey of the lift station site showing above- and below-ground improvements. This survey shall be prepared by a Florida-licensed Land Surveyor in accordance with Chapter 472 of the Florida Statutes. The boundary survey shall be submitted with the Record Drawings.
- g. All buried electrical conduit shall be labeled and located to property lines and/or right-of-way lines including electrical service from utility transformer to station meter and to control panel.

PART 2 PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION

	1	own Representative:		
	E	Engineer:		
	C	Contractor/Developer:		
		Date:		
Sub		ements in Section 1, General Provisions of the Town CSM. It neer, Developer, and/or Contractor to obtain and comply with regulatory permits.		
	One 22"x34" hard copy of the co	ompleted design plan set.		
	If applicable, one hard copy (22"x34") of the Draft Final Plan showing the approved utility easements, rights-of-way, street names, lot numbers, etc.			
	One hard copy of a Master Plan for water, wastewater, reclaimed water, and/or stormwater prepared and submitted in accordance with Project Documents and Submittals of this section. Only required to be submitted by the Engineer/Developer for projects constructed in multiple phases.			
EL	LECTRONIC COPY:			
The dela reviet form	e following shall require one electrayed until the Town notifies the riewed and is approved by the Town	onic copy to be submitted on a CD/DVD. Submission shall be Engineer or Developer that the submittal package has been vn. All Construction Drawings shall be prepared in AutoCAD sed shall be compatible with the current version used by the		
	One electronic copy of the desig	gn plan set, capable of being printed as 11"x17" pages.		
	One electronic copy of the Draft way, street names, lot numbers,	Final Plan showing the approved utility easements, rights-of-etc.		
	One electronic copy of a Master Plan for water, wastewater, reclaimed water, and/or stormwater prepared and submitted in accordance with Part 1.04, Project Documents and Submittals of this section. Only required to be submitted by the Engineer/Developer for projects constructed in multiple phases.			
	Florida Department of Environn Applications.	nental Protection (FDEP) Wastewater Construction Permit		

Project Name:

SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST FORM

SUBMITTAL CHECKLIST FORM

Town Representative:		
Engineer:		
Contractor/Developer:		
Date:		
FDEP Public Water System Construction Permit Applications.		
FDEP Stormwater Permit Applications.		
St. Johns River Water Management District Environmental Resource Permit Applications.		
If applicable, Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Utility Permit Applications.		
If applicable, Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Building Permit.		
If applicable, Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Demolition Permit.		
If applicable, Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Development Application.		
If applicable, Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Commercial Electric Service.		

Project Name:

RECORD DRAWINGS

INFORMATION PROVIDED BY:				
Date:				
Name:				
Address				
Phone No:				
IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTERS 471 AND 472 OF FLORIDA STATUTES AND CHAPTER 61G1523 OF THE FLORIDA BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS, I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE:				
Chilled Water	Water Main			
Pavement	Reclaimed Water Main			
Curb & Gutter	Wastewater Force Main			
Storm & Drainage System	Wastewater Gravity Sewer			
Lake or Pond	Wastewater Lift Stations			
Underdrain Connections				
ARE AT THE HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL LOCATIONS AS SHOWN ON THESE "RECORD DRAWINGS."				
SIGNATURE:				
NAME:				
FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL	FLORIDA LICENSED PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER NO.:			

RECORD DRAWINGS

FLORIDA-LICENSED LAND SURVEYOR'S NO.:

INFORMATION PROVIDED BY:				
Name:				
Address				
Phone No:				
I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE :				
Chilled Water	Water Main			
Pavement	Reclaimed Water Main			
Curb & Gutter	Wastewater Force Main			
Storm & Drainage System	Wastewater Gravity Sewer			
Lake or Pond	Wastewater Lift Stations			
Underdrain Connections				
ARE AT THE HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL LOCATIONS AS SHOWN ON THESE				
"RECORD DRAWINGS" AND MEET THE MINIMAL TECHNICAL STANDARDS SET				
FORTH BY THE FLORIDA BOARD OF PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR'S AND MAPPERS				
IN CHAPTER 61G17-6, FLORIDA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, PURSUANT TO				
SECTIONS 471 AND 472 OF FLORIDA STATUTES.				
DATE OF FIELD SURVEY				
SIGNATURE:				
NAME:				

SECTION 2 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

A. This Section covers methods of measurement and payment for items of work under this Contract.

1.02 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT

- A. The total Contract Price shall cover all work required by the Contract Documents. All cost in connection with the proper and successful completion of the work, including furnishing all materials, equipment, tools, transportation, overhead, profit, insurance, taxes, and performing all necessary labor and supervision to fully complete the work, shall be included in the unit price and lump-sum bid prices. All work not specifically set forth as a pay item in the Bid Form or Bid Schedule shall be considered a subsidiary obligation of the Contractor and all costs in connection with these subsidiary obligations shall be included in the Bid(s) to provide a complete and functional Project. No additional compensation shall be considered, except for extensions of unit price quantities beyond those shown in the bid or for work classified as authorized supplemental work or change orders. Payment shall not be made for work considered incomplete or unsatisfactory by the Town.
- B. Except where otherwise specified, the unit price or lump-sum price bid for each item of work which involves excavation, trenching, clearing, grubbing, or disposal of cleared and grubbed materials shall include all costs for such work. No direct payment shall be made for clearing, grubbing, disposal of cleared or grubbed materials, excavation, trenching, trench boxes, shoring or bracing, disposal of surplus excavated material, handling water (and groundwater), and purchasing and hauling of required fill material.
- C. Lump Sum: For lump-sum items, payments shall be made to the Contractor in accordance with an accepted Progress Schedule of Values on the basis of actual work completed and accepted by the Town at the final acceptance of the Project.

D. Unit Price

1. For unit price items, payment shall be made based on the actual amount of work accepted by the Town and for the actual amount of materials in

- place at the final acceptance of the Project, as confirmed by the final measurements.
- 2. After the work is completed and before final payment is made, the Town or Engineer of Record shall make final measurements, with all required assistance from the Contractor, to determine the quantities of various items of work accepted as the basis for the final unit price payment.

E. Payment for Increased or Decreased Quantities

- 1. When alterations in the quantities of unit price work not requiring a Change Order(s), as herein provided for, are ordered and performed, the Contractor shall accept payment in full at the Contract Unit Price multiplied by the actual quantities of work constructed and accepted by the Town at the completion of the project.
- 2. The actual percentage of each lump sum bid item completed by the Contractor and accepted by the Town at the final acceptance of the Project shall be paid to the Contractor.
- F. Deleted Items: Should any items contained in the Bid Schedule(s) be found unnecessary for the proper completion of the work contracted, the Town or Engineer of Record may eliminate such items from the Contract. This action shall in no way invalidate the Contract and no financial allowance or compensating payment for anticipated profit, overhead, etc. shall be made for items so eliminated in making final payment to the Contractor.
- G. Partial Payments: Partial payments may be made monthly as the work progresses. Partial payment shall be made subject to the provisions of the General and Supplementary Conditions.
- H. Payments for Stored Material Delivered to the Project
 - 1. When requested by the Contractor and at the discretion of the Town, payment may be made for all or part of the value of acceptable materials and equipment to be incorporated into bid items, which have not been used, and which have been delivered to the construction site or placed in storage places acceptable to the Town. The Contractor shall provide receipts for all stored material items requested for reimbursement which clearly identify the stored material item, where it is to be constructed, the unit cost of the item, as well as the total cost of the delivered item(s), the quantity of the item, the brand name of the item, and the supplier. Note that there are additional documentation requirements and storage

- requirements within the Contract Documents that must also be met before the Contractor can be reimbursed for these stored materials.
- 2. No payment shall be made for fuels, supplies, installation or connection hardware, lumber, false work, or other similar materials or on temporary structures or other work (items) of any kind which are not a permanent part of the Contract. Items having a value of less than \$2,500 shall not be compensated for as a stored material item.
- I. Final Payment: If requested by the Town or Engineer of Record, the Contractor shall field verify all quantities in dispute by using visual observation, taped measurements, or other methods designated by the Town or Engineer of Record. The field verification shall be made in the presence of the Town or Engineer of Record and agreed to by both the Town or Engineer of Record and the Contractor. The Town or Engineer of Record shall prepare a final adjusting Change Order which shall adjust the final quantities of the project Bid Schedule to reflect the actual work accepted by the Town and for which the Contractor shall be compensated.
- J. Schedule of Values: A schedule of values for the lump-sum bid items and some of the unit price bid items as required by the Town or Engineer of Record shall be submitted and accepted before the first pay request is approved by the Town or Engineer of Record. The schedule of values shall be based on the prices bid in the Bid Schedule(s). Prices bid in the Bid Schedule(s) cannot be changed in the schedule of values; they can only be broken down into more detail so that the Town can more accurately pay the Contractor for the completed work.
- K. Pay Item Descriptions: The descriptions provided in the following paragraphs are to be used by the Bidder in preparing the Bid Schedule(s). They generally indicate how the major work scope items and their respective costs are to be separated into the line items listed in the Bid Schedule(s). These descriptions are neither fully representative nor all-inclusive of the work required to complete the project in accordance with the Contract Documents. It is the Bidder's responsibility to include all required costs within the most appropriate line item(s).

ITEM 1. SEWER PIPING

Measurement of new sewers for payment shall be the horizontal distance between manholes with no deduction made for those spaces occupied by manholes, tees, or other appurtenances. The depth of cut of sewers shall be measured from existing grade elevations along the center line of the pipe, taken on 50-foot stations, down to the sewer invert elevation. The depth of cut shall be divided into steps: first step -2 to 4 feet, second step -4 to 6 feet, and so on, at 2-foot intervals, unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents. The method of measurement shall be the same for each of the specified pipe materials. Payment for sewers shall be at the unit price stated in the

Contract for the size and class of pipe, type of material, and depth of sewer actually installed, measured as previously specified. The unit prices set forth in the Contract shall constitute full compensation for excavation, native soil backfilling, dewatering, bedding, sheeting and shoring of trenches, placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers and maintaining traffic, furnishing, laying, jointing, and testing the sewers, plus all incidental work including all labor, materials, tools, and equipment. The unit price shall also include stoppers for all ends of pipe and fittings, and transition couplings.

ITEM 2. GRAVITY SEWER PIPING REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT

Measurement of removal and replacement of sewers for payment shall be the horizontal distance between manholes with no deduction made for those spaces occupied by manholes, tees, or other appurtenances. The depth of cut of sewers shall be measured from existing grade elevations along the center line of the pipe, taken on 50-foot stations, down to the sewer invert elevation. The depth of cut shall be divided into steps: First step - 2 to 4 feet, second step - 4 to 6 feet, and so on, at 2-foot intervals, unless otherwise specified in the Contract Documents. The method of measurement shall be the same for each of the specified pipe materials. Payment for sewers removal and replacement shall be at the unit price stated in the Contract for the size and class of pipe, type of material, and depth of sewer actually installed, measured as previously specified. The unit prices set forth in the Contract shall constitute full compensation for excavation; native soil backfilling; dewatering; sheeting and shoring driven and pulled, and drag shields for trenches of all depths; placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers and maintaining traffic; as-builts; furnishing, laying, jointing, and testing the sewers; removal and disposal of the existing sewer pipe; stoppers for all ends of pipe and fittings; transition couplings; bypass pumping plus all incidental work including all labor, materials, tools, and equipment.

ITEM 3. ABANDONMENT OF PIPING BY SEALING

Payment for excavating and sealing ends of abandoned pipe shall be at the unit price set forth in the Contract Documents for each concrete seal actually installed as indicated on the Drawings or as directed by the Town or Engineer of Record. Payment shall be full compensation for removal of grassing; excavating; sealing; grout/mortar and brick; placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers; maintaining traffic; backfilling and compacting, as required, for a complete abandonment.

ITEM 4. ABANDONMENT OF PIPING BY PLUGGING

Payment for excavating and plugging ends of abandoned pipe and associated active mains with a plugged fitting shall be at the unit price set forth in the Contract Documents for each plug actually installed as indicated on the Drawings or as directed by the Town or Engineer of Record. Payment shall be full compensation for removal of grassing; excavating; plugging; placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers; maintaining traffic; backfilling and compacting, as required, for a complete abandonment. The cost associated with valve box and cover abandonment (for grass areas – removal and disposal and backfill of the box void areas; for paved areas – removal and disposal of cover and

grout filling valve box) shall not be paid for separately but shall be included in the cost of the associated main to be abandoned.

ITEM 5. ABANDONMENT OF PIPING BY GROUT FILLING

Payment for excavating and grout filling abandoned mains shall be at the per linear foot unit price as set forth in the Contract Documents. Payment for grout filling sewer laterals shall be included in the per foot price of grout filling gravity sewer main. Payment shall be compensation in full for removal of grassing; excavating as required; grout; grout filling; backfilling and compacting; placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers; maintaining traffic, as required, for a complete abandonment. The cost associated with valve box and cover abandonment (for grass areas – removal, disposal, and soil backfill of the box void areas; for paved areas – removal and disposal of cover and grout filling valve box) shall not be paid for separately but shall be included in the cost of the associated main to be abandoned.

ITEM 6. SEWER LATERAL PIPING

Measurement of sewer lateral pipe for payment shall be measured by the linear foot on a horizontal plane along the projection of the center line of the lateral pipe, from the center of the sewer main to the terminal point of the lateral pipe, unless specified otherwise in the Contract Documents. Payment for sewer lateral piping shall be at the per linear foot price stated in the Contract for the size, class, and type of pipe actually installed. The unit price set forth in the Contract shall constitute full compensation for excavation; native soil backfilling; dewatering; sheeting and shoring driven and pulled, and drag shields for trenches of all depths; placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers and maintaining traffic; as-builts; furnishing and installing the sewer lateral piping and fittings; electronic marker (if required); stoppers for future connections, plus all incidental work including all labor, materials, tools, and equipment.

ITEM 7. SEWER LATERAL PIPING REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT

Measurement of sewer lateral pipe removal and replacement for payment shall be measured by the linear foot on a horizontal plane along the projection of the center line of the lateral pipe, from the center of the sewer main to the terminal point of the lateral pipe, unless specified otherwise in the Contract Documents. Payment for sewer lateral piping shall be at the per linear foot price stated in the Contract for the size, class, and type of pipe actually installed. The unit price set forth in the Contract shall constitute full compensation for excavation and native soil backfilling; dewatering; sheeting and shoring driven and pulled, and drag shields for trenches of all depths; placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers and maintaining traffic; record drawings; furnishing and installing the sewer lateral piping and fittings; stoppers for future connections pressure-treated wood markers (new development projects only) and electronic marker (if required). The unit price shall also be full compensation for locating existing lateral piping; the removal and disposal of the existing sewer lateral piping; locating existing yard piping and connecting to existing yard piping including PVC adapters plus all incidental work including all labor, materials, tools, and equipment.

ITEM 8. LATERAL CONNECTIONS AT SEWER MAIN

Payment shall be made for each sewer lateral connection furnished and installed at the Contract Unit Price for the type and size of the lateral connection actually installed as shown on the Contract Drawings. The unit prices set forth in the Contract shall constitute full compensation for excavation; native soil backfilling; de-watering; sheeting and shoring, driven and pulled; drag shields for trenches of all depths, and furnishing and installing lateral connections of all depths. Payment shall consist of the cost of the tee or saddle, over and above the price paid for pipeline length measured through the tee or saddle. The unit price shall also be full compensation for locating existing lateral piping and all incidental work including all labor, materials, tools and equipment.

ITEM 9. YARD PIPING SERVICE

Measurement of privately owned sewer service (yard piping) shall be in linear feet measured from the right-of-way line, through private property, to the connection point of the existing yard piping as indicated on the Drawings. Payment for yard piping shall be full compensation for excavation; backfilling; furnishing and installing piping; fittings; sleeves; adapters; landscape restoration; concrete and asphalt removal and replacement; clean outs; plugging existing yard piping; locating and connecting to existing yard piping; abandoning existing yard piping; notifying property owner and resident, and obtaining a plumbing permit. Payment shall be at the per linear foot unit price as set forth in the Contract measured, as previously specified.

ITEM 10. FURNISHING AND INSTALLING SEWER FORCE MAINS

The quantity to be paid for shall be the actual number of linear feet of each size, class, and type of pipe actually installed. Measurement shall be made along the horizontal projection of the center line of pipe. No deduction in length shall be made for the space occupied by valves or fittings. Payment for the work shall be at the Contract unit price shown for each respective item and shall be full compensation for the item of work completed, including all required removal of grassing; excavation; dewatering; native soil backfilling; laying and jointing pipe; pressure and leakage testing; potable water (if required); flushing (if required); furnishing and placing steel decking over excavations; all sheeting, shoring, and bracing required to maintain excavations in a safe condition; protecting existing structures, utilities, and property both public and private; placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers and maintaining traffic; record drawings; cleaning up the site; furnishing and installing locate wiring, locate wire test stations, locate wire related appurtenances, and locate wire testing; furnishing all material, labor, tools, and equipment, and all incidental and related work required to complete the work of the item. No additional payment shall be made for vertical deflection of the proposed pipeline to accommodate the installation (minimum required cover) of the gate valves, but all costs shall be merged with the associated line item in the Bid Form. Cost incurred by the Contractor to provide 2-inch fittings associated with any 2-inch pipe work shall not be paid for separately, but shall be included in the cost of furnishing and installing the 2-inch piping.

ITEM 11. FURNISHING AND INSTALLING RECLAIMED WATER PIPELINE

The quantity to be paid for shall be the actual number of linear feet of each size, type, and class of pipe actually installed. Measurement shall be made along the horizontal projection of the center line of pipe. No deduction in length shall be made for the space occupied by valves or fittings. Payment for the work shall be at the Contract unit price shown for each respective item and shall be full compensation for the item of work completed, including all required removal of grassing; excavation; dewatering; native soil backfilling; laying and jointing pipe; pressure and leakage testing; potable water (if required); furnishing and placing steel decking over excavations; all sheeting, shoring, and bracing required to maintain excavations in a safe condition; protecting existing structures, utilities and property both public and private; placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers and maintaining traffic; cleaning up the site; furnishing and installing locate wiring, locate wire test stations locate wire related appurtenances and locate wire testing; furnishing all material, labor, tools, and equipment; record drawings; and all incidental and related work required to complete the work of the item. No additional payment shall be made for vertical deflection of the proposed pipeline to accommodate the installation (minimum required cover) of gate valves, but all costs shall be merged with the associated line item in the Bid Form.

ITEM 12. FURNISHING AND INSTALLING PIPE CASING

The quantity to be paid for shall be the actual number of linear feet of each size casing and method of installation actually installed. Measurement shall be made along the horizontal projection of the center line of the casing. Payment for the work shall be made at the Contract Unit Price and shall be full compensation for the items of work, complete, including casing pipe; all casing spacers; pipe joint restraints and total restraining system required on the carrier pipe; locate wiring; excavation; dewatering; placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers and maintaining traffic; record drawings; and all incidental work required to complete the work including all materials, labor, tools and equipment.

ITEM 13. FURNISHING AND INSTALLING FITTINGS

The quantity to be paid for shall be the actual number of fittings furnished and installed. Payment for the work shall be made at the Contract Unit Price and shall be full compensation for the items of work including furnishing and installing fittings and mechanical restraints at fitting joint, complete and in place, with all necessary incidental work required to complete the work and all materials, labor, tools and equipment.

ITEM 14. FURNISHING AND INSTALLING POLYETHYLENE WRAP

The quantity to be paid for shall be in linear feet of polyethylene wrap actually installed. Measurement shall be made along the horizontal project of the center line of the pipe being wrapped including fittings and valves. Payment for the work shall be made at the Contract Unit Price and shall be full compensation for the items of work, complete, including all incidental work required to complete the work and all materials, labor, tools, and equipment.

ITEM 15. FURNISHING AND INSTALLING PIPE SUPPORTS

The quantity to be paid for shall be the actual number of supports furnished and installed. Payment for the work shall be made at the Contract Unit Price and shall be full compensation for the items of work, complete, including furnishing and installing supports, with all incidental work required to complete the work and all materials, labor, tools, and equipment.

ITEM 16. FURNISHING AND INSTALLING PIPE JOINT RESTRAINT

The quantity to be paid for shall be the actual number of bell restraints or ductile iron pipe (DIP) joint restraint gaskets (or Town-approved restraint device from pipe manufacturer), installed as indicated in the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Restraint Joint Standard Detail, counted in full 20-foot segments extending from the fitting or for carrier piping bell restraints as required. Payment for the work shall be made at the Contract Unit Price and shall be full compensation for the items of work including furnishing and installing the bell restraint, or DIP joint restraint, complete, with all necessary incidental work required, including all materials, labor, and equipment. No payment shall be made for thrust restraints used for the Contractor's convenience in addition to the bell restraints called for in the Restraint Joint Schedules.

ITEM 17. FURNISHING AND INSTALLING THRUST COLLAR

If thrust collar (dead man) is used instead of bell restraints, tie rods to length indicated on the in the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Restraint Joint Standard Detail on dead end pipelines, payment shall be for each thrust collar installed (by size of pipe).

ITEM 18. FURNISHING AND INSTALLING VALVES

The quantity to be paid shall be the actual number of units of each size and type valve furnished and installed. Payment for the work shall be made at the Contract Unit Price and shall be full compensation for the item of work including furnishing and installing the valve, complete, with all required excavation and backfill, necessary jointing, adapter pieces, blind flanges (if required), concrete supports (if applicable), mechanical restraints at valve; nuts, bolts, socket clamps, sleeves; valve box and cover, valve tags, valve keys, valve stem extension (if applicable), tracing wire, debris shield, placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers and maintaining traffic, furnishing all material, labor, tools, and equipment, flushing, performing hydrostatic and leakage testing, ground surface restoration, and all incidental and related work required to complete the item. For high-density polyethylene (HDPE) installations, payment shall also include mechanical or flange connection joint adapters and associated electro-fused couplings.

ITEM 19. FURNISHING AND INSTALLING TAPPING SLEEVES AND VALVES The quantity to be paid for shall be the actual number of units of each size furnished and installed. Payment for the work shall be made at the Contract Unit Price for each respective item and shall be full compensation for the item of work, complete, with all necessary excavation and backfill; jointing; adapter pieces; concrete supports (if

applicable), mechanical restraints at valve; nuts, bolts, socket clamps, sleeves; valve box, valve box extension (if applicable) and valve box cover; debris shield; placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers and maintaining traffic; record drawings; furnishing all material, labor, tools, and equipment; performing flushing and hydrostatic and leakage testing, and all incidental and related work required to complete the item. For HDPE installations, payment shall also include mechanical or flange connection joint adapters and associated electro-fused couplings.

ITEM 20. FURNISHING AND INSTALLING VALVES OR FITTINGS IN EXISTING PIPELINES

The quantity to be paid shall be the actual number of each size and type valve or fitting furnished and installed. Payment for the work shall be made at the Contract Unit Price for each respective valve and shall be full compensation for the item of work, complete, including all required excavation; backfill; shutting down and de-watering the pipelines; bypass pumping; cutting openings in the pipelines to accept the new valve or fitting and removing, stockpiling, or otherwise disposing of the existing pipe section or existing valve or fitting removed; furnishing and installing the new valve or fitting; furnishing and installing all necessary pipe, couplings, sleeves, pipe adapters, concrete supports, mechanical restraints on valve or fitting, nuts, bolts, glands, socket clamps; furnishing and installing access box and cover; valve box extension (if applicable); furnishing all material, labor, tools, and equipment; and all incidental and related work required to complete the work of the item.

ITEM 21. FURNISHING AND INSTALLING AIR VALVES

The quantity to be paid shall be the actual number of air valve assemblies (as detailed) furnished and installed. Payment shall be made at the Contract Unit Price for each air valve assembly in manhole (and not in manhole) and shall be full compensation for the item of work, complete, including all excavation; backfill; tapping or cutting opening in pipelines; furnishing and installing air valve with all required appurtenances, manhole with specialty liner, frame and cover or aluminum door, all piping fittings and valves (gate, corp. stops, etc.) between air valve and main, saddle, sleeve, or tee fitting in main, all material, labor, tools, and equipment, and all incidental and related work to complete the air valve assembly and associated piping between the air valve and the main.

ITEM 22. MANHOLES

Manholes shall be paid per foot of depth at the respective manhole diameter unit price. The price shall include the cost of necessary excavation, backfill, table and invert, castings, steps, frames, and covers, testing and incidental work required for satisfactory installation of the manhole. Depth of Manholes shall be paid for at the unit price per foot measured from the invert at the center of manhole to the bottom of the frame, and shall include the cost of necessary excavation and incidental work necessary of complete installation of manholes.

ITEM 23. INSIDE MANHOLE DROPS

Shall be paid for at the unit price for each drop manhole. The price shall include the cost of the manhole pipe, fittings, and straps.

ITEM 24. TIE-INS

Tie-ins to existing manholes shall be paid per occurrence and include all work necessary to excavate, break into existing manhole, rebuild invert, re-grout manhole walls, and other incidental work necessary for satisfactory connection to the existing system.

ITEM 25. SUBMERSIBLE SEWAGE PUMPING STATIONS

The Contractor's lump sum bid shall constitute full compensation for the work necessary for satisfactory completion of pump station as shown on the Contract Drawings, including, but not limited to, wet well, pumps, standby power generator if applicable, piping, electrical and controls, security fencing of the construction area, tree removal, clearing and grubbing as required, grassing of disturbed areas, reinforced concrete driveway and site slab, all electrical conduit and service conductor to the service pole unless other established/indicated boundary is indicated. Lump sum price includes the work and improvements inside the landscape zone and those items listed above which are outside the landscape zone (including driveway, sod work, underground, power conduit, water service and associated service piping, etc.).

ITEM 26. JACK-AND-BORE MOBILIZATION AND SETUP

Jack-and-bore mobilization and set up shall only be paid for 6-inch-diameter and larger carrier pipe. Only one Jack-and-Bore Mobilization and Setup Bid Unit Price shall be paid for each road crossing actually constructed. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, and services necessary to complete the jack-and-bore mobilization and set up for the jack-and-bores as shown on the Drawings in accordance with the Contract Documents, including but not limited to mobilization, jacking pits as required on each side, dewatering, any temporary fencing, excavation, backfill, compaction, grading, testing, sodding/seeding.

ITEM 27. JACK-AND-BORE

The Contractor shall be paid for each linear foot of carrier casing installed complete. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, and services necessary to complete the jack-and-bore crossings as shown on the Drawings in accordance with the Contract Documents, including but not limited to casing pipe, casing spacers, end seals, and installing carrier pipe in the casing.

ITEM 28. DIRECTIONAL DRILLING HDPE LINE

The quantity to be paid for shall be the actual number of linear feet of each size and class of pipe actually installed and tested complete. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, and services for constructing and placing into operation the horizontal directional drill (HDD) installed as shown on the Drawings or as otherwise specified in accordance with the Contract Documents, including but not limited to bore

pits, pipe, bore, reaming, back-reaming, slurry, slurry relief holes, installing the pipe in the bore, connections, fittings and transition couplings, HDPE reducers, removing or avoiding obstructions in the path of the HDPE pipe, excavation, backfill, compaction, sodding/seeding, dirt drive restoration, testing, and all associated appurtenances. Concrete, asphalt, or limestone repairs required for the HDD installation shall be paid under their corresponding Bid Unit Price items.

ITEM 29. ASPHALT CONCRETE RESTORATION

The Contractor shall be paid for each square yard of asphalt concrete restoration installed complete as measured in place. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, and services for constructing the asphalt restorations as shown on the Drawings in accordance with the Contract Documents, including but not limited to removing and disposing of existing asphalt, surface preparation, earth work, grading, fill, backfill, prime and tack coats, leveling (where required), asphalt pavement, striping, marking, reflectors, and related appurtenances to the satisfaction of the Town and permitting agencies. Trench width shall be paid according to the Specifications and detail widths.

ITEM 30. MILLING ROADWAY

The Contractor shall be paid for each square yard milled complete as agreed in writing before the work shall begin. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, and services for milling the existing asphalt roadway surface as shown on the Drawings in accordance with the Contract Documents and as directed in writing by the Town or Engineer of Record, including but not limited to milling or grinding of the road surface to a minimum depth of 1 inch or as shown on the Drawings, removing and disposing of existing asphalt, surface preparation, sweeping, and related appurtenances, all maintenance of traffic (MOT) plan and Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) permit requirements, flagmen, jersey concrete barriers, signage, temporary facilities, and local notifications to the satisfaction of the permitting agencies. Asphalt areas or paved areas that are removed for pipe installation shall not be paid for milling.

ITEM 31. ASPHALT CONCRETE OVERLAY

The Contractor shall be paid for each square yard of asphalt concrete overlay installed complete. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, and services for constructing the asphalt overlay as shown on the Drawings in accordance with the Contract Documents and as directed in writing by the Town or Engineer of Record, including but not limited to surface preparation, temporary pavement, prime and tack coats, leveling (where required), asphalt pavement, base course, stabilization, any MOT plan and FDOT permit requirements, flagmen, jersey concrete barriers, signage, temporary facilities, local notifications, concrete paving, excavation, backfill, compaction, striping, marking, reflectors, and related appurtenances, to the satisfaction of the Town and permitting agencies.

ITEM 32. CONCRETE RESTORATION

The Contractor shall be paid for each square yard of concrete restoration installed complete. Curbing shall be paid 1 square yard (SY) for each 3 linear feet (LF) repaired. The Town shall not pay for curbing or sidewalk that the Contractor could have saved using reasonable care and precautions. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, and services for constructing the concrete pavement, pavers, brick pavement, sidewalks, and curbing restorations as shown on the Drawings in accordance with the Contract Documents, including but not limited to removing and disposing of existing materials, surface preparation, earthwork, grading, fill, backfill, reinforcement, concrete, pavers, brick, testing, and all associated appurtenances. The Contractor shall match the existing grade, thickness, reinforcing, and finishes.

ITEM 33. RECORD DRAWINGS

Once the Record Drawings have been determined to be complete according to the Specification requirements, the entire unit price shall be paid to the Contractor. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, and services for composing and providing Record Drawings in accordance with the Contract Documents, including but not limited to updating the electronic copy of the Drawings, identifying items that were revised during the project or addenda, having all Drawings signed and sealed by a Florida-certified Professional Engineer or land surveyor, and providing signed and sealed paper copies of the Record Drawings.

ITEM 34. GRANULAR BACKFILL

The quantity of granular material and AASHTO A-3 soil used for backfill (including bedding) below and/or above the normal grade measured for payment shall be the same as the number of cubic yards of unsuitable material ordered removed. Computation shall be based on applicable trench sections as specified below. Length shall be equal to the horizontal distance between vertical planes representing the average ends of the granular materials as placed in the trench, or to pay line limits of an intermediate structure as shown on the Contract Drawings or as required and to a depth equal to the average depth of the unsuitable material removed. Computation shall be based on computed volume of unsuitable material ordered removed, less the volume associated with any utility mains over 12 inches in diameter. Native material suitable for use as backfill shall be separated from unsuitable material and stockpiled for use on the Project. No measurement for payment shall be made outside of the pay line width. Actual trench dimensions less than defined as maximum herein, shall be used when applicable. Unless approved otherwise by the Town or Engineer of Record, the quantity calculation for granular material and A-3 soil used for the roadway construction (sub-base, and base) shall be excluded (temporary and/or permanent use) from this pay item.

a. For excavations 5 feet or less in depth and pipe diameters of 4 inches and greater shall be based on vertical side walls, maximum trench width of 3 feet for pipe diameters up to 12 inches. For pipe diameters larger than 12 inches, trench width shall be the pipe diameter plus 2 feet, in 6-inch

increments. Trench width for pipe diameters smaller than 4 inches shall be 2 feet with vertical side walls.

- b. Excavations greater than 5 feet in depth, where no trench box or other protection is used, shall be based on a trench bottom width equal to the pipe diameter plus 2 feet, in 6-inch increments, minimum width shall be 3 feet. Trench side walls shall be vertical from the trench bottom to a height of 5 feet. Remaining trench wall shall be sloped to grade 1 to 1.5, vertical to horizontal.
- c. Excavations greater than 5 feet in depth and using a trench box shall have a maximum trench box width of 8 feet. Trench side walls shall be vertical from the trench bottom to a height of 5 feet, or top of trench box, whichever is greater. The remaining trench wall shall be sloped to a grade of 1 to 1.5, vertical to horizontal.
- d. When roadway replacement is indicated, unsuitable fill material replacement measurement for roadway bedding shall be made for a cross-section 2 feet below the sub-grade and extending to 1 foot beyond outside edge of pavement or curbing. Applicable trench section widths, as specified herein, shall be measured below the roadway bedding.
- e. Maximum measurement for unsuitable fill material disposal and replacement for structures shall be based on an excavation extending 3 feet from the outside wall or bottom slab projection of the structure. Unprotected excavation walls shall be vertical from the bottom of the structure to a height of 5 feet. Remaining trench wall shall be sloped to grade 1 to 1.5, vertical to horizontal.
- f. Granular material used to backfill unauthorized excavation or for any temporary drainage proposed shall not be measured for payment.
- g. The unit price per cubic yard as set forth in the Contract for AASHTO Class A-3 soil used as backfill shall constitute full compensation for removal from the job site and disposal of all unsuitable material and furnishing, placing and compacting backfill as specified herein. The cost of excavation of unsuitable backfill and dewatering shall be included with the regular cost of pipe installation.

ITEM 35. FLOWABLE BACKFILL

Flowable fill in accordance with FDOT Index 307 shall be used as backfill as noted on the Drawings or in accordance to FDOT permit conditions, and shall be paid for at the unit price allowed in the Bid Form for flowable fill. Flowable fill shall be measured in cubic yards. Flowable fill used to backfill in areas unauthorized by the Town shall not be

measured for payment. The unit price per cubic yard as allowed in the Bid Form for flowable fill used as backfill shall constitute full compensation for removal and disposal of material from the project site, and includes furnishing and installing flowable fill, complete with temporary backfill and steel plates covering the trench. The maximum quantity of flowable fill used for backfill for utilities shall be computed based on the limits as shown on the Drawings or, if no limits noted, on the trench configuration outlined in the Measurement and Payment Item 34, Granular Backfill, less the volume associated with any utility mains.

ITEM 36. GRASSING

The unit price per square yard as set forth in the Contract Documents for sodding, sprigging, or seeding and mulching shall constitute full compensation for furnishing and installing, fertilizing and maintaining, the sodding, sprigging, or seeding and mulching. If a planted area must be replanted due to the Contractor's negligence, excessive amount of damage for type of construction, or failure to provide routine maintenance of the area, such replacement shall be at the Contractor's expense.

ITEM 37. EXISTING PAVEMENT – ASPHALT OVERLAY

Measurement shall be made for the actual square yards of asphalt overlay installed (minimum of 1 inch final overlay thickness). Payment shall be made for the actual square yards of asphalt installed and shall be full compensation for the asphalt paving installed complete including all temporary and permanent pavement markings; placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers; MOT; cleaning up the site and furnish all labor, material, and equipment. Required thickness of asphalt shall be 1 inch final overlay thickness (minimum) unless noted otherwise on the Contract Documents or Drawings.

ITEM 38. EXISTING PAVEMENT – MILLING AND RESURFACING

Milling and resurfacing of asphalt surfaces shall be performed with prior approval of the Town, and in accordance with the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Standards or the FDOT Standard Specifications and Details. Measurement shall be the amount of square yards to be milled and resurfaced within the limits shown on the Drawings. Payment shall be for the actual number of square yards of asphalt surface that is milled and replaced with new asphalt mix (1 inch minimum thickness) including all temporary and permanent pavement markings (MOT), markers, signing, delineators, buttons, stripe, placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers, maintenance of traffic, clean up at the site, and furnishing all labor, material, and equipment.

ITEM 39. REMOVAL OF SIDEWALK

Payment for the removal of sidewalk shall be at the square yard unit price set forth in the Contract Documents and shall include and be full compensation for complete removal and disposal of sidewalk, including handicap ramps, placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers and maintaining traffic. Payment for sidewalk removal shall be the actual square yards of sidewalk removed with a maximum corresponding to the nearest construction joint unless indicated otherwise.

ITEM 40. REMOVAL OF DRIVEWAY

Payment for the removal of driveway shall be at the square yard unit price set forth in the Contract Documents for either asphalt or concrete driveway removal. Payment shall include and be full compensation for complete removal and disposal of driveway including placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers and maintaining traffic. Payment for driveway removal shall be the actual square yards of driveway removed with a maximum corresponding to the nearest construction joint unless indicated otherwise.

ITEM 41. REMOVAL OF CURB AND GUTTER

Payment for the removal of curb and gutter shall be at the linear foot unit price set forth in the Contract Documents and shall include and be full compensation for complete removal and disposal of curb and gutter including placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers and maintaining traffic. Payment for curb and gutter removal shall be the actual linear feet of curb and gutter removed with a maximum corresponding to the nearest construction joint unless indicated otherwise.

ITEM 42. INSTALLATION OF SIDEWALK

Payment for the installation of sidewalk (including handicap ramps) shall be at the square yard unit price set forth in the Contract Documents and shall include preparation and construction of new sidewalk including forming and vibrating (if required), placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers and maintaining traffic. Payment for the sidewalk shall be the actual square yards of sidewalk installed with a maximum corresponding to the nearest construction joint unless indicated otherwise. Sidewalk installation shall include handicap ramps. No separate pay item for construction of handicap ramps. No payment shall be made for sidewalk through concrete driveways.

ITEM 43. INSTALLATION OF DRIVEWAYS

Payment for the installation of driveways shall be at the square yard unit price set forth in the Contract Documents for the type of driveway to be installed. If directed by the Town or Engineer of Record, the Contractor shall furnish and install a concrete apron for all existing dirt and aggregate driveways. Payment shall include preparation and construction of driveway including forming and vibrating (if required), placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers and maintaining traffic. Payment for driveway shall be the actual square yards of each type of driveway installed with a maximum corresponding to the nearest construction joint unless indicated otherwise or as directed by the Town or Engineer of Record.

ITEM 44. INSTALLATION OF CURB AND GUTTER

Payment for the installation of curb and gutter shall be at the linear foot unit price set forth in the Contract Documents for the type of curb and gutter to be installed. Payment shall include preparation and construction of curb and gutter including forming and vibrating (if required), placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers, and maintaining traffic. Payment for curb and gutter shall be the actual linear feet of each

type of curb and gutter installed with a maximum corresponding to the nearest construction joint unless indicated otherwise.

ITEM 45. FENCING

Payment shall include removal and disposal of existing fencing system (if applicable); the furnishing, preparation, and installation of new fence and gates as required in the Contract Documents. Payment for fencing shall be the actual linear feet of each size and type of fencing installed as indicated on the Contract Documents. Payments for gates shall be at the unit price for each size and type actually installed as indicated on the Contract Documents.

ITEM 46. CONNECTION TO EXISTING SEWAGE MANHOLE

Payment for standard connections, drop connections, service lateral connections, and force main connections to existing manholes shall be at the unit price set forth in the Contract Documents for the size and type of connection. The unit price shall constitute compensation in full for each connection actually furnished and installed including excavation; native soil backfill; compaction; coring; piping; fittings; rubber boot or sand sleeve; grouting and repair to existing manhole wall section; placing and removing all traffic signs and barriers and maintaining traffic plus all incidental work including all labor, materials, tools, and equipment.

ITEM 47. GENERATOR AND ELECTRICAL FACILITIES

The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, and services for constructing and placing into operation the generator, automatic transfer switch, fuel tank, transformers, electrical power service, electrical shown on the Drawings in accordance with the Contract Documents, including but not limited to all electrical wires, conduit, duct banks, instrumentation, SCADA system, telemetry path study (if applicable), site lighting, controls, testing, and related appurtenances. The Contractor shall be paid by the lump sum for the generator and electrical facilities installed complete.

PART 2 PRODUCTS (NOT USED)

PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION

SECTION 4 RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND EASEMENTS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

A. This Section covers the requirements and work pertaining to the rights-of-way and easements necessary for the construction of the project.

1.02 WORK ON RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND EASEMENTS

- A. The Town will obtain all land and rights-of-way necessary for all work under this contract. If all land and rights-of-way are not obtained before construction begins, the Contractor shall start work only upon such land and rights-of-way previously obtained by the Town, and no claims for damages will be allowed because of such delay. If the Town is unable, for any reason, to obtain the land and rights-of-way necessary for the work, the contract time will be extended as required to cover the time lost by such delay. The Contractor shall secure copies of all applicable right-of-way plats to be kept at the job site during construction.
- B. The Contractor shall confine his construction operations to the immediate vicinity of the location shown on the Drawings and in no case shall the Contractor encroach beyond the limits of the Town's property or rights-of-way. The exact location of the rights-of-way limits shall be shown on the rights-of-way plats which will be furnished to the Contractor. The Contractor shall place materials, equipment, supplies, etc., so as to cause the least possible damage to property and interference with traffic. His method of operation and placing of equipment shall be subject to the approval of the Engineer of Record. Any damage done to property outside the rights-of-way limits shall be the financial responsibility of the Contractor. Any vehicular access to right-of-way which crosses private property shall be by written permission of the property owner with copy of same provided to the Town Inspector.
- C. It shall be the duty of the Contractor to locate the limits of the rights-of-way, or property lines, before beginning construction. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for any damage to trees, crops, or other property outside the boundaries of the rights-of-way and shall make satisfactory settlement for any damage directly with the property owner involved.
- D. Clearing and Grubbing. The Contractor shall consult with the Town and Engineer of Record before beginning clearing and a full understanding is to be reached as to procedure. The Contractor shall then conduct clearing and grubbing operations

in strict accordance with these agreements, the specifications herein and Specification Section 5, Temporary and Permanent Erosion and Sedimentation Control.

- 1. Clearing and grubbing along pipelines shall be done before pipe installation. Where a temporary construction easement is obtained, clearing shall be limited to that which is absolutely necessary for construction of the project. The entire permanent right-of-way shall be cleared and grubbed, unless otherwise noted. All timber cut shall be completely removed and disposed of by the Contractor within 10 days, unless otherwise noted on the Drawings.
- 2. Grubbing of stumps shall be done in any convenient manner satisfactory to the Engineer of Record and which will not cause damage to the remaining trees or adjacent property. No burying of construction debris will be allowed in right-of-way limits. If burying is done outside right-of-way limits, written permission from the property owner must be obtained.
- 3. Minor structures within rights-of-way limits shall be removed and disposed of as directed by the Engineer of Record. Fences shall be removed as required by construction and replaced to property owners' satisfaction with materials as good as or better than that which was removed. Temporary fencing, as required, shall be installed to property owners' satisfaction until permanent fencing can be erected.
- 4. Burning of cleared material shall be accomplished in strict compliance with all applicable Local, State, and Federal regulations pertaining to open burning and smoke abatement. The Contractor shall contact the local Fire Department for a burning permit.

1.03 WORK ON STATE AND COUNTY HIGHWAYS OR ROADS, TOWN OR TOWN ROADS OR STREETS, RAILROAD, AND OTHER UTILITY RIGHTS-OF-WAY

A. The Contractor shall not begin excavation, grading, fill, storm drainage, paving, and any other construction or installations on any property or in any right-of-way of streets, highways, public carrier lines, utility lines (either aerial, surface, or subsurface), etc., until the necessary permits are secured. The Contractor shall conform to all requirements of the authorities having jurisdiction and to the applicable requirements of the specifications. The Contractor shall make all necessary arrangements with the proper authorities, including approval of construction methods, etc., and shall pay all costs charged in connection with work. The Contractor shall notify the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) at least 48 hours in advance of any work performed on State roads and

- shall notify Lake County at least 24 hours in advance of any work performed on County roads in accordance with the respective permits.
- В. The Contractor shall provide full time flagmen, with appropriate red flags, at all times when work is in progress along highways. Suitable warning and descriptive signs shall be placed at each end of the working area while work is in progress along highways. These signs shall be well tended, and shall be placed at sufficient distances from the work so that ample warning is given to approaching traffic. Signs shall be adequately lighted at night. During construction, all safety regulations of the FDOT shall be observed and the Contractor must take measures, including placing and the display of safety devices that may be necessary in order to safely conduct the public through the project area in accordance with the Federal Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD), as amended for highways, the requirements of the Standard Application Package for railways, including flagging services and Railroad Protective Insurance or acceptable alternative, when applicable, and the FDOT's Design Standards, Indexes 600-670, and Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, Section 102, as amended by the Utility Accommodation Manual (UAM). When the Contractor deems it necessary to conduct traffic control activities and methods significantly different from those addressed in the above references, the Contractor must submit to the Town an alternative plan signed and sealed by a licensed Florida Professional Engineer qualified to develop a Traffic Control Plan in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 8 of the UAM and the plan must be approved by the state (FDOT) or local entity (Town or County) before implementation.
- C. Where pipe is installed in open cut across a highway, the cut shall be immediately backfilled and all work of repairing the pavement completed within the same week that it is cut. The Contractor shall keep at least one full lane open for traffic at all times. Any subsequent settlement shall be immediately corrected and repaired.
- D. Where a pipeline crossing under a highway is installed within casing pipe, the casing pipe shall be provided as specified in Section 9, Boring, Jacking, and Tunneling.
- E. Unless otherwise indicated, no excavated material shall be placed on the pavement side of the ditch along highways. The least possible amount of ditch shall be left open when work is not in progress, and equipment shall be removed from the pavement and shoulders during shutdown periods. Shoulders of roadways shall be left in good acceptable condition, and all disturbed topsoil and grass shall be replaced.

- F. The Contractor shall not begin work on any property of any railroad until the Town has secured necessary permits. The Contractor shall conform to all requirements of the railroad, or its authorized representatives, in the construction of this portion of the work.
 - 1. The Contractor shall also pay the cost of flagmen, inspections, or other expenses of the railroad in protecting rail or vehicular traffic. The Contractor shall notify the railroad of the time that the work will be done and shall not begin work until authorized by railroad officials.

1.04 RESTORATION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY

- A. During construction, the Contractor shall maintain the site and adjacent public and private property, including streets and highways, free from accumulations of waste debris, rubbish, and dirt caused by his operations. Dry materials and rubbish shall be wet down as necessary to prevent blowing dust.
- B. Immediately after completion of the work, or any substantial unit or portion of it, the Contractor shall remove all unused material, refuse, and dirt placed by him in the vicinity of the work and shall leave the premises in a neat and orderly condition, satisfactory to the Engineer of Record.
- C. The right-of-way shall be restored to original or better condition. Horizontal benches shall be provided to facilitate access to the site and shall be located where directed by the Engineer of Record and the Town. Fill material, where required, shall be free of grass, roots, rock, and other objectionable material and shall be spread evenly and properly compacted. The entire right-of-way shall be graded, dressed off, and cleaned up to the satisfaction of the Engineer of Record, Town, and property owner, where applicable.
 - 1. Where work is along streets or highways and dirt has been placed on the pavement, the pavement shall be swept clean of all dirt after backfill has been completed.
 - 2. <u>Site</u>: The Contractor shall clean up behind the work as much as is reasonably possible as the work progresses, but in no case shall the pipelaying operation be more than 1,000 feet ahead of complete cleanup. Upon completion of the work and before acceptance of the Final Payment for the project by the Town, the Contractor shall remove all his surplus and discarded materials, excavated material, and rubbish from the roadways, sidewalks, parking areas, lawns, and all adjacent property; shall restore, in an acceptable manner, all property, both public and private, which has been disturbed or damaged during the prosecution of

the work; and shall leave the whole site in a neat and presentable condition.

- 3. Except where specifically directed otherwise by the property owner, the entire construction right-of-way shall be provided with a permanent grass cover within 30 days after backfilling. Topsoil shall be replaced and seed planted or sod placed, fertilized, and watered until a grass cover satisfactory to the Engineer and property owner is obtained. If necessary, a temporary grass cover shall be provided until a permanent cover can be established. Grassing shall be as specified in Section 7, Grassing and Sodding. If required by the property owner, shrubbery shall be replaced to the satisfaction of the Engineer of Record and the property owner.
- PART 2 PRODUCTS (NOT USED)
- PART 3 EXECUTION (NOT USED)

END OF SECTION

SECTION 5 TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. This Section does not stand alone and is incorporated as part of Town Construction Specification Manual (CSM). The CSM shall be used for other requirements that may not be covered in this Section.
- B. The Contractor shall take every reasonable precaution throughout construction to prevent the erosion of soil and the sedimentation of streams, bays, storm systems, or other water impoundments, ground surfaces, or other property as required by Federal, State, and Local regulations. Within this Section various best management practices (BMPs) are presented with instructions for their use, however implementation according to this Section is no guarantee of success, nor shall it be a constraint to prevent the use of other more efficient or cost effective measures. Additional resources for BMPs include: The Florida Stormwater, Erosion, and Sedimentation control Inspector's Manual, and Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Standard Specifications.
- C. The work shown on the approved Drawings shall be considered a minimum requirement. What is shown shall not relieve the Contractor of the responsibility to actively take all steps necessary to control soil erosion and sedimentation. The erosion and sedimentation control work includes, but is not limited to the following basic principles:
 - 1. Conduct the earthwork and excavation activities in such a manner to fit the topography, soil type, and condition.
 - 2. Minimize the disturbed area and the duration of exposure to erosion elements.
 - 3. Stabilize disturbed areas immediately.
 - 4. Safely convey run-off from the site to an outlet such that erosion shall not be increased off site.
 - 5. Retain sediment on site that was generated on site.
 - 6. Minimize encroachment upon watercourses.

- D. Temporary Erosion and Sedimentation Control: In general, temporary erosion and sedimentation control procedures shall be directed toward:
 - 1. Preventing soil erosion at the source.
 - 2. Preventing silt and sediment from entering any waterway if soil erosion cannot be prevented.
 - 3. Preventing silt and sediment from migrating downstream in the event it cannot be prevented from entering the waterway.
- E. Permanent Erosion Control: Permanent erosion control measures shall be implemented to prevent sedimentation to the waterways and to prevent erosion to the Project site.
- F. The latest FDOT standards shall apply if not specifically addressed in the Town's CSM and Details.

1.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. <u>General</u>: Perform all work under this Section in accordance with all pertinent Federal, State, and Local rules and regulations.
- B. <u>Conflicts</u>: Where provisions of pertinent rules and regulations conflict with these Specifications, the more stringent provisions shall govern.
- C. The Contractor shall submit a written plan to the Town or Engineer of Record for both temporary and permanent grassing. The plan shall include selection of species, dates, and rates of application for seeding, fertilizing, and mulching and shall be in accordance with Section 7, Grassing and Sodding.
- D. The Contractor shall create a regular inspection and maintenance program for all the BMPs implemented.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

A. Silt fence shall be FDOT Index #102 filter fabric in accordance with Section 985 of the FDOT standard specifications, manufactured in accordance with the Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM, and supported by wood posts as shown in the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Standard Details.

- B. Floating turbidity barriers shall be in accordance with the Town CSM Details.
- C. Netting shall be 1/2 inch, galvanized steel, chicken wire mesh.
- D. Grass shall be in accordance with Section 7, Grassing and Sodding.
- E. Mulch shall be straw, consisting of oats, rye, or wheat straw, or a Pangola, Peanut, or Bermuda. Mulch shall be free from undesirable weed and other undesirable grasses.
- F. Lime shall be Dolomitic Agricultural Ground limestone, in accordance with FDOT Section 982.
- G. Filter Fabric shall meet the requirements of FDOT Section 985.
- H. Rock bags shall be placed as shown in the Drawings, or as directed by the Town or Town's Representative. Use a fabric material with openings that are clearly visible to minimize clogging yet small enough to prevent rock loss. Use material of sufficient strength to allow removing and relocating bags without breakage. The bag size when filled with rocks shall be approximately 12 by 12 by 4 inches. Use No. 4 or No. 5 coarse aggregate rock.
- I. Plywood shall be 3/4 inch thick exterior type.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION

A. General

- 1. Permanent erosion and sediment control measures shall be installed and maintained at the earliest practical time consistent with good constructions practices. One of the first construction activities should be the placement of permanent and temporary erosion and sediment control measures around the perimeter of the project or the initial work area to protect the project, adjacent properties, and water resources.
- 2. Temporary erosion and sediment control measures shall be coordinated with permanent measures to assure economical, effective, and continuous control through the construction phase. Temporary measures shall not be constructed for expediency in lieu of permanent measures. Temporary measures shall be regularly maintained by the Contractor. After rainfall events, the Contractor shall inspect and repair any damage caused during such rainfall event.

- 3. Construct any stormwater systems required before any building or road construction is started. Protect stormwater system from silting and debris. Protect swale bottom from sealing by excavating all silt deposits during construction and before seeding, mulching, and sodding is finished.
- 4. Avoid dumping soil or sediment into any stream bed, pond, ditch, or watercourse.
- 5. Maintain an undisturbed vegetative buffer where possible between a natural watercourse and trenching and grading operations.
- 6. Avoid equipment crossings of streams, creeks, and ditches where practicable.
- 7. Clearing: The Contractor shall schedule and perform clearing and grubbing in such a manner that subsequent grading operation and erosion control practices can follow immediately thereafter. Excavation, borrow, and embankment operations shall be conducted as a continuous operation. All construction areas not otherwise protected shall be planted with permanent vegetative cover within 30 working days after completion of active construction.
- 8. Stabilizing: The angle for graded slopes and fills shall be no greater than the angle that can be retained by vegetative cover or other adequate erosion-control devices or structures. All disturbed areas outside of embankment left exposed shall, within 30 working days of completion of any phase of grading, be planted or otherwise provided with either temporary or permanent ground cover, devices, or structures sufficient to restrain erosion.
- 9. If any earthwork is to be suspended for any reason for longer than 30 calendar days, the areas involved shall be seeded with vegetative cover or otherwise protected against excessive erosion during the suspension period. Suspension of work in any area of operation does not relieve the Contractor of the responsibility for the control of erosion in that area.
- B. Temporary Erosion and Sedimentation Control
 - 1. Temporary erosion and sedimentation control devices shall be installed and maintained from the initial land disturbance activity until the satisfactory completion and establishment of permanent erosion control measures. At that time, temporary devices shall be removed.

- 2. Temporary erosion and sedimentation control procedures should be initially directed toward preventing silt and sediment from entering waterbodies.
- 3. The Contractor shall maintain an undisturbed natural buffer, extending a minimal 5 feet from the top of the bank of a waterbody, to filter the runoff. Should this buffer prove infeasible due to construction activities being too close to the creek, or if the amount of sediment overwhelms the buffer, the Contractor shall place silt fences to filter the run-off and, if necessary, take additional measures to stabilize the waterbody banks. When excavation activities disturb the previously stated preventative measures, or if they are not maintained, or whenever the construction activities cross the waterbodies, check dams shall be installed downstream and within 200 feet of the affected area.
- 4. Filter fabric or other approved methods shall be placed and secured over the grates of each existing inlet, grating, or storm pipe opening near the area of excavation to prevent silt and debris from entering the storm systems.
- 5. The Contractor shall use silt fences and floating turbidity barriers as shown on the Drawings or as directed by the Town or Engineer of Record, or as required to restrict movement of sediment from the site.
- 6. The Contractor shall establish vegetative cover on all unpaved areas disturbed by the work in accordance to Section 7, Grassing and Sodding.
- 7. The Contractor shall use mulch for temporary stabilization of areas subject to excessive erosion and for protection of seed beds after planting where required.
- C. Permanent Erosion Control: Permanent erosion control shall include:
 - 1. Permanent erosion control measures shall be implemented as soon as practical after the <u>completion</u> of pipe installation or land disturbance for each segment of the Project. In no event shall implementation be postponed when no further activities related to pipe installation shall impact that portion or segment of the Project. Partial payment requests may be withheld for those portions of the Project not complying with this requirement.
 - 2. Restoring the work site to its original contours, unless shown otherwise on the Drawings or directed by the Town or Engineer of Record.

3. Permanent vegetative cover shall be performed in accordance with Section 7, Grassing and Sodding.

3.02 MAINTENANCE AND REMOVAL

- A. The Contractor shall maintain all temporary and permanent erosion-control measures in functioning order. Silt dams, silt fences, traps, barriers, check dams, appurtenances, and other temporary measures and devices shall be maintained until no longer needed, and shall then be removed. Dislodged filter stone shall be replaced with new materials. Detention ponds, if constructed, shall be maintained in a condition ensuring that unfiltered water shall not leave the pond. Grassed areas shall be maintained until completion of the project. Areas which fail to show a suitable stand of grass or which are damaged by erosion shall be immediately repaired. No additional payment shall be made to the Contractor for the reestablishment of erosion-control devices, which may become damaged, destroyed, or otherwise rendered unsuitable for their intended function during the construction of the project.
- B. The Contractor shall remove all silt, sediment, and debris buildup regularly to maintain functioning storm systems and erosion-control devices.
- C. All erosion and sedimentation control devices, including check dams, shall be inspected by the Contractor at least weekly and after each rainfall occurrence and cleaned out and repaired by the Contractor as necessary.
- D. Material from sediment traps shall not be stockpiled or disposed of in a manner which makes them readily susceptible to being washed into any watercourse by runoff or high water.
- E. Necessary repairs to erosion and sediment control devices or replacement of erosion and sediment control devices shall be accomplished promptly.
- F. Near completion of the project, when directed by the Town or Engineer of Record, the Contractor shall dismantle and remove the temporary devices used for sediment control during construction. All erosion-control devices in seeded areas shall be left in place until the grass is established.
- G. The Contractor shall clean up all areas at the completion of the project. Any sediment deposits remaining in place after the barriers are no longer required shall be dressed to conform to the existing grade, prepared and seeded in accordance with Section 7, Grassing and Sodding.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 6 UTILITY EXCAVATION, TRENCHING, AND BACKFILLING

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. This Section does not stand alone and is incorporated as part of the Town Construction Specification Manual (CSM). The CSM shall be used for other requirements that may not be covered in this Section.
- B. The provisions set forth in this Section shall be applicable to all underground potable water, wastewater, reclaimed water, and stormwater piping installations, regardless of location, unless prior approval is received from the Town for special design consideration.
- C. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to acquaint himself/herself with all existing conditions and to locate all structures and utilities along the proposed utility alignment in order to avoid conflicts. The Contractor shall examine the site before submitting a bid, taking into consideration all conditions that may affect the work.
- D. Where actual conflicts are unavoidable, work shall be coordinated with the Town and performed so as to cause as little interference as possible with the service rendered by the Town disturbed.
- E. The Contractor is responsible for providing all materials, equipment, labor, and work necessary to construct the project in accordance with the Contract Documents. This work includes but is not limited to the following:
 - 1. Excavating and removing unsatisfactory materials.
 - 2. Preparing trench foundations.
 - 3. Providing satisfactory material for all trenches as specified and as required.
 - 4. Obtaining, storing, maintaining, and disposing of materials.
 - 5. Dewatering, shoring, and sheeting.
 - 6. Placing, compacting, testing, final grading, and subgrade demolition.
 - 7. Performing all other work required by the Contract Documents.
- F. The Contractor is responsible for performing all work so as not to damage existing roadways, facilities, utilities, structures, etc., and shall repair and replace such damage to equal or better than its original undamaged condition without cost to the Town.

- G. The Contractor shall coordinate all additional subsurface investigations and testing included with this work with the Engineer of Record before performing the excavation and foundation preparation work. In general, if different and unsuitable/unsatisfactory soil conditions are found during the Contractor's work, the Engineer of Record and the Town shall be notified immediately.
- H. Work site cleanup and property restoration shall follow behind construction operations without delay. Some of this cleanup will be done on a daily basis, as needed, usually at the end of the workday.

1.02 REFERENCE STANDARDS

Reference standards and recommended practices referred to in this Specification Section shall be the latest revision of any such document in effect at the bid time. The following documents are a part of this Section. Where this Section differs from these documents, the requirements of this Section shall apply:

- A. OSHA Excavation Safety Standards, 29 CFR 1926, Subpart P
- B. Florida Trench Safety Act (Law of Florida 90-96)
- C. American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO)
 - 1. AASHTO T-180—Standard Method of Test for Moisture-Density Relations of Soils Using a 4.54-kg (10-lb) Rammer and a 457-mm (18-in.) Drop.
- D. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM)
 - 1. ASTM A328/A328M—Standard Specification for Steel Sheet Piling.
 - 2. ASTM D1556/D1556M—Standard Test Method for Density of Soil and Unit Weight of Soil in Place by the Sand-Cone Method.
 - 3. ASTM D1557—Standard Test Methods for Laboratory Compaction Characteristics of Soil Using Modified Effort (56,000 ft-lbf/ft3 (2,700 kN-m/m3)).
 - 4. ASTM D2937—Standard Test Method for Density of Soil in Place by the Drive-Cylinder Method.
 - 5. ASTM D3282—Standard Practice for Classification of Soils and Soil-Aggregate Mixtures for Highway Construction Purposes.
 - 6. ASTM D3740—Standard Practice for Minimum Requirements for Agencies Engaged in the Testing and/or Inspection of Soil and Rock as Used in Engineering Design and Construction.

- 7. ASTM D6938—Standard Test Methods for In-Place Density and Water Content of Soil and Soil-Aggregate by Nuclear Methods (Shallow Depth).
- 8. ASTM E329—Standard Specification for Agencies Engaged in Construction Inspection, Testing, or Special Inspection.

1.03 GENERAL

- A. Trench excavation shall be confined to the construction area as shown on the Drawings, and shall be done in an approved manner with proper equipment. Excavation and backfilling shall be suspended during rain and inclement weather, or when unsatisfactory field conditions are encountered, unless otherwise directed by the Engineer of Record. At all times during construction, the Contractor shall maintain proper drainage in the construction area, and shall take all measures necessary for erosion and sediment control.
- B. Existing Utilities: The Contractor shall be solely responsible for locating and verifying the location of all existing utilities. The Contractor shall take every precaution to protect existing utilities from damage during construction operations. If damage occurs, the utility involved shall be promptly contacted and repairs made at their direction and at the Contractor's expense. The work shall meet the approval of the utility involved. If the respective utility desires to make repairs with its own forces, the Contractor shall bear all the expenses of the work.
- C. When interruptions of existing utilities occur, temporary service shall be provided as directed and approved by the respective utility involved.

D. Notification of Intent to Excavate

- 1. Florida Underground Facility Damage Prevention and Safety Act (Florida Administrative Code [FAC] Chapter 556) requires persons to ascertain the location of underground public utility property before excavation or demolition in certain situations. The Act also requires such persons to give timely notice of intent to excavate or demolish before commencing such operations. Failure to comply could subject the violator to a civil penalty for each violation of the Act.
- 2. Notification of intent to excavate may be given by calling the Sunshine State One Call of Florida (SSOCOF) at this toll free number: (800) 432-4770 or 811, to call for location of underground facilities.
- E. If existing utilities are found to conflict with the permanent facilities being constructed under this Section, immediately notify the Engineer of Record and secure his instructions.

- F. Do not proceed with permanent relocation of utilities until written instructions are received from the Engineer of Record.
- G. Protection and Restoration of Property: During the course of construction, the Contractor shall take special care and provide adequate protection in order to minimize damage to vegetation, surfaced areas, and structures within the construction right-of-way, easement or site, and take full responsibility for repair or replacement thereof.
- H. Material Disposal: Excess, unsuitable, or cleared or grubbed material resulting from the utility installation shall be removed from the work site and disposed of at locations secured by the Contractor. Excess excavated material shall be spread on the disposal site and graded in a manner to drain properly and not disturb existing drainage conditions.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 CLASSIFICATION OF EXCAVATION

The Contractor shall provide borrow soil materials when sufficient satisfactory soil materials are not available from excavations. All excavation shall be unclassified, except as otherwise specified below.

A. Materials used for trench construction shall be free of clumps of clay, rock or gravel, debris, waste, frozen materials, and other deleterious matter as determined by the Engineer of Record and shall be satisfactory soil materials as follows:

Area Classification	Soil Materials
In excavations	Excavated and borrow material that has been sampled,
and trenches	tested, and approved as "Satisfactory Soil Material."

B. Satisfactory Soil Materials

Soil Classification Groups:
 Satisfactory soil materials for each trench shall be as follows:

Satisfactory Soil Material (ASTM D3282, Soil Classification Groups)					
In-situ Foundation	Bedding, Haunching,	Final Backfill			
	and Initial Backfill				
A-1-a	A-1-a	A-1-a			
A-1-b	A-3	A-1-b			
A-3		A-3			

2. <u>Maximum Particle Size Limitations for Satisfactory Soil Materials</u>:
The maximum allowable particle size for satisfactory soil materials within each trench for each type of utility shall be as follows:

	Maximum Allowable Particle Size			
Conduit	In-situ Foundation	Bedding, Haunching, and Initial Backfill	Final Backfill	
Plastic Pipe (PVC, CPVC, HDPE, etc.) less than 6-inch- diameter	See Note 1	½ inch	3 inches	
Plastic Pipe (PVC, CPVC, HDPE, etc.) 6-inch-diameter and Larger	See Note 1	¾ inch	3 inches	
Concrete Pipe				
Steel Pipe				
Ductile Iron Pipe				
Fiberglass Pipe	See Note 1	3/4 inch or 3 times the wall thickness, whichever is less	3 inches	
Other Conduit Materials	See Note 2	See Note 2	See Note 2	

- (1) There is no requirement when satisfactory undisturbed native soil material is used. Disturbed portions of the foundation and/or unsatisfactory native soil material shall be replaced with satisfactory soil materials meeting all the requirements for Bedding.
- (2) The maximum allowable particle size shall be in accordance with the manufacturer's written recommendation.
- 3. <u>Additional Requirements of Satisfactory Materials</u>:

Satisfactory soil materials shall be free of debris, waste, frozen materials, vegetation, or other deleterious matter. Soils within 4 inches of the exterior surface of the pipe shall be free of gravel, stones, or other materials that may abrade the pipe surface.

C. Unsatisfactory Materials

1. Unsatisfactory soil materials shall mean ASTM D3282, Soil Classification Groups A-2-4, A-2-5, A-2-6, A-2-7, A-4, A-5, A-6, A-7, peat, and other highly organic soils. Soil materials of any classification that have a moisture content at the time of compaction beyond the range of 1 percentage point below and 3 percentage points above the optimum moisture content of the soil material as determined by moisture-density relations test shall also be unsatisfactory.

2. Soil unsuitable for a proper foundation encountered at or below trench grade, such as muck or other deleterious material, shall be removed for the full width of the trench and to the depth required to reach suitable foundation material, unless special design considerations received prior approval from the Town. For rock or other non-crushing material, removal depth shall be 6 inches below the bottom of the utility. Backfilling below trench grade shall comply with the applicable provisions of this Section.

2.02 BEDDING OF PIPE

- A. Select material for backfill shall be suitable material from the excavation free of large stones, hard lumps, debris, and other objectionable material. When rock or other non-crushing material is encountered at trench grade, excavation shall be extended to 6 inches below the outside of the bottom of the utility, and a cushion of sand to fully cover the pipe or fittings to a minimum depth of 12 inches shall be provided.
- B. If select material is not available from the excavation, it shall be hauled to the site, placed, and compacted at the Contractor's expense. All trenches shall be excavated below the established subgrade as required to provide for preparation of trench bottoms in strict accordance with the improved ditch bedding details as shown.
- C. Class B (Minimum Utility Bedding): The bottom of the trench shall be shaped to provide firm bedding for the pipe. The pipe shall be firmly bedded in undisturbed soil or hand shaped so that the pipe will be in continuous contact therewith for its full length.
- D. Class A (Special Utility Bedding): Should special bedding be required due to depth of cover, impact loadings, or other conditions, "Class A" bedding methods shall receive prior approval by the Town.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 TRENCH EXCAVATION

A. Excavate to subgrade elevations regardless of the character of surface and subsurface conditions encountered. Unclassified excavated materials may include rock, soil materials, and obstructions. No changes in the Contract Sum or the Contract Time will be authorized for rock excavation or removal of obstructions. If excavated materials intended for fill and backfill include unsuitable soil materials, replace with satisfactory soil materials.

- B. Trenches for pipe shall be excavated along the lines designated by the Engineer and to the depths necessary for laying pipe to the required grades.
 - 1. Do not excavate trench more than 200 feet ahead of pipe laying, unless permitted by the Engineer of Record.
 - 2. Where trenching takes place in existing concrete or asphalt pavement, the pavement shall be saw cut 5 feet wider on each side of the trench than the top width of the trench, unless otherwise noted on the Drawings. Ragged edges of pavement shall be recut as required before paving to form a straight and uniform alignment.
 - 3. The minimum width of the trench shall not be less than the outside pipe diameter plus 1 foot, and the maximum width of trench, measured at the top of the pipe, shall not exceed the outside pipe diameter plus 2 feet, unless otherwise shown on the Drawing details, or approved by the Town.
 - 4. Maximum trench width up to a level 24 inches above the top of the pipe shall be as shown on the Drawings.
 - 5. Sides of trenches shall be kept as nearly vertical as possible. In order to prevent damage to property, injury to persons, erosion, cave-ins, or excessive trench widths, adequate sheeting and bracing shall be provided in accordance with standard practice and in accordance with all safety, protection of property, and other applicable laws and regulations, including the Florida Safe Trench Act.
 - 6. Excavated material to be used for backfill shall be neatly deposited at the sides of the trenches where space is available. Where stockpiling of excavated material is required, the Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining the sites to be used.
 - 7. Utilities shall be laid "in the dry" unless otherwise approved. Dewatering systems shall be used in accordance with good standard practice and must be efficient enough to lower the water level in advance of the excavation and maintain it continuously to keep the trench bottom and sides firm and dry. Any dewatering equipment to be used in a residential area shall be equipped with a sound attenuating enclosure and approved by the Town. All machinery required for pumping or bailing shall be furnished by the Contractor. Sump and pump type trenching may be used only on short shallow runs where well points would be impractical and excessively expensive, and only with the prior approval of the applicable Regulatory Agency. In all cases, density testing up to a point at least 1 foot above the water table shall be completed before removal of dewatering equipment.

On sewer lines installed using dewatering, service laterals shall be installed while the trench is dry. Disposal of water after removal shall be satisfactory to the Engineer of Record. There will be no disposal into existing sewer.

- C. Before excavating the trench, the Contractor shall perform surface preparation including clearing and grubbing,
- D. The Contractor shall be required to fully comply with all applicable OSHA Excavation Safety Standards and to abide by them as covered under the Florida Trench Safety Act (Laws of Florida 90-96), effective October 1, 1990.
- E. The Contractor shall ensure that mechanical equipment used for trench excavation shall be of a type, design, and construction and shall be so operated that conduit/utility, when accurately laid to specified alignment, will be centered in the trench with adequate clearance between the conduit/utility and sidewalls of the trench. Undercutting the trench sidewall to obtain clearance will not be permitted.
- F. The Contractor shall not use mechanical equipment in locations where its operation would cause damage to trees, buildings, culverts, other existing property, utilities, structures, etc. above or below ground. In all such locations, the Contractor shall use hand excavating methods.
- G. The Contractor shall not use blasting.
- H. The Contractor shall cut trenches sufficiently wide to enable proper installation of services and to allow for testing and inspection. The Contractor shall also trim and shape trench bottoms and leave them free of irregularities, lumps, and projections.
 Trench width shall be excavated as specified on the Contract Drawings.
- I. The Contractor shall construct trench walls to avoid sidewall collapse or sloughing. Trenches shall be either braced or open construction in accordance with the Contract Documents. No separate payment will be made for any special procedure used in connection with the excavation.
- J. Where sheeting and bracing are not required, the Contractor shall construct trench walls in the bottom of the excavation as vertical as possible to the maximum height allowable by OSHA. Trench walls above this height shall be sloped to guard against sidewall collapse or sloughing as specified on the Contract Drawings.

- K. Where sheeting and bracing are required, the sheeting and bracing system shall meet the requirements specified in these Specifications and the Town CSM.
 - 1. No wood sheeting shall be left in place.
 - 2. Steel sheeting to be left in place shall be as specified in ASTM A328/A328M.
- L. Excavations shall be to the design elevations shown on the Contract Drawings or as specified, unless unsatisfactory or unsuitable foundation materials are encountered in the bottom of the excavation. Where unsatisfactory or unsuitable foundation materials are encountered, this material shall be undercut and removed as indicated on the Contract Drawings and replaced with satisfactory soil material meeting all the requirements for bedding. The lift thicknesses and compaction requirements for the replacement soil shall also meet the requirements for bedding.
- M. The Contractor shall be careful not to over excavate except where necessary to remove unsatisfactory or unsuitable materials, irregularities, lumps, rock, and projections. Unnecessary over excavation shall be replaced as specified in these Specifications at the Contractor's sole expense.
- N. The Contractor shall accurately grade bedding soil materials at the bottoms of the trenches to provide uniform bearing and support for each section of conduit/utility at every point along its entire length except where it is necessary to excavate the bedding for conduit/utility bells (e.g., pipe bells), etc. or for proper sealing of conduit/utility joints. Abrupt changes in grade of the trench bottom shall be avoided.
- O. The Contractor shall dig bell holes and depressions after the bedding has been graded to ensure that the conduit/utility rests on the prepared bedding for as much of its full length as practicable. Bell holes and depressions shall be only of such length, depth, and width as required to make the joint.
- P. The Contractor shall do the following:
 - 1. Pile all excavated material in a manner that will not endanger the work or erode the stormwater management facilities or water courses.
 - 2. Avoid obstructing sidewalks, driveways, and plant facilities.
 - 3. Leave hydrants, valve pit covers, valve boxes, or other utility controls unobstructed and accessible.

- 4. Keep gutters, drainage inlets, natural water courses, and miscellaneous drainage structures clear or make other satisfactory provisions for their proper operation.
- Q. The Contractor shall keep all satisfactory materials that are suitable for use/reuse in the trench construction separated from unsatisfactory materials.
- R. Except where otherwise authorized, indicated, or specified, the Contractor shall replace, at the Contractor's own expense, all materials excavated below the bottom of concrete walls, footings, slabs on grade, and foundations with concrete or flowable fill, as directed by the Engineer of Record.
- S. The Contractor shall adhere to these Additional Excavation Requirements for Piping:
 - 1. Excavate trenches so that the piping can be laid to the lines, grades, and elevations indicated on the Contract Drawings.
 - 2. For piping designated to be laid to a minimum cover requirement, grade trenches to avoid high and low points to the extent practical. As-built Drawings of such pipes shall present top-of-pipe and grade elevations at all high and low points along each pipe segment, at the ends of each pipe segments, and at intervals not to exceed 100 feet along each pipe segment. If, in the opinion of the Engineer of Record, additional air release and/or vacuum relief valves are required, the Contractor shall install the additional items as directed by the Engineer of Record.
 - 3. The cover over PVC pipe shall not be less than 3 feet. Where the cover is less than 3 feet, that section of pipe shall be ductile iron pipe.
 - 4. Where trenching occurs in existing lawns, and seeding is not an option, replace area with sod in accordance with Section 7, Grassing and Sodding.
 - 5. Where trenching takes place in existing concrete or asphalt pavement, the pavement shall be saw cut at the full trench width plus 5 feet on either side as shown on the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Standard open cut and repair detail. Ragged edges of pavement shall be re-cut as required before paving to form a straight and uniform alignment.
 - 6. Sides of trenches shall be kept as nearly vertical as possible. Maximum trench width up to a level 24 inches above the top of the pipe shall be as shown on the Drawings.

- 7. Water that is found in or accumulates in trenches shall be pumped, bailed, or otherwise removed. All machinery required for pumping or bailing shall be furnished by the Contractor. Trenches shall be kept free of water while pipe is being laid. Disposal of water after removal shall be satisfactory to the Engineer of Record. There will be no disposal into existing sewer.
- 8. Continue dewatering operations along each pipe segment until the required minimum cover is provided. During the dewatering operations, the ground water level in the trench shall remain at all times a minimum of 1 foot below bottom of trench excavations.
- T. The Contractor shall adhere to this Additional Excavation Requirement for Appurtenances:
 - 1. Ensure that excavations for valves and similar appurtenances shall be sufficient to leave at least 12 inches in the clear between the outer surfaces and the embankment or timber used to hold and protect the walls.
- U. The Contractor shall adhere to these Additional Excavation Requirements for Roadway and Pavement Restoration:
 - 1. Open cuts of Town streets are expressly prohibited. However, hardship waivers may be granted at the sole discretion of the Public Works Director, in accordance with the requirements of this Section. Restoration shall be as required by the Public Works Director, taking into account factors such as age of existing roadway, density of traffic, location, etc.
 - 2. Pavement or roadway surfaces cut or damaged shall be replaced by the Contractor in equal or better condition than the original, including stabilization, base course, surface course, curb and gutter, or other appurtenances. The Contractor shall obtain the necessary permits and all applicable authorizations from the proper agencies before any roadway work. Additionally, the Contractor shall provide advance notice to the appropriate authority and local emergency services agencies, as required, before construction operations.
 - 3. Restoration shall be in accordance with requirements set forth by the Town. The materials of construction and method of installation, along with the proposed restoration design for items not referred to or specified herein, shall receive prior approval from the Town.
 - 4. Where existing pavement is removed, the surfacing shall be mechanical saw cut before trench excavation, leaving a uniform and straight edge,

- with minimum disturbance to the remaining adjacent surfacing. The width of cut for this phase of existing pavement removal shall be minimal.
- 5. Immediately following the specified backfilling and compaction, a temporary sand seal coat surface shall be applied to the cut areas. This temporary surfacing shall provide a smooth traffic surface with the existing roadway and shall be maintained until final restoration.
- 6. Density tests shall be provided for trenches in pavement across roadways as specified in the Town CSM.

3.02 BACKFILLING OF TRENCHES

- A. Backfilling of trenches shall progress as rapidly as pipe-laying will permit.
- B. The Contractor shall not backfill trenches until required tests are performed.
- C. Immediately after the pipe has been jointed and inspected, backfilling shall be placed to a minimum of 12 inches above the crown of the pipe to adequately protect the pipe from injury and movement, in accordance with ASTM D2321. Before and during the backfilling of any trench, precaution should be taken against flotation of pipelines therein due to entry of large quantities of water into the trench, which could cause uplift of the pipeline. The diameter deflection of polyvinyl chloride (PVC) pipe shall not exceed 5 percent after completion and approval of construction, and for a period of 1 year thereafter.
- D. Backfill material shall be clean earth fill composed of sand or other Town approved fill.
- E. Trenches improperly backfilled shall be reopened to the depth required for proper compaction, then refilled and compacted as specified, or the condition shall be otherwise corrected as directed.
- F. The Contractor shall perform the following steps to ensure compaction at the bottom of the trench or excavation before bedding:
 - 1. Remove disturbed native soil material and/or any soils not meeting the requirement of satisfactory soil material as indicated on the Contract Drawings.
 - 2. When trenches are cut within the right-of-way and under all roadways, drives (including dirt drives), parking areas, and all other areas to be paved, compaction as determined by AASHTO T-180, shall be, for each 12-inch backfill lift, equal to 98 percent of maximum density, with

compaction in other areas, not less than 95 percent of maximum density from the bottom of trench to 12 inches above the top of pipe and not less than 90 percent of maximum density from the top of pipe to the top of backfill. Density tests shall be provided for trenches within pavement, across roads, and areas adjacent to proposed building structures. Backfilling of pipe trench or under and around structures shall be, for each 12-inch backfill lift, compacted to 98 percent of maximum density as determined by AASHTO T-180. One compaction test shall be carried out for each 300 linear feet of pipe and for every 100 square feet of backfill under and around structures and pavement as a minimum.

- G. To backfill below and around pipe to the spring line of the pipe, the Contractor shall do the following:
 - 1. Construct foundation and bedding as indicated on the Contract Drawings before placement of pipe.
 - 2. Install each pipe at proper grade, alignment, and final position.
 - 3. Deposit satisfactory soil material uniformly and simultaneously on each side of pipe in completed course layers to prevent lateral displacement.
 - 4. As fast as the material is placed, it shall be cut under the haunches of the pipe with a shovel and thoroughly compacted with light tamps for the full width of the trench to provide support for the bottom and sides of the pipe, and to hold the pipe in the proper position during subsequent pipe backfilling and compaction operations. Backfilling shall be carried up evenly on both sides in 6-inch lifts to 12 inches above the pipe.
 - 5. Construct haunching of the pipe as indicated on the Contract Drawings.
- H. To trench backfill above pipe spring line to finished grade, the Contractor shall do the following:
 - 1. Deposit satisfactory soil material around and above pipe in uniform layers as shown on the Contract Drawings.
 - Backfill and compact trenches from the spring line of the pipe to the top
 of the trench in completed course layers as shown in the Contract
 Drawings.

- 3. Use material previously defined in these Specifications as satisfactory soil material.
- 4. Compact by hand or mechanical tampers.
- I. Protective concrete slabs shall be installed over the top of trenches, where required, to protect the installed pipe against excessive loads across roadways and river/swamp areas, as required by the Town.
- J. Existing sidewalks and driveways removed, disturbed, or destroyed by construction, shall be replaced or repaired by the Contractor at his expense.
- K. All pipes installed shall have associated tracer tape and wire installed in accordance with the respective piping specification section.
- L. No pipe or piping shall be backfilled until inspected and approved by the Town.
- M. All piping shall be properly identified in accordance with the respective piping specification section.
- N. Backfill around manholes and other structures shall conform to the requirements for this Section, except that no backfill shall be placed around manholes or other structures until all mortar has properly set unless otherwise noted.
- O. The Contractor shall be responsible for final subsidence of all trenches, and shall leave trenches flush with the original ground after all settlement has taken place. Any settlement of backfill below finish grade shall be promptly corrected. Trenches shall be protected against scour due to surface drainage.

3.03 COMPACTION TEST

A. All backfill will be subject to a compaction test by an independent laboratory selected by the Engineer of Record or Town. If compaction fails the test, the Contractor shall remove and replace backfill to the satisfaction of the Engineer of Record and the Town, and shall pay for the cost of the re-test.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 7 GRASSING AND SODDING

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. This Section does not stand alone and is incorporated as part of the Town Construction Specification Manual (CSM). The CSM shall be used for other requirements that may not be covered in this Section.
- B. The work under this Section includes the furnishing of all labor, material, equipment, and supervision required to grade, install, and maintain grass and sod in all areas shown on the Construction Drawings or specified herein.

1.02 GENERAL

A. It is the intent of these specifications to provide a complete grassing and sodding procedure that shall be carefully followed, and, upon consultation with the Town or Engineer of Record, shall be adjusted to meet unforeseen weather and soil conditions to secure a successful planting of the areas to be grassed or sodded. All grassed areas that are disturbed or damaged by the construction operation shall be restored by re-sodding or seeding and mulching after fill has been graded to meet the existing contours. Sod shall be similar to the type of grass in place and shall be fresh, live, and well rooted. Areas to be seeded and mulched shall be agreed upon and approved by the Town or Engineer of Record before excavation. Unless approved otherwise by the Town or Engineer of Record, the sodded areas shall be uniform level and smooth without dips or holes.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 PLANTING

- A. Materials: Materials shall be approved by the Town or Engineer of Record before use.
 - 1. <u>Topsoil</u>: The Contractor shall provide topsoil from off-site or from on-site excavation as approved by the Town or Engineer of Record. Topsoil shall be friable and loamy (loam, sandy loam, silt loam, sandy clay loam, clay loam) and shall be free of debris, trash, stumps, rocks, roots, and noxious weeds.

- 2. <u>Seed</u>: During the period March 15 to October 15, the seed mixture shall be 100% Argentine Bahia. During the remainder of the year, the mixture shall be 1/3 each of Argentine Bahia, Bermuda, and Rye grass seed.
- 3. Sod: The Contractor shall provide strongly rooted sod, not less than 2 years old and free of weeds and undesirable native grasses. Provide only live, fresh, and uninjured sod capable of growth and development when planted (viable, not dormant) and in strips not more than 18 inches wide x 4 feet long. Provide sod composed principally of Argentine Bahia, St. Augustine, or Centipede to match existing grass type and adequate irrigation system is provided. No sod that has been cut for more than 72 hours shall be used unless specifically authorized by the Town or Engineer of Record after careful inspection thereof. Any sod that is not planted within 36 hours after cutting shall be stacked in an approved manner and maintained properly moistened.
- 4. <u>Mulch</u>: The mulch material shall be straw or hay, consisting of oats, rye, or wheat straw, or a Pangola, Peanut, Bermuda, or Bahia grass hay. Mulch shall be free from undesirable weed and other undesirable grasses.
- 5. <u>Sprigs</u>: Sprigs shall be of St. Augustine grass or other types, as directed by the Town or Engineer of Record. A sprig shall be a stolon, also known as a runner, approximately 4 inches long.
- 6. <u>Erosion Control Fabric</u>: The Contractor shall provide 70% agricultural straw with 30% coconut fiber matrix stitches with degradable nettings, designed to degrade within 18 months. Erosion control anchors shall be as recommended by the manufacturer
- 7. <u>Lime</u>: Lime shall be finely ground agricultural or dolomitic limestone.
- 8. <u>Fertilizer for Grassing, Sodding, and Sprigging</u>: For temporary seeding, fertilizer shall be 10-20-20. For permanent seeding, fertilizer shall be 5-20-10. For sodding and sprigging, fertilizer shall be 10-10-10 in fall and 5-10-10 in spring. Equivalent nutrients may be applied with other fertilizer formulations.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 PREPARATION

- A. All preparation and planting shall be done in an acceptable manner and by competent personnel.
 - 1. The Contractor shall coordinate all work activities to provide for establishing grass or sod cover at the earliest possible time in the construction schedule to minimize erosion of topsoil.
 - 2. If grading is completed and ready for grassing or sodding at a time inappropriate for establishing the permanent grass cover, temporary coverage shall be provided for protection of graded surfaces until such time that permanent cover can be established. Temporary cover shall be provided as specified below. The Contractor shall return to the site and provide the permanent cover, in the manner specified in the Contract Drawings, and at such time as may be suitable.
 - a. Surface area to be temporarily grassed shall be prepared as for permanent cover.
 - b. Area to be grassed shall be planted with Rye or Sudan grass for temporary protection. Seed shall be applied at such rates as to provide for adequate and acceptable temporary cover.
 - c. After temporary planting is completed, the planted areas shall be watered as specified in the maintenance section below.
 - 3. Grassing and sodding shall not be performed when weather and soil conditions are, in the Town's or Town Representative's opinion, unsuitable for proper results.
 - 4. Seed, sod, and sprigs shall be placed only when the soil is moist and in proper condition to induce growth. Moisten areas prepared for grassing before planting if the soil is dry. Water thoroughly and allow the surface to dry off before planting. Do not create a muddy soil condition.
 - 5. Dispose of any existing sod, growth, rocks, or other obstructions that might interfere with tilling, seeding, sodding, or later maintenance operations. Remove stones over 1-1/2 inches in any dimensions and sticks, roots, rubbish, and other extraneous matter. Remove from site: do not stockpile.
 - 6. Till to a depth of not less than 300 mm (12 inches). Thoroughly loosen and pulverize topsoil.

- 7. Spread planting soil mixture to depth required to meet thickness, grades, and elevations indicated after light rolling and natural settlement. Do not spread if material is frozen or if subgrade is frozen. Top soil shall be maintained at a minimum compacted depth of 2 inches on 3:1 or steeper slopes and 4 inches on flatter slopes, the Contractor shall add top soil as required to meet these depths. Where soils are known to be highly acid (pH 6.0 and lower), lime should be applied at the rate of 2 tons of pulverized agricultural limestone per acre. Grade grassed areas to a smooth, even surface with loose, uniformly firm texture. Roll and rake, remove ridges, and fill depressions to meet finish grades. Limit fine grading to areas that can be planted within the immediate future. Restore prepared areas to specified condition if eroded or otherwise disturbed after the fine grading and before planting.
- 8. Before seeding, sodding, or sprigging, fertilizer shall be applied uniformly. For temporary seeding, the rate shall be 10 pounds per 1,000 square feet. For permanent seeding, sodding, and sprigging the rate shall be 25 pounds per 1,000 square feet. Fertilizer shall be applied after smooth raking of topsoil and before roller compaction. Do not apply fertilizer at same time or with same machine as will be used to apply seed. Lightly water to aid the dissipation of fertilizer.

3.02 SODDING

- A. Lay sod to form a solid mass with tightly fitted joints. Butt ends and sides of sod strips; do not overlap. Stagger to offset joints in adjacent courses. Work from boards to avoid damage to subgrade or sod. Tamp or roll lightly to ensure contact with subgrade. Work sifted soil into minor cracks between pieces of sod; remove excess to avoid smothering of adjacent grass.
- B. Where sodding is used in drainage ditches, the setting of the pieces shall be staggered, such as to avoid a continuous seam along the line of flow. Along the edges of such staggered areas, the offsets of individual strips shall not exceed 6 inches. In order to prevent erosion caused by vertical edges at the outer limits, the outer pieces shall be tamped to produce a featheredge effect.
- C. Anchor sod on slopes 3:1 or greater with wood pegs as required to prevent slippage. Sod shall be installed with the length perpendicular to the slope. Begin laying sod at the bottom of the slope and work uphill.
- D. Any pieces of sod that, after placing, shows an appearance of extreme dryness shall be removed from the work.

- E. When sodding adjacent to paving, the top of the sod shall be a minimum of 1 inch and a maximum of 2 inches below the top of the edge of pavement as shown in the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Standard Details.
- F. After planting is completed, the planted areas shall be sufficiently watered to maintain a moist soil depth of at least 4 inches for the first week.

3.03 SEEDING

- A. Seed shall be applied evenly at a rate of 60 pounds per acre in two intersecting directions, raked into the ground, and lightly covered. All grass seed shall be mixed with soil before sowing in a manner insuring an even distribution and retainage of the seed on the site.
- B. Upon completion of seeding, apply mulch at a rate of 4,000 pounds per acre. Tack mulch by crimping with crimping attachment. Do not seed areas in excess of that which can be mulched on the same day.
- C. After the seed is covered, the area shall be compacted and dressed smooth by a roller not exceeding 112 pounds. Mulch material shall be held in place by covering with light poultry netting staked in place or by a coat of suitable asphaltic material.
- D. After planting, apply water with a fine spray immediately after each area has been mulched. Saturate to 4 inches of soil.
- E. Cover seeded slopes where grade is 4 inches per foot or greater with erosion fabric. Roll fabric onto slopes without stretching or pulling. Lay fabric smoothly on surface, bury top end of each section in 6-inch-deep excavated topsoil trench. Provide a 2- to 4-inch overlap of adjacent rolls. Backfill trench and fine grade by raking smooth and level with adjacent soil. Secure outside edges and overlaps in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations. Lightly dress slopes with topsoil to ensure close contact between fabric and soil. At the sides of ditches, lay fabric laps in direction of water flow. Lap ends and edges a minimum of 6 inches.

3.04 HYDRO-SEEDING

- A. Apply seeded slurry with a hydraulic seeder at the rate designated on schedule evenly in two intersecting directions.
- B. Do not hydro-seed area in excess of that which can be mulched on same day.
- C. Apply water with a fine spray immediately after each area has been mulched. Saturate to 4 inches of soil.

3.05 SPRIGGING

A. Where sprigging is specified in the Contract Drawings, the entire area shall grassed by planting sprigs endwise in a 2-inch-deep trench. The trenches shall be 8 inches apart and sprigs planted 6 inches apart in the trenches. Other methods of planting sprigs that will provide an equal stand of grass may be approved.

3.06 MAINTENANCE

- A. The Contractor shall be responsible to see that all planted areas, including seeded, sprigged, and sodded areas, receive sufficient water and maintenance during the life of this Contract or until a satisfactory growth of grass is established acceptable to the Town or Engineer of Record.
- B. To maintain the grassing and sodding, the Contractor shall do the following:
 - 1. The Contractor shall erect barricades, warning signs, and fencing to protect newly planted areas from traffic. Maintain barricade fencing and warning signs throughout the maintenance period.
 - 2. Mow sod to a height of 2 inches as soon as there is enough top growth to cut with mower. Remove no more than 40% of grass leaf growth in initial or subsequent mowing. Do not delay mowing until grass blades bend over and become matted.
 - 3. Maintain lawns by watering, fertilizing, weeding, mowing, trimming, and other operations such as rolling, filling, re-grading, replanting as required to establish a smooth, acceptable lawn, free from eroded or bare areas.
 - 4. Remove weeds by pulling or chemical treatment.
 - 5. Apply the second fertilizer application after the first mowing and when grass is dry.
 - 6. Replant bare areas using same materials specified for lawns.
 - 7. Arrange watering schedule to avoid walking over muddy areas. Use equipment and water to prevent puddling and water erosion and displacement of seed or mulch (if any).

C. Apply water in sufficient quantities and as often as seasonal conditions require to keep the grassed areas moist. It is the Contractor's responsibility to determine the quantities of water required and when to irrigate.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 8 SURFACE RESTORATION

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. This Section does not stand alone and is incorporated as part of the Town Construction Specification Manual (CSM). The CSM shall be used for other requirements that may not be covered in this Section.
- B. This Section covers the work necessary to provide for the restoration of all asphalt and concrete pavement and concrete sidewalks removed during construction.

1.02 SUBMITTALS

The Contractor shall submit shop drawings in accordance with Section 1, General Provisions:

- A. Limerock material submittal is to be made to include liquid limit, plastic index, gradation, certification regarding deleterious material, limerock bearing ratio (LBR), Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) pit number, and other information as required to indicate performance in accordance with the specifications.
- B. Information regarding asphaltic and Portland cement concrete materials and mix shall be submitted as required by the referenced FDOT specifications.

1.03 REFERENCE STANDARDS

- A. Reference standards and recommended practices referred to in this Section shall be the latest revision of any such document in effect at the bid time. The following documents are a part of this Section. Where this Section differs from these documents, the requirements of this Section shall apply.
- B. The latest edition of the FDOT Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction (Standard Specifications) and Roadway and Traffic Design Standards shall be referred to for construction, workmanship, and quality control as specified with exceptions as noted in this Section.
 - 1. Where the referenced FDOT Specifications cite "the Department," this shall be modified to "the Owner and/or Public Services Director or his Designee" by this Contract.

- 2. The Contractor shall retain an independent testing agency, as approved by the Public Services Director, to perform all tests, including tests referenced to be performed by the Public Services Director.
- C. American Association of State and Highway Transportation Officials (AASHTO)
 - 1. AASHTO T 99—Standard Method of Test for Moisture-Density Relations of Soils Using a 2.5-kg (5.5-lb) Rammer and a 305-mm (12-inch) Drop.
- D. American Society of Testing and Materials (ASTM)
 - 1. ASTM D1556/D1556M—Standard Test Method for Density and Unit Weight of Soil in Place by the Sand-Cone Method.
 - 2. ASTM D1557—Standard Test Methods for Laboratory Compaction Characteristics of Soil Using Modified Effort (56,000 ft-lbf/ft3 (2,700 kN- m/m3)).
 - 3. ASTM D2167—Standard Test Method for Density and Unit Weight of Soil in Place by the Rubber Balloon Method.
 - 4. ASTM D6938—Standard Test Methods for In-Place Density and Water Content of Soil and Soil-Aggregate by Nuclear Methods (Shallow Depth).

1.04 QUALITY ASSURANCE

- A. The Contractor shall perform field-density tests along the centerline of construction or as directed by the Public Services Director or his Designee and in accordance with the FDOT's *Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction*, latest edition.
- B. The Contractor shall field check the depth of stabilization and/or limerock at each road crossing with a pipeline.
- C. The Town may require additional testing as deemed necessary. The Public Services Director or his Designee shall interpret test results and the Contractor shall perform remedial work as directed by the Town.
- D. Laboratory maximum dry density of soil mixtures at optimum moisture shall be determined by ASTM D1557 for subgrade, stabilized subgrade, and limerock base course.

- E. Field density of stabilized subgrade and soils or soil mixtures in fill or backfill shall be determined by ASTM D2167, D1556/D1556M, or Nuclear Method D2922 or ASTM D1556/D1556M or D2922 for limerock base course.
- F. Bearing value of stabilized subgrade shall be determined by the methods required for determining LBR according to the FDOT, Standard Specification FM 5-515.
- G. Field density of stabilized subbase shall be 98% or greater of the Modified Proctor maximum dry density, ASTM D1557.
- H. The Public Services Director or his Designee shall have sole responsibility for interpreting all test results. The Contractor shall bear the cost of all retests due to failure to achieve specified requirements.

1.05 WARRANTIES

A. Warranties shall be in accordance with Section 1, General Provisions.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 ROCK BASE

- A. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - 1. Section 200-1, Description.
 - 2. Section 200-2, Materials.

2.02 STABILIZING

- A. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - 1. Section 160-1, Description.
 - 2. Section 160-2, Stabilized Subgrade, Type B.
 - 3. Section 160-4, Materials.

2.03 PRIME AND TACK COATS FOR BASE COURSES

- A. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - 1. Section 300-1, Description.
 - 2. Section 300-2, Materials.
 - 3. Section 300-3, Equipment.

2.04 SUPERPAVE ASPHALT

- A. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - 1. Section 334-1, Description.
 - 2. Section 334-2, Materials.
 - 3. Section 334-3, General Composition of Mixture.
 - 4. Section 334-4, Acceptance of the Mixture at the Plant.
 - 5. Section 334-5, Acceptance of the Mixture on the Roadway.

2.05 CEMENT CONCRETE PAVEMENT

- A. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - 1. Section 350-1, Description.
 - 2. Section 350-2, Materials.

2.06 TRAFFIC STRIPES AND MARKINGS

- A. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - 1. Section 711-1, Description.
 - 2. Section 711-2, Materials.

2.07 CONCRETE SIDEWALK PRODUCTS

- A. Materials
 - 1. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - a. Section 347, Concrete.
 - b. Section 415, Reinforcement.
 - c. Section 932, Joint Materials.

B. Forms

- 1. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - a. Section 520-3, Form Materials.

C. Excavation and Compaction

- 1. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - a. Section 520-4, Excavation.
 - b. Section 120-9, Compaction.

D. Joints

- 1. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - a. Section 520—6.1, Contraction Joints.
 - b. Section 520-6.2, Expansion Joints.

E. Finishing

- 1. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - a. Section 520-7, Finishing.

F. Curing

- 1. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - a. Section 520-8, Curing.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 EXCAVATION AND EMBANKMENT

- A. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - 1. Section 120-1, Description.
 - 2. Section 120-2, Classifications of Excavation.
 - 3. Section 120-3, Preliminary Soils Investigation.
 - 4. Section 120-4, Removal of Unsuitable Materials and Existing Roads.
 - 5. Section 120-5, Disposal of Surplus and Unsuitable Material.
 - 6. Section 120-6.1, Materials for Borrow.
 - 7. Section 120-7, Materials for Embankment.
 - 8. Section 120-8, Embankment Construction.
 - 9. Section 120-9, Compaction Requirements.
 - 10. Section 120-10, Acceptance Program.
 - 11. Section 120-11, Maintenance and Protection of Work.
 - 12. Section 120-12, Construction.

B. Exceptions

- 1. Section 120-4.1, Subsoil Excavation: Unsuitable soils shall be those in Classifications A-6, A-7, or A-8 in the American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) System.
- 2. Section 120-4.2, Removal of Existing Old Road: Where removal of existing pavement is called for, it shall be removed to the full depth as indicated in the cross-sections and replaced with new limerock and paving.
- 3. Section 120-5.3, Disposal of Paving Materials: Disposing of muck on side slopes shall not apply.
- 4. Section 120-9.2.1, General: Laboratory maximum dry density shall be determined by Modified Proctor, ASTM D1557. Field densities shall be determined by ASTM D2167, D1556/D1556M, or Nuclear Method D2922. All embankments shall be compacted to not less than 95% of the maximum dry density, as determined by modified Proctor, ASTM D1557.
- 5. Section 120-12.1, Construction Tolerances: No tolerance greater than 0.1 foot above or below the cross-section will be allowed.

3.02 ROADWAY STABILIZING

- A. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - 1. Section 160-1, Description.
 - 2. Section 160-2, Stabilized Subgrade.
 - 3. Section 160-3, Stabilized Subbase.
 - 4. Section 160-4, Materials.
 - 5. Section 160-5, Construction Methods.
 - 6. Section 160-6, Stabilized Subbase (Additional Strengthening of Upper Portion).
 - 7. Section 160-7, Acceptance Program.
 - 8. Section 160-8, Density Requirements.

B. Exceptions:

1. The Contractor shall stabilize the roadbed to a minimum depth of 12 inches as shown on the Drawings.

2. Section 160-7.2.1.2, Undertolerance in Bearing Value Requirements: no undertolerance will be acceptable.

3.03 LIMEROCK BEARING RATIO AND DENSITIES

- A. Stabilized finish grade and stabilized shoulders shall have a minimum LBR value of 40.
- B. Field density of stabilized finished grade shall be a minimum of 98% of the Modified Proctor maximum dry density as specified in ASTM D1557 to a minimum depth of 12 inches as shown on the Drawings.

3.04 PRIME AND TACK COATS

- A. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - 1. Section 300-3, Equipment.
 - 2. Section 300-5, Cleaning Base and Protection of Adjacent Work.
 - 3. Section 300-6, Weather Limitations.
 - 4. Section 300-7, Application of Prime Coat.
 - 5. Section 300-8, Application of Tack Coat.

3.05 LIMEROCK BASE

- A. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - 1. Section 200-3, Equipment.
 - 2. Section 200-4, Transporting Limerock.
 - 3. Section 200-5, Spreading Limerock.
 - 4. Section 200-6, Compacting and Finishing Base.
 - 5. Section 200-7, Acceptance Program.
 - 6. Section 200-8, Priming and Maintaining.

B. Exceptions:

- 1. Section 200-7.2.1, Density: The minimum density which will be acceptable for paved areas will be 98% of the maximum dry density as determined by Modified Proctor, ASTM D1557.
- 2. Section 200-7.3.1.2, Depth and Surface Testing Requirements: Thickness of base shall be measured at intervals not to exceed 200 feet.

3.06 SUPERPAVE ASPHALT

- A. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - 1. Section 320-5, Paving Equipment.
 - 2. Section 330-1, Description.
 - 3. Section 330-2, Quality Control by Contractor.
 - 4. Section 330-3, Limitations of Operations.
 - 5. Section 330-4, Preparation of Asphalt Cement.
 - 6. Section 330-5, Preparation of Aggregates.
 - 7. Section 330-6, Preparation of the Mixture.
 - 8. Section 330-7, Transportation of the Mixture.
 - 9. Section 330-8, Preparation of the Application Surfaces.
 - 10. Section 330-9, Placing Mixture.
 - 11. Section 330-10, Compacting Mixture.
 - 12. Section 330-11, Joints.
 - 13. Section 330-12, Surface Requirements.
 - 14. Section 330-13, Protection of Finished Surface.
 - 15. Section 334-3, General Composition of Mixture.
 - 16. Section 334-4, Acceptance of Mixture.

3.07 CEMENT CONCRETE PAVEMENTS

- A. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - 1. Section 350-1, Description.
 - 2. Section 350-2, Materials.
 - 3. Section 350-3, Equipment.
 - 4. Section 350-4, Subgrade Preparation.
 - 5. Section 350-5, Setting Forms.
 - 6. Section 350-6, Protection from Weather.
 - 7. Section 350-7, Placement of Reinforcement.
 - 8. Section 350-8, Placing Concrete.
 - 9. Section 350-12, Final Finish.
 - 10. Section 350-13, Curing.
 - 11. Section 350-14, Surface Requirements.
 - 12. Section 350-15, Joints.
 - 13. Section 350-16, Thickness Determinations.

3.08 PAVEMENT REPAIR

A. At his own expense, the Contractor shall repair all damage to pavement because of work under any Contract in a manner satisfactory to the Public Services Director. Pavement shall be saw cut and repaired to match the original surface

material and original grade. However, the asphalt concrete thickness shall not be less than 2 inches. The repair shall include preparing the subgrade, placing and compacting the applicable base, priming the limerock base, and placing and maintaining the surface treatment as specified in this Section.

B. The width of all repairs shall extend at least 12 inches beyond the limit of the damage. The edge of the pavement to be left in place shall be cut to a true edge with a saw or other approved method to provide a clean edge to abut the repair. The line of the repair shall be reasonably uniform with no unnecessary irregularities.

3.09 JOINTS

A. General pavement joints within asphalt or concrete driveways and roadways and where specified or directed by the Public Services Director, shall be mechanically sawed butt joints. The edges of asphalt pavement shall be trimmed to straight lines that a roller can follow or form.

3.10 TRAFFIC STRIPES AND MARKINGS

- A. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - 1. Section 711-1, Description.
 - 2. Section 711-2, Material.
 - 3. Section 711-3, Equipment.
 - 4. Section 711-4, Application.
 - 5. Section 711-5, Contractor's Responsibility for Notification.
 - 6. Section 711-6, Protection of Newly Applied Traffic Stripes and Markings.
 - 7. Section 711-7, Method of Measurement.
 - 8. Section 711-8, Basis of Payment.

3.11 CONCRETE SIDEWALK

- A. The following sections of FDOT Standard Specifications shall apply:
 - 1. Section 522-1, Description.
 - 2. Section 522-2, Material.
 - 3. Section 522-3, Forms.
 - 4. Section 522-4, Foundation.
 - 5. Section 522-5, Joints.
 - 6. Section 522-6, Placing Concrete.
 - 7. Section 522-7, Finishing.
 - 8. Section 522-8, Curing.

- 9. Section 522-9, Method of Measurement.
- 10. Section 522-10, Basis of Payment.

3.12 CONCRETE SIDEWALK REPAIR

- A. At his own expense, the Contractor shall repair all damage to concrete sidewalks as result of his work in a manner satisfactory to the Public Services Director. Sidewalks shall be saw cut and repaired to match the original width, thickness and original grade. However, the concrete thickness shall not be less than 4 inches. The repair shall include preparing the subgrade, placing of forms, placing concrete, finishing and curing as specified in this Section.
- B. The width of all concrete sidewalk repairs shall extend at least 12 inches beyond the limit of the damage. The edge of the sidewalk to be left in place shall be cut to a true edge with a saw or other approved method to provide a clean edge to abut the repair. The line of the repair shall be reasonably uniform with no unnecessary irregularities.

3.13 FOUNDATION

A. Compact fill areas, including cut areas under sidewalk that have been excavated more than 6 inches below the bottom of the sidewalk, to a minimum of 95% of AASHTO T 99 density. The area to be compacted is defined as that area directly under the sidewalk and 1 foot beyond each side of the sidewalk when right-of-way allows.

3.14 JOINTS

- A. Form 1/2 inch expansion joints between the sidewalk and the curb or driveway or at fixed objects and sidewalk intersections with a preformed joint filler meeting the requirements specified in FDOT Section 932-1.1.
- B. The Contractor may use open type or sawed contraction joints. Form open type contraction joints by staking a metal bulkhead in place and depositing the concrete on both sides. After the concrete has set sufficiently to preserve the width and shape of the joint, remove the bulkhead. After finishing the sidewalk over the joint, edge the slot with a tool having a 1/2 inch radius.
- C. If electing to saw the contraction joints, cut a slot approximately 3/16 inch wide and not less than 1-1/2 inches deep with a concrete saw after the concrete has set, and within the following periods of time:
 - 1. Joints at not more than 30 foot intervals: Within 12 hours after finishing.
 - 2. Remaining joints: Within 96 hours after finishing.

3.15 FINISHING

- A. Screeding: Strike off the concrete by means of a wood or metal screed, used perpendicular to the forms, to obtain the required grade and remove surplus water and laitance.
- B. Surface Requirements: Provide the concrete with a broom finish. Ensure that the surface variations are not more than 1/4 inch under a 10-foot straightedge, or more than 1/8 inch on a 5-foot transverse section. Finish the edge of the sidewalk with an edging tool having a radius of 1/2 inch.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 10 HORIZONTAL DIRECTIONAL DRILLING

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. This Section does not stand alone and is incorporated as part of the City Construction Specification Manual (CSM). The CSM shall be used for other requirements that may not be covered in this Section.
- B. This Section includes furnishing all labor, materials, equipment, and incidentals necessary to complete each directional drill (or Horizontal Directional Drilling [HDD]) installation shown on the Drawings.
- C. Directional drilling at additional locations must receive prior approval from the Public Services Director or his Designee.
- D. Directional drilling must meet all of the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills, Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT), and other applicable agency requirements.

1.02 SUBMITTALS

- A. The following general data is for information only.
 - 1. A statement of qualifications on HDD jobs in the last 3 years. See Article 1.05 of this Section.
 - 2. Include at a minimum the owner's name, address, telephone number, contact person, date and duration of work, location, pipe information, and contents handled by pipeline.
 - 3. Supervisory field personnel and historical information of HDD experience.
- B. Submit shop drawings and written procedures in accordance with the below Town of Howey-in-the-Hills requirements.
 - 1. Size, capacity, and arrangement of equipment.
 - 2. Location and size of drilling and receiving pits.
 - 3. Dewatering and methods of removing spoils material.
 - 4. Method of installing detection wire and pipe.

- 5. Type, location, and method of installing locator station.
- 6. Manufacturer's Catalog Data of the pipe.
- 7. Method of fusing pipe segment and type of equipment.
- 8. Type of cutting head.
- 9. Method of monitoring and controlling line and grade.
- 10. Method of detecting surface movement.
- C. Maintain and submit complete drilling logs of guided directional drill operations upon completion of work.
- D. A statement that the Contractor has inspected the drill rod and determined that the drill rod is in satisfactory condition for its intended use.
- E. Submit all drilling fluids, additives, and mixtures for information only.
 - 1. Products information, material specifications, and handling procedures.
 - 2. Material safety data sheet and special precautions required.
 - 3. Method of mixing and application.

1.03 REFERENCE STANDARDS

Reference standards and recommended practices referred to in this Section shall be the latest revision of any such document in effect at the bid time. The following documents are a part of this Section. Where this Section differs from these documents, the requirements of this Section shall apply.

- A. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM)
 - 1. ASTM A48/A48M—Standard Specification for Gray Iron Castings.
 - 2. ASTM A307—Standard Specification for Carbon Steel Bolts, Studs, and Threaded Rod 60,000 PSI Tensile Strength.
 - 3. ASTM D3261—Standard Specification for Butt Heat Fusion Polyethylene (PE) Plastic Fittings for Polyethylene (PE) Plastic Pipe and Tubing.
 - 4. ASTM D3350—Standard Specification for Polyethylene Plastics Pipe and Fittings Materials.
 - 5. ASTM D4976—Standard Specification for Polyethylene Plastics Molding and Extrusion Materials
 - 6. ASTM F714—Standard Specification for Polyethylene (PE) Plastic Pipe (DR-PR) Based on Outside Diameter.
 - 7. ASTM F1804—Standard Practice for Determining Allowable Tensile Load for Polyethylene (PE) Gas Pipe During Pull-In Installation.

- B. American Water Works Association (AWWA)
 - 1. AWWA C207—Steel Pipe Flanges for Waterworks Service Sizes 4 Inch Through 144 Inch (100 mm Through 3,600 mm).
 - 2. AWWA C906—Polyethylene (PE) Pressure Pipe and Fittings, 4 Inch Through 65 Inch (100 mm Through 1,650 mm), for Waterworks.

C. NSF International (NSF)

1. NSF/ANSI 61—Drinking Water System Components – Health Effects.

1.04 DELIVERY, STORAGE, AND HANDLING

- A. The Contractor shall inspect materials delivered to the site for damage. All materials found during inspection or during the progress of work to have cracks, flaws, surface abrasions, or other defects shall be rejected and removed from the job site.
- B. The Contractor is responsible for disposing of fluids. Disposal of fluids shall be done in a manner that complies with all permits and applicable Federal, State, and Local regulations.

1.05 QUALIFICATIONS

A. The Contractor and his field supervisor assigned to this project must be experienced in work of this nature and must have successfully completed a minimum of 10 similar projects of similar length, pipe type, pipe size, and soil type using directional drilling in the last 3 years. As part of the bid submission, the Contractor shall submit a description of such project(s) that shall include, at a minimum, a listing of the location(s), date of project(s), owner, pipe type and size installed, length of installation, type and manufacturer of equipment used, and other information relevant to the successful completion of the project.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 DRILL ROD

A. The Contractor shall select the appropriate drill rod to be used. The Contractor shall inspect and approve the drill rod before the drill rod arrives at the work site.

2.02 PRODUCT PIPE

Each product pipe to be installed shall be High Density Polyethylene (HDPE) as per AWWA C906.

- A. Carrier: HDPE pipe shall be DR 11, working pressure rating of 160 psi. Pipe shall be manufactured in accordance with the Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the City CSM.
 - 1. Material for pipes to be used for potable water application shall be approved by the National Sanitation Foundation (NSF). All fittings, sizes 4-inch and larger shall meet the requirements of AWWA C906. All fittings shall be ductile iron pipe size. All fittings shall meet the requirements of ANSI/NSF 61. All fittings shall be made of materials conforming to polyethylene code designation PE 3408. Standard dimension ration shall be DR11. Pressure Class shall be 160 psi.
 - 2. <u>Color Coding</u>: The piping shall be permanently coded to provide service identification. Stripes along the entire outside length of the pipe, 120 degrees apart, shall be made by coextrusion or impregnation in accordance with the following schedule. Fully colored pipe co-extruded from permanently pigmented HDPE is also acceptable.

Service	Striped Pipe	Solid Colored Pipe
Potable Water	Blue Stripes	Blue
Reclaimed Water	Pantone Purple Stripes	Pantone Purple
Wastewater	Green Stripes	Green

- 3. Marking on the pipe shall include the following:
 - a. Nominal size and outside diameter (OD) base.
 - b. Standard material code designation.
 - c. Dimension ratio.
 - d. Pressure class.
 - e. AWWA designation (AWWA C906).
 - f. Material test category of pipe.

2.03 TRACER WIRE

A. All piping shall be installed with two, continuous, insulated, 10-gauge high-strength, copper-clad carbon steel wire with 45-mil minimum insulation for location purposes by means of an electronic line tracer. The wire shall have a breaking strength of 1,150 pounds minimum.

- B. The wire insulation shall be solid color in accordance with the coding described below.
 - 1. Potable Water Blue.
 - 2. Sanitary Sewer and Force Mains Green.
 - 3. Reclaimed Water Pantone Purple.
 - 4. Raw Water Black.
- C. Tracer wire must be taped onto the pipe every 20 feet. Splicing of wires is not allowed for pipe installed by directional drilling.
- D. Tracer wires shall begin and terminate in the locate station boxes or valve boxes on either end of the directional drill. Locate station boxes shall not be installed in streets or driveways. The length of each tracer wire in each box shall be long enough to extend between 1 foot and 2 feet above ground level.
- E. After construction is complete, but before final inspection, the City inspector will test the tracer wire with standard City locating equipment. If the inspector determines that the tracer wire is not operating properly, the Contractor shall locate and correct the problem at his expense. The main will not be accepted and placed into operation until the tracer system is acceptable to the City.

2.04 FITTINGS AND RESTRAINERS

A. Pipe flange joints shall be made using a flange adapter, which is butt fused to the HDPE pipe. A back-up ring shall be fitted behind the flange adapter sealing surface flange for bolting to the mating flange. Standard back-up rings shall be AWWA C207 Class D for 160 psi and lower pressure ratings. One edge of the back-up ring must be chamfered to fit up against the back of the sealing surface flange. Mechanical joints to polyethylene pipe shall be fully constrained by compressing the pipe OD against a rigid tube or stiffener in the pipe bore. The stiffener shall be stainless steel. Approved joint restraining devices shall be manufactured in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the City CSM.

2.05 DRILLING FLUIDS

A. A high-quality bentonite drilling fluid shall be used to ensure hole stability, cuttings transport, bit and electronics cooling, and hole lubrication to reduce drag on the drill pipe and the product pipe. Composition of the fluid must comply with all Federal, State, and Local environmental regulations.

B. The bentonite drilling fluid shall be mixed with potable water (of proper pH) to ensure that no contamination is introduced into the soil during the drilling, reaming, or pipe installation. The Contractor is responsible for any required pH adjustments.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 PREPARATION

- A. The Contractor may use the road right-of-way as necessary for the directional drill operations. The Contractor shall comply with all Town of Howey-in-the-Hills, FDOT, Lake County, and local traffic and permit requirements, including providing proper traffic maintenance plans and following the required maintenance plan procedures. The Contractor shall also follow FDOT rules concerning drilling under Town of Howey-in-the-Hills and FDOT rights-of-way concerning minimum depth and other depth requirements based on water table elevation, confining layer location, soils data, and existing utility conflicts.
- B. Directional drilling equipment machine safety requirements shall include a common grounding system to prevent electrical shock in the event of underground electrical cable strike. The grounding system shall connect all pieces of interconnecting machinery; the drill, mud mixing system, drill power unit, drill rod trailer, operator's booth, worker grounding mats, and any other interconnected equipment to a common ground. The drill shall be equipped with an "electrical strike" audible and visual warning system that will notify the system operators of an electrical strike.
- C. The Contractor shall provide equipment to guard against electrocution and an alarm system on drilling equipment capable of detecting electrical current as it approaches electric lines.
- D. Test pit underground utilities crossing before HDD operation.

3.02 DRILL ENTRANCE AND EXIT PITS

- A. The Contractor shall be responsible for designing and constructing the drill entrance and exit pits. If the Contractor requires additional area to perform the directional drilling operation outside of the City, FDOT, and County rights-of-way, the Contractor shall include in his bid the cost to acquire all necessary temporary construction easements to construct the required work.
- B. Drill entrance and exit pits are required and shall be maintained at minimum size to allow only the minimum amount of drilling fluid storage before transfer to mud recycling or processing system or removal from the site.

- C. Drilling mud shall not be allowed to flow freely on the site or around the entrance or exit pits. Mud spilled shall be removed as soon as possible and the ground restored to its original condition. Pits shall be shored to OSHA standards.
- D. When drilling near wetlands or watercourses, the Contractor shall provide secondary containment to prevent drilling fluids from entering the wetlands area or watercourse by using sandbags or other acceptable means as approved by the Public Services Director.

3.03 DRILL ENTRANCE AND EXIT ANGLE

- A. Entrance and exit angles shall be at the Contractor's discretion so that the elevation profile maintains adequate cover to reduce the risk of drilling fluid breakouts and to ensure that ground exit occurs as specified in this Section. The Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring that entrance and exit angles ensure that pullback forces do not exceed a 5% strain on the polyethylene pipe.
- B. The entry angle typically should be 12° to 14° (not to exceed 15°) and the exit angle should be 6° to 12° to facilitate the pullback operation.

3.04 DRILLING FLUIDS

- A. The Contractor shall maintain drilling fluid in borehole to increase stability of the surrounding soil and reduce drag on pulled pipe.
- B. The Contractor shall be responsible for disposing of the drilling fluids in compliance with all relative environmental regulations, right-of-way and workspace agreements, and permit requirements.
- C. Drilling fluid returns can be collected in the entrance pit, exit pit, or spoils recovery pit. The Contractor shall immediately clean up any drilling fluid spills or overflows from these pits.
- D. The Contractor shall provide drilling fluid relief holes as required to prevent heaving of earth, pavement, or roads. The Contractor shall properly seal the relief holes in a timely manner to prevent any damage or injury.
- E. The Contractor shall minimize drilling fluid at locations other than entry and exit points. Immediately clean up any drilling fluids that inadvertently surface.

3.05 PILOT HOLE

A. The pipe shall have a minimum cover of 36 inches.

- B. The type and size of the pilot string cutting head and the diameter of the drill pipe shall be at the Contractor's discretion.
- C. Determine drilling length and equipment pull strength for type of soil encountered.
- D. The pilot hole shall be drilled along the path shown on the Drawings. Pilot hole tolerances are as follows:
 - 1. Vertical tolerance: Provide a minimum of 10 times the bore hole diameter of cover below ditch bottoms and roads with a tolerance of plus or minus 1 foot. The Contractor may go deeper if necessary to prevent breakout.
 - 2. Horizontal tolerance: 2 feet from the centerline of the product pipe.
 - 3. Curve Radius: No curve will be accepted with a radius less than the pipe manufacturer's recommendations.
 - 4. Entry Point Location: The Contractor shall establish the pilot hole entry point.
 - 5. Exit Point Location: The Contractor shall establish the exit point location.
- E. The installed pipeline cover requirements as shown on the Drawings and as specified in this Section shall not be violated.
- F. At completion of pilot hole drilling, furnish Public Services Director with tabulations of horizontal and vertical alignment.

3.06 REAMING

A. Reaming operations shall be conducted at the Contractor's discretion. The type of back reamer to be used shall be determined by the type of subsurface soil conditions encountered during the pilot hole drilling operation. The reamer type shall be at the Contractor's discretion.

3.07 PULL BACK

- A. The entire pipeline to be installed via direction drilling shall be fully assembled before pull back operations begin.
- B. The pipeline shall be supported during pullback operations to allow freedom of movement and prevent damage. The pipeline shall be installed in one continuous pull.

- C. Torsional stress shall be minimized by using a swivel to connect the pull section to the reaming assembly.
- D. Maximum allowable tensile force imposed on the pull section shall not exceed 90% of the pipe manufacturer's safe pull (or tensile) strength. If the pull section is made up of multiple pipe sizes or materials, the lowest safe pull strength value shall govern and the maximum allowable tensile force shall not exceed 90% of this value.
- E. Minimize external pressure when installing the pullback section in the reamed hole. The Contractor shall replace damaged pipe resulting from external pressure at no cost to the Owner. Buoyancy modification shall be at the discretion of the Contractor.
- F. Pull detection wire along with HDPE pipe. Extend wire into locator station at each end of HDPE pipe.

3.08 GUIDANCE SYSTEMS

A. A magnetic survey tool located behind the pilot string cutting head shall be used.

3.09 GATE VALVES

A. Gate valves in accordance with Section 11, Pipe, Fittings, Valves, and Appurtenances, shall be installed on each side of the HDD-installed pipe as directed by the Public Services Department.

3.10 RECORD DRAWINGS AND DOCUMENTATION

- A. Record Drawings shall include a plan, profile, and all information recorded during the work. The Record Drawings shall be tied to the project's survey control and shall be provided in the version of AutoCAD in use by the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills.
- B. The Contractor shall maintain drilling logs that accurately provide drill bit location (both horizontally and vertically) at least every 15 feet along the drill path. In addition, the Contractor shall keep logs that record, at a minimum, the following every 15 minutes throughout each drill pass, back ream pass, or pipe installation pass:
 - 1. Drilling fluid pressure.
 - 2. Drilling fluid flow rate.
 - 3. Drill thrust force.
 - 4. Drill pullback force.
 - 5. Drill head torque.

C. The Public Services Director and his Designee shall have access to instrumentation, readings, and logs at all times during operation.

3.11 UTILITY LOCATES

A. The Contractor shall locate all utilities before excavating or drilling. The Contractor shall be responsible for damage to utilities and shall repair damaged utilities at no cost to the City.

3.12 CLEANUP

- A. Immediately upon completion of work of this Section, the Contractor shall remove all rubbish and debris from the job site. All construction equipment and implements of service shall be removed and the entire area involved shall be left in a neat condition acceptable to the Public Services Director.
- B. "Blow holes" or "breakouts" of drilling fluid to the surface shall be cleaned up immediately and the surface area returned to its original condition. All drilling fluids, spoils, and separated materials shall be disposed of in compliance with Federal, State, and Local environmental regulations.
- C. The Contractor shall repair any damage caused by the Contractor to City, FDOT, or Lake County roads or property to the satisfaction of the respective agency.

APPENDIX A DIRECTIONAL BORE DESIGN FACTORS

Calculations for computing the maximum safe pull back force should be submitted with the project design package. The following equations from the PLEXCO Polyethylene Industrial Piping Systems; "Technical Information; Technical Note: HDD (Guided Bore) with PLEXCO Pipe," are presented for estimating **some** of the factors to be considered in designing a successful directional bore. They are based upon approximations and are for "ideal" conditions. They are by no means all of the considerations to be used in designing a directional bore. The designer is responsible for the design of the directional bore and use of the following shall not transfer any of that responsibility to the City. The City makes no claim to the accuracy or completeness of the equations.

- (a) **PULLBACK FORCE**: The pullback force is calculated at the leading end of the pipe behind the pulling head. For pipe pulled in straight level bores, the frictional resistance or required pulling force, *P F*, is approximated by: Where is the coefficient of friction between pipe and ground; is the net downward or upward force on the pipe (lb/ft); and L is the length (ft).
- (b) **FRICTIONAL RESISTANCE OF DRILLING MUD**: The frictional resistance is highest just before movement and decreases with movement. When pullback ceases, frictional forces and drag forces increase due to the thyrotrophic nature of drilling mud. The mud starts to gel when it is undisturbed. Therefore, pullback should never be stopped, except for drilling rod removal, until the pipe is completely pulled into its permanent position.
- (c) **BUOYANT FORCE**: The pullback force will depend on whether the pipe is full or deliberately weighted to reduce buoyancy. Buoyant force pushes the pipe up against the top of the borehole, creating a frictional drag between the pipe and the borehole. The buoyant weight of the pipe is: Where: D = pipe outside diameter, = specific weight of the mud slurry (lb/ft), and = weight of empty pipe.
- (d) **MINIMUM RADIUS OF CURVATURE**: Drill path curvature, at the entry and exit pits, is limited by the steering capabilities of the boring equipment. Drilling rod typically has a bending radius is around 150 or less, the safe pulling strength of PE pipe may be significantly reduced by the additional tensile stresses due to curvature.
- (e) **CAPSTAN EFFECT**: For pipe pulled around a curve (vertical or horizontal) creating an angle, (in radians), the capstan effect, Where: = coefficient of friction between pipe and slurry or pipe and ground, = net downward (or upward) force on pipe (lb/ft), e = natural logarithm base (e = 2.71828) and L = length (ft).
- (f) **SAFE PULL FORCE**: The safe pull stress may be calculated by subtracting the bending stress due to curvature from the allowable tensile stress: The "safe

pull force" can be found by multiplying the safe pull stress by the cross-sectional area of the pipe. Where: = allowable tensile stress (psi), D = outer diameter of pipe (in), DR = Dimension Ratio and E = time-dependent modulus of elasticity (psi) from tables.

- (g) **NET SAFE PULL FORCE**: All bending stresses due to various curvatures in the boring path are additive and should be subtracted from the safe pull force.
- (h) **TIME DEPENDENCE**: The "safe" pull-load is time dependent. See ASTM F1804 for safe pullback values for PE pipe, less bending stresses. For additional sources of information, the designer is referred to the following reference sources: Mini-Horizontal Directional Drilling Manual (1995), North American Society of Trenchless Technology (NASTT), Chicago, IL PPI Handbook of Polyethylene Piping (1998), Plastics Pipe Institute, and Washington, D.C.

APPENDIX B DIRECTIONAL BORE GUIDELINES

Pipe Size	Safe Pull	Minimum Bend	Wall	Maximum
(inches)	Strength (lbs)	Radius (inches)	Thickness	Defect Depth
4	7,600	96	.36	1/16
6	15,800	138	.55	1/11
8	27,200	181	.73	5/32
10	41,000	222	.91	3/16
12	57,900	264	1.10	1/4

- 1. Schedule the bore with the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Public Services Department 48 hours (2 working days) before boring.
- 2. If bore is over 100 linear feet, the Contractor needs to fuse pipe together the day before.
- 3. The Contractor needs to physically locate existing utilities, following the 48-hour Sunshine One-Call Guidelines.
- 4. Material Inspection: To be done before the bore is scheduled.
- 5. Surface cuts or scratches greater than or equal to maximum defect depth are not acceptable.
- 6. Blue stripe for Water; Green stripe for sanitary force main; Purple stripe for reclaimed water.
- 7. Two tracing wires attached to pipe.
- 8. Performing the bore: Set up the bore log. Calibrate the Contractor's locator with actual depth measurement check the depth of the first rod. Ream the borehole.
- 9. Check the flow of bentonite must be continuous.
- 10. Check the pulling pressure.
- 11. Do not allow operator to exceed safe pull strength.
- 12. Mark up drawing with "As-Built" data.
- 13. Record pullback pressure.
- 14. Fuse DR11 together minimum 440° F to maximum 460° F.
- 15. Cool down time equals: Diameter \div 2.

TOWN OF HOWEY-IN-THE-HILLS

DIRECTIONAL BORE STANDARDS Directional Bore Log

•				Date:	
				/Material:	
Starti	ng Location:	Bo	re Rod Leng	gth:	
No.	Total Length	Distance from Start Point	Depth	Pull Back Pressure	Comments
1					
2					
3					
4					
5					
6					
7					
8					
9					
10					
		red in rod Lengt	h incremen	ts	
-	tor/City		C	ontractor	
Repres	sentative:		C	ontractor:	

END OF SECTION

SECTION 11 PIPE, FITTINGS, VALVES, AND APPURTENANCES

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. This Section does not stand alone and is incorporated as part of Town Construction Specification Manual (CSM). The CSM shall be used for other requirements that may not be covered in this Section.
- B. This Section includes the material standards for pipe, fittings, valves, and appurtenances, as applicable to potable water, wastewater, and reclaimed water installations, unless noted or specified elsewhere in the Town CSM.
- C. Required specialty items not included under this Section shall be high quality and consistent with approved standards of the industry for the applicable service installation, and shall be approved by the Public Services Director or his Designee before installation.
- D. All material is to be furnished by the Contractor or Developer, with the exception of meters and meter couplings.
- E. The Contractor shall furnish and install all supplementary or miscellaneous items, appurtenances, and devices incidental to or necessary for a sound, secure, and complete installation, although such work is not specifically indicated.
- F. The Contractor is responsible for the coordination of work with other trades. All references to Industry Standards (ASTM, ANSI, AWWA, etc.) shall be to the latest revision unless otherwise stated. Only those materials included in the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills CSM shall be installed.
- G. The minimum pipe inside diameter for all potable water mains shall be 8 inches.
- H. All piping and equipment of the same type shall be from one manufacturer, unless authorized in writing by the Town or the Town's representative.
- I. It is the Contractor's responsibility to field verify and restrain all existing connection points.

1.02 SUBMITTALS

- A. All submittals shall be submitted in accordance with the shop drawing submittal requirements as specified in Section 1, General Provisions.
 - 1. Shop Drawings: The Contractor shall submit catalog cut sheets, manufacturer's descriptive literature, and other necessary information to the Public Services Director for approval before installation.
 - 2. Certifications: The Contractor shall submit a certification from the pipe and valve manufacturer that the pipe, fittings, and valves supplied are new, have been manufactured for this project, and have been inspected at the plant.

1.03 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

- A. All pipe and fittings shall be clearly marked with the name or trademark of the manufacturer. All pipe and fittings shall be suitable for 150 psi working pressure and shall meet all applicable AWWA specifications. All pipe installations shall have indicator tape run with pipe to indicate the purpose of piping (potable water, wastewater, and reclaimed water) and copper tracing wire for location purposes. No 3-inch pipe shall be allowed for use in the Town's utility systems.
- B. Reference standards and recommended practices referred to in this Section shall be the latest revision of any such document in effect at the bid time. The following documents are a part of this Section. Where this Section differs from these documents, the requirements of this Section shall apply.

1.04 DUCTILE IRON PIPE, VALVES, AND FITTINGS

Ductile iron pipe and fittings shall conform to the latest revision of the following standards:

- A. The American Society of Mechanical Engineers (ASME)
 - 1. ASME B1.1—Unified Inch Screw Threads, (UN and UNR Thread Form).
 - 2. ASME B16.1—Gray Iron Pipe Flanges and Flanged Fittings: Classes 25, 125, and 250.
 - 3. ASME B16.21—Nonmetallic Flat Gaskets for Pipe Flanges.
- B. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM)
 - 1. ASTM A48/A48M—Standard Specification for Gray Iron Castings.

- 2. ASTM A193/A193M—Standard Specification for Alloy-Steel and Stainless Steel Bolting for High Temperature or High Pressure Service and Other Special Purpose Applications.
- 3. ASTM A194/A194M—Standard Specification for Carbon Steel, Alloy Steel, and Stainless Steel Nuts for Bolts for High Pressure or High Temperature Service, or Both.
- 4. ASTM A307—Standard Specification for Carbon Steel Bolts, Studs, and Threaded Rod 60,000 psi Tensile Strength.
- 5. ASTM A536—Standard Specification for Ductile Iron Castings.
- 6. ASTM A563—Standard Specification for Carbon and Alloy Steel Nuts.
- 7. ASTM B117—Standard Practice for Operating Salt Spray (Fog) Apparatus.
- 8. ASTM C150/C150M—Standard Specification for Portland Cement.
- 9. ASTM C283—Standard Test Methods for Resistance of Porcelain Enameled Utensils to Boiling Acid.
- 10. ASTM D714—Standard Test Method for Evaluating Degree of Blistering of Paints.
- 11. ASTM D792—Standard Test Methods for Density and Specific Gravity (Relative Density) of Plastics by Displacement.
- 12. ASTM D1238—Standard Test Method for Melt Flow Rates of Thermoplastics by Extrusion Plastometer.
- 13. ASTM E96/E96M—Standard Test Methods for Water Vapor Transmission of Materials.
- 14. ASTM G95—Standard Test Method for Cathodic Disbondment Test of Pipeline Coatings (Attached Cell Method).

C. American Water Works Association (AWWA)

- 1. AWWA C104—Cement-Mortar Lining for Ductile-Iron Pipe and Fittings.
- 2. AWWA C110—Ductile-Iron and Gray-Iron Fittings.
- 3. AWWA C111/A21.11—Rubber-Gasket Joints for Ductile-Iron Pressure Pipe and Fittings.
- 4. AWWA C115—Flanged Ductile-Iron Pipe with Ductile-Iron or Gray-Iron Threaded Flanges.
- 5. AWWA C150—Thickness Design of Ductile-Iron Pipe.
- 6. AWWA C151/A21.51—Ductile-Iron Pipe, Centrifugally Cast.
- 7. AWWA C153—Ductile-Iron Compact Fittings.
- 8. AWWA C207 Steel Pipe Flanges for Waterworks Service Sizes 4-Inch through 144-Inch (100 mm through 3,600 mm).
- 9. AWWA C600—Installation of Ductile-Iron Water Mains and Their Appurtenances.
- 10. AWWA C651—Disinfecting Water Mains.

- 11. AWWA C700—Cold-Water Meters Displacement Type, Metal Alloy Main Case.
- 12. AWWA C800—Underground Service Line Valves and Fittings.
- D. International Organization for Standardization (ISO)
 - 1. ISO 9002—Quality Systems Model for Quality Assurance in Production, Installation, and Servicing.
- E. NSF International (NSF)
 - 1. NSF/ANSI 61—Drinking Water System Components Health Effects.
- F. University of Southern California (USC)
 - 1. The USC Foundation for Cross-Connection Control.

1.05 POLYVINYL CHLORIDE (PVC) PRESSURE PIPING AND FITTINGS

PVC pressure pipe and fittings shall conform to the latest revision of the following standards:

- A. American Society of Testing Materials (ASTM)
 - 1. ASTM A242/A242M—Standard Specification for High-Strength Low-Alloy Structural Steel.
 - 2. ASTM A536—Standard Specification for Ductile Iron Castings.
 - 3. ASTM D2241—Standard Specification for Poly(Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Pressure-Rated Pipe (SDR Series).
 - 4. ASTM F477—Standard Specification for Elastomeric Seals (Gaskets) for Joining Plastic Pipe.
- B. American Water Works Association (AWWA)
 - 1. AWWA C900—Polyvinyl Chloride (PVC) Pressure Pipe and Fabricated Fittings, 4-Inch to 60-Inch (100 mm to 1,500 mm).

1.06 HIGH-DENSITY POLYETHYLENE (HDPE) PIPE

HDPE pipe shall conform to the latest revision of the following standards:

- A. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM)
 - 1. ASTM A307—Standard Specification for Carbon Steel Bolts, Studs, and Threaded Rod 60,000 psi Tensile Strength.

- 2. ASTM D3261—Standard Specification for Butt Heat Fusion Polyethylene (PE) Plastic Fittings for Polyethylene (PE) Plastic Pipe and Tubing.
- 3. ASTM D3350—Standard Specification for Polyethylene Plastics Pipe and Fittings Materials.
- 4. ASTM D4976—Standard Specification for Polyethylene Plastics Molding and Extrusion Materials.
- 5. ASTM F714—Standard Specification for Polyethylene (PE) Plastic Pipe (DR-PR) Based on Outside Diameter.
- B. American Water Works Association (AWWA)
 - 1. AWWA C151/A21.51—Ductile-Iron Pipe, Centrifugally Cast.
 - 2. AWWA C901—Polyethylene (PE) Pressure Pipe and Tubing, 1/2-Inch (13 mm) through 3-Inch (76 mm), for Water Service.
- C. International Organization for Standardization (ISO)
 - 1. ISO 9001—Quality Management Systems Requirements.

1.07 SMALL DIAMETER PIPE

Small diameter pipe (3-inch and smaller) shall only be used when directed by Public Services Director or his Designee and shall conform to the latest revision of the following standards:

- A. American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM)
 - 1. ASTM A53/A53M—Standard Specification for Pipe, Steel, Black and Hot-Dipped, Zinc-Coated, Welded and Seamless.
 - 2. ASTM A90/A90M—Standard Test Method for Weight [Mass] of Coating on Iron and Steel Articles with Zinc or Zinc-Alloy Coatings.
 - 3. ASTM A105/A105M—Standard Specification for Carbon Steel Forgings for Piping Applications.
 - 4. ASTM A182/A182M—Standard Specification for Forged or Rolled Alloy and Stainless Steel Pipe Flanges, Forged Fittings, and Valves and Parts for High-Temperature Service.
 - 5. ASTM A193/A193M—Standard Specification for Alloy-Steel and Stainless Steel Bolting for High Temperature or High Pressure Service and Other Special Purpose Applications.
 - 6. ASTM A194/A194M—Standard Specification for Carbon Steel, Alloy Steel, and Stainless Steel Nuts for Bolts for High Pressure or High Temperature Service, or Both.
 - 7. ASTM A312/A312M—Standard Specification for Seamless, Welded, and Heavily Cold Worked Austenistic Stainless Steel Pipes.

- 8. ASTM A320/A320M—Standard Specification for Alloy-Steel and Stainless Steel Bolting for Low-Temperature Service.
- ASTM D1784—Standard Specification for Rigid Poly(Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Compounds and Chlorinated Poly(Vinyl Chloride) (CPVC) Compounds.
- 10. ASTM D1785—Standard Specification for Poly(Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Plastic Pipe, Schedules 40, 80, and 120.
- 11. ASTM D2464—Standard Specification for Threaded Poly(Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Plastic Pipe Fittings, Schedule 80.
- 12. ASTM D2466—Standard Specification for Poly(Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Plastic Pipe Fittings, Schedule 40.
- 13. ASTM D2467—Standard Specification for Poly(Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Plastic Pipe Fittings, Schedule 80.
- 14. ASTM D2564—Standard Specification for Solvent Cements for Poly(Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Plastic Piping Systems.
- 15. ASTM D2657—Standard Practice for Heat Fusion Joining of Polyolefin Pipe and Fittings.
- 16. ASTM D2665 Standard Specification for Poly(Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) Plastic Drain, Waste, and Vent Pipe and Fittings.
- 17. ASTM D2855—Standard Practice for the Two-Step (Primer and Solvent Cement) Method of Joining Poly(Vinyl Chloride) (PVC) or Chlorinated Poly(Vinyl Chloride) (CPVC) Pipe and Piping components with Tapered Sockets.
- 18. ASTM D3261—Standard Specification for Butt Heat Fusion Polyethylene (PE) Plastic Fittings for Polyethylene (PE) Plastic Pipe and Tubing.
- 19. ASTM D3311—Standard Specification for Drain, Waste, and Vent (DWV) Plastic Fittings Patterns.
- 20. ASTM F437—Standard Specification for Threaded Chlorinated Poly(Vinyl Chloride) (CPVC) Plastic Pipe Fittings, Schedule 80.
- 21. ASTM F438—Standard Specification for Socket-Type Chlorinated Poly(Vinyl Chloride) (CPVC) Plastic Pipe Fittings, Schedule 40.
- 22. ASTM F439—Standard Specification for Chlorinated Poly(Vinyl Chloride) (CPVC) Plastic Pipe Fittings, Schedule 80.
- 23. ASTM F441/F441M—Standard Specification for Chlorinated Poly(Vinyl Chloride) (CPVC) Plastic Pipe, Schedules 40 and 80.
- 24. ASTM F493—Standard Specification for Solvent Cements for Chlorinated Poly(Vinyl Chloride) (CPVC) Plastic Pipe and Fittings.
- 25. ASTM F593—Standard Specification for Stainless Steel Bolts, Hex Cap Screws, and Studs.
- 26. ASTM F594—Standard Specification for Stainless Steel Nuts.
- B. Plastic Pipe Institute (PPI)
 - 1. PPI TR-31—Underground Installation of Polyolefin Piping.

C. American Society of Mechanical Engineers (ASME)

- 1. ASME B1.20.1—Pipe Threads, General Purpose (Inch).
- 2. ASME B16.5—Pipe Flanges and Flanged Fittings: NPS 1/2 through NPS 24 Metric/Inch Standard.
- 3. ASME B16.11—Forge Fittings, Socket-Welding and Threaded.
- 4. ASME B18.2.1—Square, Hex, Heavy Hex, and Askew Head Bolts and Hex, Heavy Hex, Hex Flange, Lobed Head, and Lag Screws (Inch Series).
- 5. ASME B36.10M—Welded and Seamless Wrought Steel Pipe.
- 6. ASME B36.19M—Stainless Steel Pipe.

D. National Sanitation Foundation (NSF)

1. NSF/ANSI 61—Drinking Water System Components – Health Effects.

1.08 METER CONNECTION

The meter connection shall conform to the latest revision of the following standard:

A. American Water Works Association (AWWA)

- 1. AWWA C701—Cold-Water Meters Turbine Type, For Customer Service.
- 2. AWWA C702—Cold-Water Meters Compound Type.
- 3. AWWA C703—Cold-Water Meters Fire Service Type.
- 4. AWWA C706—Standard for Direct-Reading, Remote-Registration Systems for Cold-Water Meters.
- 5. AWWA C707—Encoder-Type Remote-Registration Systems for Cold-Water Meters.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 PIPE AND FITTINGS

A. Design Criteria – General

- 1. Pipe for sizes 4 inches and larger supplied under this specification shall have a nominal iron pipe size (IPS) outside diameter (OD) and shall be rated for a minimum working pressure of 150 psi.
- 2. The minimum pipe inside diameter for all potable water mains shall be 8 inches.

- 3. A piping schedule listing the piping identification abbreviations and materials of construction shall be provided on the Contract Drawings.
- 4. All potable water piping systems including pipe, valves, fittings, weld-solvents, linings, gaskets, lubricants, grout disinfection agents, etc., and surfaces in contact with potable water shall meet all local and State of Florida regulations and requirements including NSF/ANSI 61. The Contractor shall coordinate color of potable water system piping color with Owner's color standard and shall provide color as approved by the Owner.
- 5. Nonmetallic Marking Tape: Marking tape shall be "Extra-Stretch" marking tape. Extra-Stretch marking tape shall consist of 6-ply copolymer film bonded together without the use of adhesives, specifically formulated for prolonged use underground. It shall be highly resistant to alkalis, acids, and other destructive agents found in the soil. Extra Stretch tape shall have a minimum thickness of 6 mils, minimum tensile strength of 80 pounds per 3-inch-wide strip, and a minimum elongation of 600%. Tape shall bear a continuous printed message repeated every 16 to 36 inches warning of the installation buried below. Installation instructions for the tape shall be printed with each message along the entire length. Manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
- 6. <u>Locator Wire for Non-metallic Pipe</u>: For location purposes all open-cut nonmetallic piping shall have a type THW insulated PVC copper conductor, #10 solid strand wire strapped to the pipe at 10-foot intervals. Wire shall meet National Electric Codes and Underwriter Laboratories, Inc. requirements. See Section 10, Horizontal Directional Drilling, for requirements of HDD installed pipe.
- 7. Piping Supports: The Contractor shall furnish and install all supports necessary to hold the piping and appurtenances in a firm, substantial manner at the lines and grades indicated on the Drawings or as specified. Piping within pumping stations shall be adequately supported from floors, walls, ceilings, or beams. Supports from the floor shall be by approved saddle stands or suitable concrete piers as indicated or approved. The Developer shall submit to the Public Services Director calculations, signed and sealed by a Registered Florida Professional Engineer to demonstrate that the proposed pipe supports are sufficient to support the loads they are intended to support.

2.02 DUCTILE IRON PIPE

A. Design Criteria

- 1. Ductile iron pipe shall be in accordance with AWWA C151/A21.51. Pipe shall be laid in accordance with AWWA C150. Thickness class shall be governed by design conditions; minimum pressure class shall be 350.
- 2. The minimum pipe inside diameter for water mains shall be 8 inches.
- 3. Cast and ductile iron pipefittings shall conform to AWWA C110 and AWWA C153. All underground fittings shall be mechanical joint, unless otherwise specified.
- 4. Ductile iron pipe needs to be marked with stripe or polywrap with appropriate color code.

5. Joints:

- a. "Push-On" and mechanical type joints shall be in accordance with AWWA C111/A21.11.
- b. Restrained joint assemblies with mechanical joint pipe shall be Mechanical Joint Retainer Glands, "locked-type" joints and joint restraints by a manufacturer in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
- c. Flanged connections shall be in accordance with AWWA C115, 125-pound standard.
- d. No leaded joints or connection of any kind will be permitted.
- e. PVC fittings for pressure mains are prohibited above 2 inches in diameter.
- f. Manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

6. Coatings and Linings:

- a. Ductile iron pipe and fittings for water service shall be cement mortar lined in accordance with AWWA C104.
- b. Ductile iron pipe and fittings for water service shall receive an exterior asphaltic coating approximately 1 mil thick. The coating shall be applied to the exterior of all pipe and fittings unless otherwise specified.
- Coatings shall be applied in accordance with AWWA C110 and AWWA C153-fittings, AWWA C115-flanged pipe, and AWWA C151/A21.51-ductile iron pipe.

- 7. Bolts and Nuts for Flanges for Ductile Iron Pipe:
 - a. Bolts and nuts for Class 150 flanges (including AWWA C207, Class D) located indoors, outdoors above and below ground, and in vaults and structures shall be carbon steel, ASTM A307, Grade B.
 - b. Bolts and nuts for submerged Class 150 flanges shall be Type 304 stainless steel conforming to ASTM A193/A193M (Grade B8) for bolts and ASTM A194/A194M (Grade 8) for nuts. Fit shall be Classes 2A conforming to ASME B1.1 when connecting to castiron valves having body bolt holes.
- 8. Gaskets for Flanges for Steel, Ductile Iron, and Stainless Steel Pipe:
 - a. Flange gaskets shall be in accordance with AWWA C207, except as modified herein. Gaskets shall be ring type. All gasket material shall be suitable for the fluid being conveyed and shall be resistant to free chlorine concentrations up to 10 mg/L. All gasket material shall be rated to the surge pressures listed in the pipe schedule. Gaskets shall be ethylene propylene diene monomer (EPDM), or Viton, unless otherwise noted by the Town.

2.03 PVC PIPE (8-INCH AND ABOVE)

A. Design Criteria

- 1. Pipe shall be manufactured from clean virgin Type I, Grade I rigid, unplasticized polyvinyl chloride resin (Class 12454-A or Class 12454-B) conforming to ASTM D1784. The PVC compound shall have an established hydrostatic design basis (HDB) of 4,000 psi as described in ASTM D2837. The pipe shall bear the NSF seal for potable water pipe.
- 2. The minimum pipe inside diameter for water mains shall be 8 inches.
- 3. Pipe with diameters of 8 to 12 inches for water mains shall have a minimum dimension ratio (DR) of 18, Class 150, and shall be manufactured in accordance with AWWA C900 latest revision.
- 4. Pipe with diameters of 14 inches and larger for water mains shall have a minimum DR of 25, Class 165, and shall be manufactured in accordance with AWWA C900 latest revision or Pressure Class 350 ductile iron pipe may be used.

- 5. Pipe buried at depths of 10 feet or greater to top of pipe shall have a minimum DR of 26 for all pipe diameters.
- 6. PVC pipe restrainers shall be manufactured in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
- 7. PVC Pipe Colors:
 - a. WATER Blue.
 - b. WASTEWATER Green.
 - c. REUSE RECLAIM WATER Pantone Purple.
- 8. Bolts and Nuts for Flanges for PVC Pipe:
 - a. Bolts and nuts for buried and submerged flanges and flanges located outdoors above ground or in vaults and structures shall be Type 304 stainless steel conforming to ASTM A193/A193M, Grade B8, for bolts and ASTM A194/A194M, Grade 8, for nuts.
 - b. The Contractor shall provide a washer under each nut and under each bolthead. Washers shall be of the same material as the nuts.
- 9. Gaskets for Flanges for PVC Pipe:
 - a. Gaskets for flanged joints shall be full faced, 1/8 inch thick, having a Brinell Hardness of 50 to 70 durometer A. Gasket material for other than sodium hypochlorite service shall be ethylene-propylene rubber (EPR). Gasket material for sodium hypochlorite service shall be Viton ETP. Gaskets shall be compatible with the chemicals being conveyed.

2.04 HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE (HDPE) PIPE

Design Criteria

- 1. All HDPE shall be by manufacturer provided in Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
- 2. All HDPE pipe 4 inches in diameter or greater shall have a ductile iron pipe outside diameter, and HDPE pipe 3 inches in diameter and smaller shall be CTS.
- 3. All HDPE piping system components shall be the products of one manufacturer.

- 4. Pipe and fittings shall be manufactured by an ISO 9001-certified manufacturer.
- 5. HDPE pipe 4 inches in diameter and larger shall conform to material standard ASTM D3350 345434 E cell classification rated as PE 3408 by the Plastics Pipe Institute. Minimum pressure rating shall be in accordance with Piping Schedule Drawing or as specified in this Section. Minimum pressure rating shall be 150 psi Standard Dimension Ratio (SDR) 11 for pipe sizes greater than 4 inches in diameter. For pipe sizes 3 inches and smaller in diameter, the minimum pressure rating shall be 200 psi SDR 9.
- 6. The polyethylene compound shall be suitably protected against degradation by ultraviolet light.
- 7. The maximum allowable hoop stress shall be 800 psi at 73.4° F.
- 8. The pipe manufacturer shall be listed with the Plastic Pipe Institute as meeting the requirements of the resin manufacturer to manufacture pipe from the resin used.

B. Fittings

- 1. The pipe manufacturer shall mold or fabricate the polyethylene fittings. Butt fusion outlets shall be made to the same outside diameter, wall thickness, and tolerances as the mating pipe. All fittings and custom fabrications shall be fully rated for the same internal pressure as the mating pipe.
 - a. <u>Molded Fittings</u>: Molded fittings shall be manufactured in accordance with ASTM D3261 and shall be so marked. Each production lot of molded fittings shall be subjected to the test required under ASTM D3261. The manufacturer shall submit samples from each molded fitting production lot to x-ray inspection for voids and shall certify that voids were not found.
 - b. <u>Polyethylene Flange Adapters</u>: Flange adapter shall be made with sufficient throughbore length to be clamped in a butt fusion joining machine without the use of a subend holder. The sealing surface of the flange adapter shall be machined with a series of small v-shaped grooves to restrain the gasket against blow-out. Flange adaptors shall be fitted with ductile-iron backup rings pressure rated equal to or greater than the mating pipe. The Contractor shall provide flat ring-type EPDM gaskets with gasket thickness and

hardness as recommended by the pipe manufacturer for use with HDPE flanged joints. Provide carbon steel hardware (bolts, nuts, washers, etc.) conforming to ASTM A307, Grade B for use with the flange adapters assemblies in accordance with the pipe manufacturer's recommendations. Gaskets shall be made from material suitable for exposure to the liquid within the pipe.

- c. <u>Fabricated Fittings</u>: Fabricated fittings shall be made by heat fusion joining specially machined shapes cut from pipe, polyethylene sheet stock, or molded fittings. Fabricated fittings shall be rated for internal pressure service equivalent to the full-service pressure rating of the mating pipe. Pressure de-rated fittings are not acceptable. Directional fittings 16 inches IPS and larger, such as elbows, tees, crosses, etc., shall have a plain end inlet for butt fusion and flanged directional outlets.
- 2. Ductile Iron/HDPE Mechanical Joint Adaptors:
 - a. The manufacturer of the HDPE pipe shall supply all ductile iron/HDPE mechanical joint adaptors and accessories required to connect plain-end HDPE piping to mechanical joint fittings, valves, and appurtenances.
 - b. The ductile iron/HDPE mechanical joint adaptor shall consist of:
 - (1) A molded or fabricated HDPE mechanical joint transition fitting.
 - (2) A Buna-N gasket for a ductile iron mechanical joint.
 - (3) A ductile iron mechanical joint backup drive ring.
 - (4) Cor-Ten mechanical joint tee bolts.
 - (5) A stainless-steel sleeve stiffener molded or fabricated within the mechanical joint (MJ) end of the HDPE mechanical joint adaptor fitting.
 - c. The ductile iron/HDPE mechanical joint adaptor shall be connected to the HDPE pipe by a heat-fused joint on one end and connected to a ductile iron pipe valve, fitting, or appurtenance with the internally stiffened mechanical joint end.
 - d. The tee bolts and backup drive ring shall act as a joint restraint for connections to mechanical joints.
 - e. The HDPE mechanical joint adaptor fitting shall be molded or fabricated by the manufacturer of the HDPE pipe. All molded

fittings shall be fully pressure rated to match the SDR pipe pressure rating. Fabricated fittings shall be rated for internal pressure service equivalent to the full pressure rating of the mated IPS pipe.

- f. If rework compounds are required, only those generated in the manufacturer's own plant from resin compounds of the same class and type from the same raw material supplier shall be used.
- g. Solvent epoxy cementing and mechanical joining with bolt on wrap-around clamps shall not be used.

3. HDPE Pipe Jointing Method:

- a. HDPE pipe shall be jointed by butt fusion in accordance with the pipe manufacturer's directions and only for pipe within one SDR ratio of each other.
- b. For SDR ratios that are two or more apart (i.e., SDR 21 to an SDR 11), the joint shall be made using a restrained joints. Same-diameter pipe may be joined by using HDPE flange adapters and backup rings bolted to each other.
- c. All HDPE pipe joined by butt fusion shall be made from the same class and type of raw material made by the same raw material supplier.
- d. Butt fusion means the butt joining of the pipe by heat fusion aligned faces of the pipe ends (butts) in a suitable apparatus and joining under controlled pressure and alignment.
- e. The external bead resulting from the butt-fusion process shall be visible and examined for complete butt-fusion 360° around the pipe exterior.
- f. Short spools of pipe between valves and fittings shall be ductile iron pipe, with all joints restrained for sizes 4 inches and larger. For 2-inch, the spool shall be Schedule 40 Type 304 stainless steel piping or Schedule 80 PVC piping with IP threads stainless steel or PVC fittings and all joints restrained.
- g. Where approved by the Public Services Director or his Designee,
 the HDPE pipe and fittings may be fused with Electrofusion
 Couplings. Technical information must be provided to demonstrate

that the fused coupling will not compromise the structural integrity of the HDPE pipe.

C. Polyethylene Tubing and Fittings – 2 Inches and Less: Tubing shall comply with AWWA C800 and AWWA C901, be approved for potable water service by the NSF and bear the NSF seal. Tubing shall be by manufacturer provided in Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM. The product shall be rated for a minimum working pressure of 200 psi with a minimum SDR of 9. Fittings shall be brass, equipped with compression type connections.

2.05 VALVES

A. General: The valve type, size, rating, flow direction arrow if applicable, and manufacturer shall be clearly marked on each unit. Valves shall open left (counterclockwise) with an arrow cast in the metal of operation hand wheels and nuts indicating the direction of opening. Valves shall be located on each leg of every tee and cross.

B. Gate Valves

- 1. <u>Valves for Underground Service</u>: Valves from 2 through 12 inches for underground service shall be iron body gate valves, non-rising stem type and shall be equipped with a 2-inch square cast-iron operating nut with corrosion protection coating inside and out. Resilient seated valve, which meets all requirements of AWWA C515 (water). Valves shall be by manufacturer provided in Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM. <u>All dead end lines will have valves at the end equal to the size of main line with blow off attached.</u> End line valves shall be adequately restrained to the pipeline such that they may be excavated and the line extended without shutting off line pressure.
- 2. <u>Valves for Aboveground Service for Water Systems</u>: Valves shall be flanged iron body, bronze mounted resilient seat gate valves, conforming to AWWA C515, with the exception that valves shall be outside screw and yoke (OS&Y) rising stem type. Valves shall have cast iron hand wheels or chain operators with galvanized steel chains, as required. Valves for fire suppression system shall be approved by Town fire officials and a detector valve may be required.
- 3. <u>Valves Smaller than 2 Inches</u>: Valves smaller than 2 inches shall be bronze body gate valve conforming to Federal Specifications 150 psi minimum working pressure with threaded joints by manufacturer provided in Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

C. Backflow Devices

- 1. All services are to be protected by a backflow prevention device suited to the highest degree of hazard encountered at the connection. Maintenance of the device is to remain the responsibility of the Utility customer, including proper certifications. All backflow assemblies need to be tested and reports sent to the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills before they can be put into service.
- 2. Double check valve assembly shall be designed to specification of the USC Foundation for Cross-Connection Control Laboratory, and ASSE #1015. Double check valves for 2-1/2 through 10 inches. Double check valve assembly from 2-1/2 inches and up shall be furnished with OS&Y gate valve shut-offs. Manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
- 3. All commercial services shall be equipped with a reduced pressure zone backflow prevention device(s). Reduced pressure zone valve shall be designed to specification of the USC Foundation for Cross-Connection Control Laboratory, and ASSE #1013. Reduced pressure zone valve assemblies 2 inches and up shall be furnished with OS&Y gate valve shutoffs. Manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
- 4. The pressure vacuum breaker on 3/4- to 2-inch lines shall be ASSE 1020 approved, and supplied with full port ball valves. The main body and bonnet shall be bronze (ASTM B584), the loaded-air inlet shall use a silicone elastomer spring and seat disc. The entire assembly shall be accessible for maintenance and testing without removing the device from the line. The pressure vacuum breaker shall be furnished with shut-off valves and ball type test cocks. Manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
- 5. Shut-off valves on backflow assembly for sizes 3/4 through 2 inches shall be provided with ball valves, assemblies above 2 inches shall be provided with resilient seat full flow gate valves.
- 6. Where reclaimed water is available, all potable water connections shall be equipped with a reduced pressure zone backflow prevention device.
- 7. All backflow prevention devices including but not limited to reduce pressure and double detector check assemblies (DDCAs) shall be set within 12 inches of the meter and shall be set a minimum of 12 inches

- above the 100-year flood plain. Pressure vacuum breakers shall be 12 inches above the highest point of use, not to exceed 5 feet.
- 8. Fire sprinkler systems to have a DDC valve assembly with bypass meter and device equipped with a 3/4-inch register mounted meter on the bypass meter for theft prevention. Equipment manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
- 9. All Backflow devices criteria will adhere to the Town Backflow Ordinance 2007-04, or latest ordinance.
- D. Butterfly Valves: Valves 14 inches and larger shall be cast-iron body, self-lubricated, resilient seated, one-piece stainless steel shaft, and capable of driptight shut-off at the rated pressure and meet AWWA C504. Valve operators shall conform to AWWA C504. Valve operator for buried or submerged installations shall be furnished with sealed enclosures. Valves shall be equipped with actuating nuts, cast iron hand wheels, or chain operator as appropriate for the installation and type of operator. Valves shall be installed in a vertical position. All valves shall be accompanied by a 3-inch diameter bronze valve marker anchored in the concrete pad that indicates size of valve, type of valve, service (potable water), and direction and number of turns to open. Manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

E. Fire Hydrants

- 1. Fire hydrants shall be by manufacturer in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM. Note: See Town details for painting.
- 2. A blue roadway reflector shall be required to be installed with each fire hydrant.
- 3. Valve shall have the text, "FIRE" and painted red.
- 4. Fire hydrants must be red with bonnet color corresponding to the flow as determined by the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Fire Department.

F. Air Release Valves

1. Air release valves shall be automatic float operated valves designed to release accumulated air from a potable water piping system while the system is in operation and under pressure. Manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

- 2. Valves shall conform to the following standards:
 - a. AWWA C512.
 - b. NSF/ANSI 61 Drinking Water System Components Health Effects.
 - c. Manufacturer shall meet requirements of ISO 9001.
- 3. The valve body shall be threaded with national pipe thread (NPT) inlets and outlets. The body inlet connection shall be hexagonal for a wrench connection. The valve shall also have two additional NPT connections for the addition of gauges, testing, and draining.

4. Design:

- a. The cover shall be bolted to the valve body and sealed with a flat gasket. Resilient seals shall be replaceable and provide drop tight shut off to the full valve pressure rating.
- b. Floats shall be unconditionally guaranteed against failure including pressure surges. Mechanical linkage shall provide sufficient mechanical advantage so that the valve will open under full operating pressure. Simple lever designs shall consist of a single pivot arm and a resilient orifice button. Compound lever designs shall consist of two levers and an adjustable threaded resilient orifice button.

5. Materials:

- a. The valve body and cover shall be constructed of ASTM A48/A48M Class 30 cast iron for working pressures up to 300 psi.
- b. The orifice, float and linkage mechanism shall be constructed of Type 316 stainless steel. Non-metallic floats or linkage mechanisms are not acceptable. The orifice button shall be Viton for simple lever valves and Buna-N for compound lever designs.
- 6. Options: The valve body and cover shall be constructed of ASTM A129 Grade Class B cast iron for working pressures up to 300 psi. Where reclaimed water is available, all potable water connections shall be equipped with a reduced pressure zone backflow prevention device.

7. Air valve assemblies shall be in accordance with Section 16, Wastewater Force Main System, for wastewater service and Section 22, Reclaimed Water System, for reclaimed water service.

G. Automatic Flushing System

- 1. The automatic flushing system consists of a base and cover, built in piping, programmable electronic timer, battery, solenoid, and control valve.
- 2. The base shall be UV resistant and vented to reduce erosion and dissipate the force of the discharging water. The cover shall be blue and be UV and impact resistant. The cover shall be lockable to the base and lock/unlock with a special key.
- 3. The glass reinforced nylon control valve shall be 2 inches in diameter and shall open and close via an electric solenoid.
- 4. A multi-event programming module shall control the opening and closing of the solenoid. A lithium battery shall provide the power to the unit. The programming unit shall be located above the discharge of the flushing water.
- 5. Flushing system shall have dechlorination capability. Manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM. If a system other than an approved manufacturer's is provided, the programming controller and security locking key shall be provided by the Contractor.

H. Insertion Valves:

- 1. Insertion valve shall be used upon approval by the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills on a case-by-case basis.
- 2. The insertion valve shall be a resilient seat gate valve type designed for potable water, raw water, reclaimed water, or wastewater.
- 3. Insertion valves must meet ANSI/AWWA 515
- 4. Insertion valve must be ductile iron body type.

2.06 MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS

- Valve Boxes: Units shall be two-piece, screw type, adjustable, cast iron, minimum A. interior diameter of 5 inches. Potable valve box covers shall be round and painted blue cast with the "WATER" inscription in legible writing on the top. Wastewater valve box covers shall be round and painted green cast with the, or "SEWER" inscription in legible lettering on the top. Reclaim valve box covers shall be square and painted purple, cast with the "RECLAIM" inscription in legible lettering on the top. Fire service valve box covers shall be round and painted red cast with the "FIRE" inscription in legible writing on the top. Boxes shall be suitable for the applicable surface loading and valve size. Valve boxes not in the pavement shall have concrete pads installed with minimum dimensions of 24 x 24 x 4 inches. All valves shall be accompanied by a 3-inch diameter bronze valve marker anchored in the concrete pad that indicates size of valve, type of valve, service (water), and direction and number of turns to open. Manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
- B. Meter Boxes: Single and double plastic meter boxes shall be by manufacturer provided in Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
- C. Water Service Lines: Service lines shall be 1 inch for single and 2 inches with 1-inch branch off for double service. All fittings and corporation stops shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM. Curb Stops (lock wing), "Y" Branch, etc., shall be in accordance with the table below: **Note:** All materials shall meet the Town specifications approval.

Size (Inch)	Туре	Ford	McDonald	Mueller
1	FIP x FIP	B11-444W	6101W	B20200 R
1	Comp. X FIP	B41-444W	6102W-22	B25170 R
1	FIP x SPUD	B13-444W	6101MW	B24351 R
1	Comp. X SPUD	B43-4344W	6100MW-22	B24350 R

Note: The Town must approve Service layout Submittals.

D. Fire Service Meters

1. <u>General</u>: All meters furnished shall be manufactured by a registered ISO 9001 quality standard facility. Acceptable meters shall have a minimum of 10 years of successful field use. All specifications meet or exceed the latest revision of AWWA C703. The use of Fire Service Meters shall be as directed by the Public Services Director or his Designee.

- 2. Type: Meters shall consist of a combination of an AWWA Class II in-line horizontal axis turbine for measuring high rates of flow and a positive displacement bypass meter conforming to AWWA C700 for measuring low rates of flow. An automatic valve shall direct the flow from the bypass meter to the mainline meter as flow rates increase and back to the bypass meter as flow rates decrease. All components of the meter assembly shall be both UL (Underwriter's Laboratory) Listed and FM (Factory Mutual) approved for fire service use. Meters shall be certified to NSF/ANSI 61, Annex G requirements.
- 3. <u>Capacity</u>: The capacity of the meters in terms of normal operating range, maximum rate for continuous use, maximum loss of head, and extended low flow capability is as follows:

Size (Inch)	Normal Operating	Maximum Rate for Continuous Use	Maximum Loss of Head @ Max Rate (psi)	Extended Low Flow
4	3/4 - 1,200	1,200	9	3/8
6	$1\ 1/2 - 2,500$	2,500	10.5	3/4
8	2 - 4,000	4,000	10.5	1
10	2-6,500	6,500	9	1

4. <u>Size</u>: The size of meters shall be determined by the nominal size (in inches) of the opening in the inlet and outlet flanges. Overall lengths of the meters shall be as follows:

<u>Laying Length (Inches)</u>

4 - 33

6 - 45

8 - 53

10 - 68

5. <u>Cover and Body</u>: The meter cover shall be cast of an NSF/ANSI 61, Annex, G, no-lead high copper alloy containing a minimum of 85% copper. An arrow indicating direction of flow shall be cast in raised characters on the cover. The cover shall have a rated working pressure of 175 psi. The cover shall contain a calibration vane for calibrating the turbine measuring element while in-line and under pressure. The calibration vane shall be mounted under the register that is attached in a tamper-resistant manner. The meter body, strainer body, and valve body shall be 300 series stainless steel. The meter body shall be welded to the valve body effecting a uni-body construction with the valve. The strainer outlet and meter inlet shall be connected by a flexible grooved coupling. The meter assembly shall have a rated working pressure of 175 psi. Meters shall be supplied with a strainer designed and approved for the fire service

- use by UL and FM, and shall have a rated working pressure of 175 psig. Manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
- 6. <u>External Bolts</u>: Meter, strainer, and valve cover bolts shall be made of AISI Type 316 stainless steel. All other bolts shall be zinc-plated steel or stainless steel.
- 7. <u>Connections</u>: Inlet and outlet flanges shall be 300 series stainless steel and round flanged conforming to AWWA C207, Class D.
- 8. <u>Registers</u>: Registers shall be permanently roll-sealed, straight reading in gallons, cubic feet, or cubic meters. Registers shall include a center-sweep test hand and low flow indicator. Registers shall be removable for replacement without interruption of the service line.
- 9. <u>Register Boxes</u>: Register boxes and covers shall be of bronze composition. The name of the manufacturer and the meter serial number shall be clearly identifiable and located on the register box covers.
- 10. <u>Register Box Sealing</u>: The register box shall be affixed to the top cover by means of a plastic tamperproof seal pin that must be destroyed in order to remove the register.
- 11. <u>Meter Serial Number</u>: The meter serial number shall be on the meter flange or cover and on register box covers.
- 12. <u>Unitized Measuring Element (UME)</u>: A UME is a complete assembly, factory calibrated to AWWA Standards that includes the cover, registers, and a turbine measuring element. It shall be easily field removable from the meter body without the requirement of unbolting flanges.
- 13. <u>Intermediate Gear Train</u>: The intermediate gear train shall be directly coupled to the turbine rotor and magnetically coupled to the register through the meter cover. The gear train shall be housed within the turbine measuring chamber. All moving parts of the gear train shall be made of a self-lubricating polymer or AISI Type 316 stainless steel for operation in water.
- 14. <u>Bypass Meter</u>: The bypass meter shall be of a positive displacement, nutating disc type. The bypass meter may be piped on the left or right side of the assembly. The bypass meter shall conform to AWWA C700 standards in the following sizes:

Mainline Size Meter Size

4-inch Mainline
 6-inch Mainline
 8- and 10-inch Mainline
 1-inch Bypass Meter
 2-inch Bypass Meter
 2-inch Bypass Meter

- 15. <u>Automatic Valve</u>: The automatic valve shall be of the spring-loaded, knuckle-joint type. All internal linkage parts shall be stainless steel. A vulcanized rubber disc on a stainless steel clapper plate shall seal against a bronze seat. The springs shall be AISI Type 18-8 stainless steel. The disc meter shall include a self- actuated valve that directs flow through the disc meter at low flow rates, and through the turbine meter at high flow rates. At high flow rates, the self-actuated throttle valve shall restrict the flow through the disc meter to minimize wear.
- 16. <u>Strainer</u>: A strainer shall be provided for the disc meter. It shall be easily removable and have an effective straining area of double the disc meter inlet.
- 17. <u>Registration Accuracy</u>: Registration accuracy over the normal operating range shall be 98.5% to 101.5%.
- 18. <u>Remote Capability Options</u>: All meters shall be equipped with encoder remote registers conforming to AWWA C707 and meet all AWWA C703 performance standards.
- 19. Manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

E. Compound Meters

- 1. <u>General</u>: All meters furnished shall be manufactured by a registered ISO 9001 quality standard facility. Acceptable meters shall have a minimum of 10 years of successful field use. All specifications meet or exceed the latest revision of AWWA C702. The use of compound meters shall be as directed by the Public Services Director or his Designee.
- 2. <u>Type</u>: Compound meters shall consist of a combination of an AWWA Class II turbine meter for measuring low rates of flow enclosed in a single maincase. An automatic valve shall direct the flows through the disc meter at low flow rates and through the turbine meter at high flow rates. At high flow rates, the automatic valve shall also serve to restrict the flow through the disc meter to minimize wear.

3. <u>Capacity</u>: The capacity of the meters in terms of normal operating range, maximum rate for continuous use, maximum loss of head, and extended low flow capability is as follows:

Size (Inch)	Normal Operating Range (gpm)	Maximum Continuous Flow (gpm)	Maximum Loss of Head @ Max Rate (psi)	Maximum Intermittent Flow (gpm)	Low Flow (gpm)
2	1/2 - 200	160	8	200	1/8
3	1/2 - 450	350	8	450	1/8
4	1 - 1,000	700	8	1,000	1/2
6	1-1/2-2,000	1,400	8.5	2,000	3/4
6 x 8	1-1/2-2,000	2,000	10.5	2,000	3/4

4. <u>Size</u>: The size of meters shall be determined by the nominal size (in inches) of the opening in the inlet and outlet flanges. Overall lengths of the meters shall be as follows:

Meter Size	Laying Length
2-inch	15 1/4-inch
3-inch	17-inch
4-inch	20-inch
6-inch	24-inch
6-inch x 8-inch	55 3/8-inch

- 5. <u>Case and Cover</u>: The maincase and cover shall be cast from an ANSI/NSF 61 certified no lead high copper alloy containing 85% copper. The size, model, and arrows indicating direction of flow shall be cast in raised characters on the maincase and cover. The covers all contain a stainless steel calibration vane for calibrating the turbine measuring element while the meter is in-line and under pressure. A test plug shall be located in the maincase or the cover for field testing of the meter.
- 6. <u>External Bolts</u>: Casing bolts shall be made of AISI Type 316 stainless steel.
- 7. <u>Connections</u>: Maincases shall be flanged. The 2-inch meters shall be oval flanged and 3- through 6-inch sizes shall be round flanged per Table 4, AWWA C702.
- 8. <u>Registers</u>: Separate magnetic drive registers shall record the flow of the turbine and disc meters and their total will be the registration of the compound meter. The registers shall be permanently roll-sealed, straight reading in gallons, cubic feet, or cubic meters. Registers shall include a

- center-sweep test hand, a low flow indicator, and a glass lens. Registers shall be serviceable without interruption of the meter's operation.
- 9. <u>Register Boxes</u>: Register boxes and covers shall be of bronze composition. The name of the manufacturer shall be clearly identifiable and located on the register box covers.
- 10. <u>Register Box Sealing</u>: Registers shall be affixed to the cover by means of a plastic tamperproof seal pin that must be destroyed in order to remove the register.
- 11. <u>Meter Serial Number</u>: The meter serial number shall be imprinted on the meter flange or cover as well as on the register box covers.
- 12. Measuring Chamber:
 - a. The turbine measuring chamber shall be a self- contained unit, attached to the cover for easy removal. The turbine shaft shall be tungsten carbide with tungsten carbide inserts and shall rotate in removable graphite bushings. Thrust bearings shall be tungsten carbide.
 - b. The nutating disc chamber shall be a self-contained unit mounted on the cover and easily removable from the cover. It shall conform to AWWA C700 for the following sizes: a 5/8-inch disc shall be used for 2-inch and 3-inch items; a 3/4-inch disc shall be used for 4-inch items; and a 1-inch disc shall be used for 6-inch items. The inlet to the disc chamber shall be a "single" opening of adequate size not to be susceptible to plugging and water restriction by water-borne debris.
- 13. <u>UME</u>: A UME is a complete assembly, factory calibrated to AWWA Standards that includes the cover, registers, and both a turbine measuring element and a nutating disc chamber assembly. It shall be easily field removable from the meter body without the requirement of unbolting flanges.
- 14. <u>Intermediate Gear Train</u>: The intermediate gear train shall be directly coupled from the turbine rotor and magnetically coupled to the register through the meter cover. The gear train shall be housed within the turbine measuring chamber. All moving parts of the gear train shall be made of a self-lubricating polymer or AISI Type 316 stainless steel for operation in water.

15. Automatic Valve:

- a. The automatic valve shall be of the spring-loaded, poppet type. All valve parts shall be made of no-lead high copper alloy containing a minimum of 85% copper, stainless steel, or a suitable polymer with a replaceable semi-hard EPDM rubber seat.
- b. Only the cover must be removed to gain access to the valve for inspection or service.
- c. The disc meter shall include a self-actuated valve that directs flow through the disc meter at low flow rates and through the turbine at high flow rates. At high flow rates, the self-actuated throttle valve shall restrict the flow through the disc meter to minimize wear.
- 16. <u>Strainer</u>: A strainer shall be provided for the disc meter. It shall be easily removable and have an effective straining area of double the disc meter inlet.
- 17. <u>Registration Accuracy</u>: Registration accuracy over the normal operating range shall be 98.5% to 101.5%. Registration at the crossover shall not be less than 95% with direct reading registers. Registration at the crossover shall not be less than 90% with absolute encoder or generator remote registers. Registration at the extended low flow rate shall not be less than 95%.

18. Remote Capability Options:

- a. <u>Type A</u> All meters shall be equipped with encoder remote registers conforming to AWWA C707 and shall meet all AWWA C702 performance standards.
 - All meters shall be equipped with encoder remote registers conforming to AWWA C707 and meet all AWWA C703 performance standards.
- b. <u>Type B</u> All meters shall be equipped with generator remotes conforming to AWWA C706, and shall meet all AWWA C702 performance standards and shall include all hardware. Two-wire cable shall not be <u>included</u> in quoted meter prices.
- c. Manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

F. Strainers

- 1. <u>General</u>: All strainers furnished shall be manufactured by a registered ISO 9001 quality standard facility. This specification covers 150 psi working pressure plate-type strainers for use with water meters of 2- through 20-inch pipe size. The strainer is to be mounted upstream of the meter to prevent debris such as stones or pebbles greater than 3/16 inch in diameter from entering or damaging the meter.
- 2. <u>General Requirements</u>: The strainer shall be designed for minimum weight and pressure loss and shall be in conformance with the data shown below:

Pipe Size (Inches)	Laying Length (Inches)	Maximum Height Base to Center of Flange (Inches)
2	7	2 1/8
3	6	3 3/4
4	7 1/2	4 1/2
6	9	5 1/2
8	10	6 3/4
10	15	8
12	16 7/8	9 1/2
16"	24 1/4	11 3/4
20"	18 5/8	13 3/4

- 3. The strainer screen shall be made of perforated AISI Type 18-8 stainless steel plate and be shaped for maximum rigidity against forces exerted by the flow stream.
- 4. The effective straining area shall be at least double that of the meter maincase inlet area.
- 5. The 2-inch strainer shall be furnished with oval two-bolt flanged connections. Strainers 3 inches and larger shall be furnished with round flanged connections. Bolt circle, bolt hole diameters, and flange dimensions shall be in compliance with meter connection specifications contained in AWWA C701.
- 6. The strainer bodies and covers in sizes 2- through 10-inch shall be made from an NSF/ANSI 61 certified no-lead high copper alloy containing a minimum of 85% copper. The manufacturer's name, strainer pipe size, and direction of flow (if required) shall be cast in raised letters and shall be clearly visible.

- 7. Bodies and covers for 12-, 16-, and 20-inch strainers shall be epoxy-coated steel. The manufacturer's name, strainer pipe size, and direction of flow (if required) shall be clearly marked on the strainer. Strainers of this size shall be equipped with flush ports.
- 8. Cover bolts for the 2- through 10-inch sizes shall be made of AISI Type 316 stainless steel. Cover bolts for the 12- through 20-inch sizes shall be made of AISI Type 316 stainless steel.
- 9. Strainer cover shall be equipped with a vent screw to remove trapped air at installation.
- 10. Strainers manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM..
- G. Water Meters: All meters shall be supplied by the Town at the expense of the utility customer, up to 2 inches. All meters larger than 2 inches shall be purchased by the Contractor/customer and installed in accordance with the Town specifications.
- H. Tapping Saddles, Sleeves, and Valves
 - 1. Any tap or valve installation into the existing Town system shall be made by the Town or approved agent at the expense of the Developer. The cost for taps shall be set by the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Public Services Department, at current prices at the time of the tap.
 - 2. Tapping sleeves for taps 4 inches or greater shall be designed for a minimum water working pressure of 150 psi. Tapping sleeve shall be fabricated from 304 stainless steel and shall be fully passivated. The design shall allow for the insertion of bolts from either side and the internal seal is to be the "O-ring" type. In the interior of the tapping sleeve, a full circumferential gasket shall be molded of virgin styrene-butadiene rubber (SBR) compatible with potable water, reclaimed water, and raw sewage. The outlet flange shall be ANSI drilled to match the tapping valve. The sleeve shall be NSF/ANSI 61 Annex G certified. The tapping sleeve shall be furnished complete with bolts, nuts, and gaskets.
 - 3. Tapping valves shall conform to AWWA C515 with the exception of the valve ends and other modifications necessary for tapping service with a minimum water working pressure of 150 psi. Each tapping valve shall be provided with a flanged inlet end designed, faced, and drilled for attachment to the outlet flange of the tapping sleeve; an outlet end provided with a tapping flange for attachment of a standard drilling

machine; and a mechanical-joint-type bell end for connection of the branch main. Manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

- 4. Before making the tap, the Contractor, in the presence of a Town inspector, shall hydrostatically pressure test the tapping saddle/sleeve and valve installation at a test pressure of 150 psi, or 50 psi over the existing system pressure, whichever is greater. Pneumatic, or air-pressure testing is prohibited.
- 5. Backtaps shall not be permitted unless specifically authorized by the Public Services Director or his Designee before the tap to be installed and/or during the plan approval process. Any said authorized backtaps shall be constructed using ductile iron pipe, MJ fittings, and retainer glands or restraints. Threaded rod shall only be permitted from the steel casing to the first fitting, and shall be welded for minimum of 8 inches on each rod alongside the casting. Welding of eyebolts directly to the casing for installing treaded rod is not permitted.

I. Full Circle Repair Clamps

- 1. Repair clamps shall be full circle type and shall meet the below specifications for Type F or Type FS. The use and type of full circle repair clamps shall be approved by the Public Services Director or his Designee before installation.
 - a. <u>Type F</u> repair clamps with 18-8 Type 304 SS bands, nuts, bolts, and side bars
 - b. Type FS Bands shall be 18-8 Type 304SS. Bolts and heavy hex nuts shall be low alloy in accordance with ASTM A242/A242M and AWWA C111/A21.11. Lugs shall be ductile iron in accordance with ASTM A536. Gaskets shall be gridded virgin SBR compounded for water service and meeting ASTM D2000. Finish shall be shop coat. Repair clamps shall be single, double, or triple section as required for the size of the water main. Clamps manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

J. Snap Clamps

1. Snap clamps shall be used to repair pinholes and other small leaks that do not require a full gasket seal. Clamps shall be used for pipe sizes 1/2 inch to 8 inches in diameter and shall meet the below specifications for

Type FSC or FLSC. The use and type of snap clamps shall be approved by the Public Services Director or his Designee before installation.

- a. Type FSC Clamp shells shall be 18-8 Type 304SS with ductile iron lugs meeting ASTM A536 (electrodeposited zinc finish). Gaskets shall be Buna-N with heavy grid design extending form lug to lug. Bolts shall be AISI C1018 steel, 3/8- or 7/16-inch electrodeposited zinc with dichromate seal. Snap clamps manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
- b. <u>Type FLSC</u> Clamp shells, lugs, and bolts shall be 18-8 Type 304SS. Gaskets shall be Buna-N with heavy grid design extending from lug to lug. Snap clamps manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

K. Wrap Clamps

- 1. Wrap Clamps shall be used to repair pinholes and other small leaks that require a full gasket seal. Clamps shall be used for pipe sizes 1/2 to 2 inches in diameter and shall meet the below specifications for Type FSC or FLSC. The use and type of wrap clamp shall be approved by the Public Services Director or his Designee before installation.
 - a. Type FSC Wrap clamp shells shall be 18-8 Type 304SS with ductile iron lugs meeting ASTM A536 (electrodeposited zinc finish). Gaskets shall be Buna-N with heavy gridded armor for 360-degree coverage. Bolts shall be AISI C1018 steel, 3/8 or 7/16 inch electrodeposited zinc with dichromate seal. Wrap clamps manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM..
 - b. <u>Type FLSC</u> Wrap clamp shells, lugs, and bolts shall be 18-8 Type 304SS. Gaskets shall be Buna-N with heavy gridded armor for 360-degree coverage. Wrap clamps manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

L. PVC Coupling Leak Clamps

1. PVC coupling leak clamps shall be used to repair leaking solvent welds on PVC water mains without shutting down the water main to install a new piece of pipe. Clamps shall be used for pipe sizes 2 through 8 inches in

diameter and shall meet the below specifications for Type FCC or FIBC. The use and type of PVC coupling leak clamp shall be approved by the Public Services Director or his Designee before installation.

- a. Type FCC Shall be used for pipe joined with Schedule 40 solvent weld couplings. Clamps shall have a 5-inch-wide band and shall be 18-8 Type 304 SS. Lugs shall be ductile iron in accordance with ASTM A536. Gaskets shall be SBR in accordance with ASTM D2000. Bolts and heavy hex nuts shall be low alloy in accordance with ASTM A242/A242M. PVC coupling leak clamps manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
- b. <u>Type FIBC</u> Shall be used for Class 160 and 200 integral bell pipe joined by solvent weld. Clamps shall have a 7.5-inch-wide 18-8 Type 304 SS. Lugs shall be ductile iron in accordance with ASTM A536. Gaskets shall be SBR in accordance with ASTM D2000. Bolts and heavy hex nuts shall be low alloy in accordance with ASTM A242/A242M. PVC coupling leak clamps manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

M. Bell Joint Leak Clamps

1. Bell joint leak clamps shall be used to repair leaking bell joints on PVC or ductile iron pipe. Solvent welds on PVC water mains without shutting down the water main to install a new piece of pipe. Clamps shall be used for pipe sizes 2 through 8 inches in diameter and shall meet the below specifications for Type FCC or FIBC. The use and type of PVC coupling leak clamp shall be approved by the Public Services Director or his Designee.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION

A. General Requirements

- 1. Piping, fittings, valves, and appurtenances shall be installed in accordance with these Standards and/or approved by the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Public Services Director or his Designee.
- 2. Piping shall be installed along straight line and grade between fittings or other defined points, unless definite lines of alignment, deflection, or

grade change have been established. Modification to approved alignment or grade during construction shall receive prior approval from the Public Services Director or his Designee and all resulting design considerations shall be resolved by the Contractor.

- 3. Materials shall be cleaned and maintained clean, with all coatings protected from damage. The interior of the pipe shall be free of dirt and debris; when work is not in progress all open ends shall be plugged.
- 4. Pipe, valves, fittings, or other items shall be inspected before installation, and any items showing a fracture or other defect shall be rejected. However, ductile iron pipe showing an end crack, with no fracture indicated beyond that visible, may be salvaged by cutting off the damaged section 12 inches past the crack, providing the remaining pipe is sound. This procedure must be witnessed by the Public Services Director or his Designee.
- 5. Underground piping shall not be driven to grade by striking it with an unyielding object. When the pipe has been properly bedded, enough compacted backfill shall be placed to hold the pipe in correct alignment. If necessary, precaution should be taken to prevent flotation.
- 6. Jointing shall be by an approved method and shall not require undue force to accomplish full satisfactory seating and assembly. Connections at structures shall be cut accurately and worked into place without forcing and shall align with the connecting point.
- 7. Restrained joints shall be provided at all bends, wyes, tees, caps, valves, hydrants, and reducers. If any joints are within the required restrained length, they shall be restrained with a restraining harness as required. The restraints will be sized and placed according to the Drawings or according to the pipe manufacturer's recommendations when not shown on the Drawings, and approved by the Town.
- 8. Subaqueous pipe laying may be permitted where conditions make it impractical to lay pipe in the "dry" provided the Contractor submits his plan for laying pipe under water to the Public Services Director or his Designee and obtains advance approval thereof.
- 9. Ductile iron pipe is required at all street crossings, ditch crossings, culvert crossings, bore and jack crossings, wastewater, reclaimed, or stormwater crossings.

- 10. Disinfecting of all potable water pipes shall be accomplished by the Contractor following approved pressure testing. Unless alternate procedures are set forth under the applicable service Standard, said disinfecting procedures shall be in accordance with AWWA C651.
- 11. Ductile Iron Pipe installation shall be performed in accordance with the applicable provisions of the latest AWWA Specifications.
- 12. PVC pipe-lubrication and/or solvent for pipe and fitting joints shall be non-Toxic (NSF-approved for potable water). Following making, solvent type joints shall not be disturbed for 5 minutes and shall not have internal pressure applied for 24 hours, or as recommended by the pipe manufacturer.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 14 WASTEWATER GRAVITY SEWER SYSTEM

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. This Section does not stand alone and is incorporated as part of the Town Construction Specification Manual (CSM). The CSM shall be used for other requirements that may not be covered in this Section.
- B. This Section includes general technical criteria for the design and installation of wastewater gravity sewer systems. The Contractor shall provide all work necessary for the construction and testing of a gravity sewer system. This work shall include the installation of all gravity sewer mains, services lines, manholes, fittings, and appurtenances as may be required to complete the work as indicated in the Drawings and as specified herein.
- C. The work shall also include such connections, reconnections, temporary service, and all other provisions regarding existing sewer operations and modifications as is required to perform the new work.
- D. All references to Industry Standards (ASTM, ANSI, AWWA, etc.) shall be to the latest revision unless otherwise stated. Sewer service connections are specified in Section 15, Wastewater Service Connections. Only those materials included in the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills CSM shall be installed. All materials shall be new unless specifically called for otherwise.
- E. All piping and equipment of the same type shall be from one manufacturer, unless authorized in writing by the Town or the Town's representative.

1.02 SUBMITTALS

- A. All submittals shall be submitted in accordance with the shop drawing submittal requirements as specified in Section 1, General Provisions.
 - 1. <u>Shop Drawings</u>: The Contractor shall submit catalog cut sheets, manufacturer's descriptive literature, and other necessary information to the Public Services Director for approval before installation.
 - 2. <u>Certifications</u>: The Contractor shall submit a certification from the pipe and manufacturer that the pipes supplied are new, have been manufactured for this project, and have been inspected at the plant.

3. Manholes:

- a. Base sections, riser sections, eccentric and concentric conical top sections, flat slab tops, and grade rings with notarized certificate indicating compliance with ASTM C478.
- b. Location and elevation of all penetrations.
- c. Applicable lifting and installation details or instructions.
- d. Frames and covers with description literature and cut sheets and notarized certificate indicating compliance with specified standards (ASTM A48/A48M, Class 30; etc.).
- e. Method of repair for minor damage to precast concrete sections.
- f. Delivery, unloading, and receiving instructions.
- g. Buoyancy countermeasures.
- 4. Design Drawings shall demonstrate that the applicable industry design standards listed in this Section have been met.

5. Precast concrete structures:

- a. Sectional Drawings and elevations showing dimensions and reinforcing steel placement.
- b. Structural calculations including assumptions.
- c. Concrete design mix.

1.03 DESIGN STANDARDS

- A. The Developer shall comply with the applicable requirements specified within WEF Manual of Practice No. 9, and Chapter 20 of the Ten-States Standards Recommended Standards for Sewage Works and as established by the Florida Department of Environmental Protection.
- B. Average Daily Flow (ADF): The sewer system design shall be based on full ultimate development as known, or projected. The ADF from domestic units shall be calculated at the minimum rate of 250 gallons per day per equivalent residential unit, but should conditions be unfavorable such as high ground water conditions, an additional allowance shall be included for infiltration. Single-family residences shall be computed at the rate of 3.5 persons per connection and multi-family or mobile home dwellings at 2.5 persons per unit. Flow requirements from commercial, industrial, institutional, or other special development areas shall be established from existing records or by estimated projections using the best available data; however, in no case shall a rate of less than 2,000 gallons per acre per day be used, unless specifically approved otherwise. It shall be stated in the Developers Agreement that sizing of the sewer system shall be the responsibility

- of the Developer, based upon his expected use of the land and flows generated therein. Any future upsizing of onsite improvements due to more intensive uses of the land shall be the responsibility of the Developer.
- C. Maximum Flow Rates: Gravity sewers shall be designed on the basis of ultimate development maximum rates of flow. The maximum flow ranges from 2.0 as a minimum up to a maximum of 4.0 times the cumulative ADF, depending on the number of houses contributing, as recommended by the Ten States Standards.
- D. Gravity Sewer Size Computation: Wastewater gravity sewers shall be sized to provide ample capacity for the maximum flow rates. The minimum allowable size for any sewer, other than service connections, shall be 8 inches in diameter. All sewers shall be designed at slopes providing a minimum velocity of not less than 2 feet per second, when flowing full. Sewers 48 inches or larger shall be designed to give mean velocities, when flowing full, of not less than 3.0 feet per second. Said computation shall be based on Manning's Formula using a roughness coefficient ("N") of not less than 0.013, unless justifiably approved otherwise. In general, the following minimum slopes shall be provided for sewer sizes to 24 inches:

Nominal Sewer Size (inches)	Minimum Slope in Feet Per 100 Feet	
8	0.4	
10	0.28	
12	0.22	
14	0.17	
15	0.15	
16	0.14	
18	0.12	
20	0.11	
21	0.10	
24	0.08	

E. Minimum slopes slightly less than those indicated may be considered in extreme situations, providing the depth of flow will not be less than 0.3 of the pipe diameter or the velocity less than 1.6 feet per second at design average daily flow, and justifiable reasons for the modification are presented to the Town. On any design having slopes less than the "RECOMMENDED MINIMUM", the Design Engineer shall submit flow calculations. The maximum allowable slope is 15.0%.

F. Design Considerations

1. Sewers 24 inches in diameter or less shall be installed with straight alignment and grade between manholes, with manhole spacing not to exceed 400 feet for sewers 15 inches or less, and 500 feet for sizes larger.

- 2. When a smaller sewer joins a larger one, the invert of the larger sewer should be lowered sufficiently to maintain the same energy gradient.
- 3. All wastewater gravity mains shall terminate at manholes.

G. Standard Requirements

- 1. <u>General</u>: The materials of construction and general installation procedures shall comply with the specific applicable standards set forth under Section 6, Utility Excavation, Trenching, and Backfilling; Section 9, Boring, Jacking, and Tunneling; and Section 11, Pipe, Fittings, Valves, and Appurtenances.
- 2. <u>Pipe</u>: Buoyancy of sewers shall be considered and flotation of the pipe shall be prevented with appropriate construction where high groundwater conditions are expected. Pipe for gravity sewage lines shall be ductile iron or polyvinyl chloride (PVC) as shown on the Drawings and as herein specified.

3. <u>Protection of Water Supplies:</u>

- a. When wastewater sewers are proposed in the vicinity of any water supply facilities, requirements of the "Recommended Standards for Water Works" (Ten States Standards for Water Works) and Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) shall be used to confirm acceptable isolation distances in addition to the following requirements.
 - (1) There shall be no physical connections between a public or private potable water supply system and a sewer, or appurtenance thereto which would permit the passage of any wastewater or polluted water into the potable supply. No water pipe shall pass through or come into contact with any part of a sewer manhole.
 - (2) The Contract Drawings shall show all existing waterwork units, such as basins, wells, or other treatment units within 200 feet of the proposed sewer. All minimum distances between sewers and all public water supply appurtenances required by FDEP shall be met.

4. Manholes and Cleanouts:

- a. Manholes shall be precast concrete. The minimum inside diameter of manholes shall be 48 inches for sewer sized to 21 inches in diameter or less, with submittal of special designs for larger pipes. Manholes with single inside drops shall be 60 inches in diameter and manholes with double inside drops shall be 72 inches in diameter. Manholes are to be placed at the end of each line; at all changes in grade, size, or alignment; at all intersections; at the end of jack and bore section for gravity sewer lines and at distances not greater than 400 feet for sewers 15 inches or less, and 500 feet for sewers for larger sizes. Cleanouts may be used only for special conditions and shall not be substituted for manholes nor installed at the end of laterals greater than 150 feet in length.
- All manholes and sewers shall be located in public rights-of-way.
 No manholes or sewers shall be located in side or back lot easements under any conditions.
- c. All manholes on private property and not a part of the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills public sewer system shall have standard manhole covers with the word "SEWER" in the center. Manhole covers with the words "Town of Howey-in-the-Hills" shall not be permitted on manholes that are not the responsibility of the Town or be owned by the Town and shall be noted on the Drawings. Gravity sewers connecting manholes located on private property to Town-owned and operated manholes shall not be the responsibility of the Town and shall not be located in rights-of-way.
- d. Sewer clean-outs not in the pavement shall have around their tops in concrete pads, which will be flush with the top of the curb, with minimum dimensions of 18 by 18 by 3 inches. Sewer clean-outs in the pavement shall be ductile iron pipe (DIP) up from the service and have around their tops in concrete pads, which will be flush with the top of the finished pavement surface.
- e. Manholes shall not be located in drainage swales or any other low area likely to collect or pond water during rains. The top elevation of all manholes shall be greater than or equal to the 100-year flood elevation, unless watertight covers are provided to minimize inflow.

- f. Pipe entry shall be at no less than a 90° angle from direction of flow of the existing manhole or incoming pipe, unless the inside drop is equal to the diameter of the lower pipe.
- g. Manholes shall be design with buoyance countermeasures to prevent floatation of the manholes.

5. Drop Manholes:

- a. Outside drop manhole shall not be allowed except as specifically authorized by the Public Services Director or his Designee.
- b. Inside drops shall be secured to the interior wall of the manhole and provide a Tee or Cross access for cleaning. All inside drops greater than 1 foot require one joint (18 feet minimum of DIP adjacent to the manhole, including a 6-inch stub. Minimum diameter of inside drop manholes shall be 5 feet for single inside drops and 6 feet for double inside drops.
- 6. <u>Pipe Bedding</u>: Special care shall be exercised in the design and installation to provide adequate bedding for the type of pipe used, taking into consideration trench width and depth, superimposed loadings above grade and the material below trench grade. Pipe loadings capabilities shall be computed in accordance with established design criteria and special supporting bedding or facilities shall be provided as required.
- H. Design Calculations: The Engineer/Developer shall submit signed, dated, and sealed design calculations by and Professional Engineer licensed in the State of Florida with the final Construction Drawings for all wastewater gravity sewer projects.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 GENERAL

A. The materials of construction shall comply with the specific applicable standards set forth under Section 6, Utility Excavation, Trenching, and Backfilling; Section 9, Boring, Jacking, and Tunneling; and Section 11, Pipe, Fittings, Valves, and Appurtenances. The Contractor shall provide all new materials free from defects impairing strength and durability and of the best commercial quality for the purpose specified. All material supplied shall have structural properties sufficient to safely sustain or withstand strains and stresses to which it is normally subjected and be true to detail.

B. Backfill shall be as specified in Section 6, Utility Excavation, Trenching, and Backfilling.

2.02 PIPE

A. Pipe material for wastewater gravity sewers and sizing and location of manhole shall be as shown on the Contract Drawing. Pipe material shall be in accordance with the design requirements in this Section and Section 11, Pipe, Fittings, Valves, and Appurtenances, unless otherwise shown on the Contract Drawings. Pipe supports shall be in accordance with pipe manufacturer's requirements.

2.03 PRECAST CONCRETE MANHOLES

- A. Precast Concrete Manholes: Manholes shall meet the requirements of ASTM C478 with the exceptions specified in this Section, and shall consist of precast reinforced concrete riser sections, a monolithic base section, and concentric cones unless otherwise approved. Manholes shall be designed and constructed to withstand a minimum H-20 type loading. Cement shall meet the requirements of ASTM C150/C150M, Type II. Reinforcing steel shall be as shown on the standard manhole detail. Concrete shall meet the minimum compressive strength requirements of 4,000 psi at 28 days. Wall thickness shall be 5 inches minimum. The required minimum strength of concrete shall be confirmed by making and testing three standard cylinders at 7 days. Rings shall be custom made with openings to meet indicated pipe alignment conditions and invert elevations. Submit shop drawings consisting of the manufacturer's standard details of various sections for approval before placing an order for manholes. Drawings of individual manholes showing invert elevations, pipe sizes, and required construction details shall be submitted. Provide certification of proper cure period and Independent Testing Laboratory tests confirming concrete moisture less than 6%. Manhole interior walls, tables, and inverts shall be a smooth surface free of voids, depressions, chips, rough edges, and high spots. Lifting holes may be provided in each section for ease of handling.
 - 1. <u>Bases and Slabs</u>: Bases and slabs for manholes shall be precast integrally with the bottom manhole section.
 - 2. <u>Joints</u>: Joints shall be tongue and groove configuration formed with machined castings. Surfaces shall be exactly parallel with nominal 1/16-inch clearance. Sealing compound, conforming to Federal Specification SS-S-00210A. Joint shall be wrapped with a vapor barrier joint tape. Cement mortar joints will not be acceptable, except that each joint shall be wiped inside the manhole with cement mortar <u>after</u> assembly. Joints shall be watertight. Manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List.

- 3. Exterior Joint Sealant Membrane: All exterior joints below the top cone section of precast concrete manholes (including base and riser sections) shall be sealed with one12-inch-wide (minimum) exterior joint sealant membrane centered on joint. The tape shall be capable of sealing manhole joints against groundwater and sand infiltration. The installation of the membrane shall be in conformance with the recommendations of the manufacturer. Surface must be smooth, clean, dry and free of voids, loose aggregate, dirt, or other matter that will hinder the adhesion of the membrane. A primer shall be used in accordance with the recommendations of the membrane manufacturer. If recommended by the manufacturer, heat shall be applied to all areas being sealed.
- 4. Adjustment Rings (Manhole Collars): Adjustment rings shall be 8 inches wide (48-inch outside diameter (OD) x 32-inch diameter opening) concrete. Concrete adjustment rings shall be 4,000 psi (minimum) concrete, Type II cement. Minimum height of rings shall be 2 inches. Rings shall be grouted in place. Concrete mortar (1/2 inch thick) shall be applied to the interior and exterior surfaces of the concrete adjustment rings. The interior of the concrete ring shall be coated as specified. High Density polyethylene (HDPE) rings may be used for manholes located in non-traffic areas only (not in streets, parking areas, drive ways etc.). HDPE adjustment rings shall be stackable and have a minimum height of 2 inches and be installed with silicone sealant in accordance with the manufacturer's directions. Apply heavy amount (covering the entire joining surfaces) of silicone sealant between the manhole cone section and HDPE rings, between all stackable rings and between the HDPE ring and the manhole frame (note: do not use concrete grout during the assembly of HDPE rings). During the installation of HDPE rings, the Contractor shall apply downward pressure on the rings to squeeze out the excess silicone (tight fit).
- 5. <u>Portland Cement</u>: Shall conform to ASTM C150/C150M, Type II.
- 6. Sand: Washed silica sand shall conform to ASTM C144.
- 7. <u>Mortar</u>: Consists of one part cement and two parts sand.

B. Manhole Frames and Covers:

1. Sewage manhole frames shall have a minimum 23-3/8-inch opening unless otherwise specified on the Drawings and sewage manhole covers shall be of the type as shown in the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Standard Details, marked with the word "Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Sanitary

Sewer". Frames and covers shall conform to ASTM A48/A48M, Class 30 (gray iron), or Grade 65-45-12 (ductile iron) meeting the requirements of ASTM A536, cast in a true symmetrical pattern of tough, dense, and evengrained iron free from warping, scales, lumps, blisters, sandholes, or any defects of any kind. Frames and covers shall be smooth, well-cleaned, and given a bituminous coating which is tough and tenacious when hot and not tacky or brittle. All castings shall be manufactured true to pattern, and component parts shall fit together in a satisfactory manner. Machine or grind frames and covers at touching surfaces to provide firm seats and prevent rocking. Cover shall set flush with rim of frame and shall have no larger than a 1/8 inch gap between frame and cover. Remove and replace any set not matching perfectly at no additional cost. Where manholes are constructed in paved areas, frames and covers. Frame and cover must be interchangeable with approved frames and covers and meet applicable weight criteria. In certain applications, the Utility Department may require locking lids and/or watertight lids. If required, the locking lid shall be a wedge camlock only. The Contractor shall provide two special tools to operate the camlock. If a watertight lid is required, the manhole lid shall have an o-ring seal (ORS) gasket factory-installed. The Contractor shall provide three loose ORS gaskets as spare parts. Frames and cover manufacture shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List.

- 2. All manhole cover and ring assemblies shall be furnished and installed complete with an insert. The purpose of the insert to prevent intrusion of stormwater, dirt, debris, and to help control emissions from odors.
 - a. The manhole insert shall be manufactured from corrosion-proof material, such as HDPE or stainless steel, suitable for atmospheres containing hydrogen sulfide and diluted sulfuric acid and other gases associated with wastewater collection systems.
 - b. The minimum continuous uniform thickness of the HDPE insert, including all angles shall be 1/8 inch.
 - c. The body of HDPE insert shall be maid of high density polyethylene co-polymer material that meets ASTM D1248, Class A, Category 5, Type 111, and have a minimum impact brittleness temperature of -180°F.
 - d. At a minimum used in the manufacture of the body of the stainless steel insert shall be a minimum of 16 gauge Type 304 stainless steel.
 - e. The insert shall be manufactured to the dimensions of the manhole opening to allow easy installation within the manhole frame. The manhole insert shall be manufactured to fit the manhole frame rim upon which the manhole cover rests.

- f. A lift strap shall be attached to the rising edge of the bowl insert. The lift strap shall be maid of 1 inch wide woven polypropylene web and shall be seared on all cut ends to prevent unraveling. The lift strap shall be attached to the insert by means of a stainless steel rivet. Location of the strap shall provide easy visual location.
- g. The manhole frame shall be cleaned of all dirt and debris before placing the manhole insert on the rim. The manhole insert shall be fully seated around the manhole frame rim to retard water from seeping between the cover and the manhole frame rim.
- C. Non-shrink Grout: All holes in manholes, provided for their handling, and the annular space between the wall and the pipe coupling adapter shall be thoroughly plugged with non-shrinking mortar applied and cured in strict conformity with the manufacturer's recommendations so that there will be zero leakage through openings and around pipes. The mortar shall be finished smooth and flush with the adjoining interior and exterior manhole and/or wet well wall surfaces.

D. Coating:

- 1. <u>General</u>: All manhole exterior and interior surfaces shall be lined and coated as specified in this Section. The Contractor shall use an approved coating and lining subcontractor for all manhole preparation and application of coatings and/or linings.
- 2. <u>Exterior</u>: The exterior manhole surfaces shall receive two coats of materials by a manufacturer provided in Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

3. Interior:

- a. Manholes into which force mains discharge, as well as the adjacent manhole downstream from the receiving manhole shall be lined with a manufacturer in accordance with the Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM. These are the only approved manhole liners. No other liners will be approved. The Contractor shall submit shop drawings consisting of manufacturer's standard details of various sections, for approval, before placing order for manholes.
- b. Other manhole interior surfaces shall receive two coats of materials by a manufacturer provided in the Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

2.04 FLEXIBLE MANHOLE-TO-PIPE CONNECTOR

- A. The manhole-to-pipe connector shall be manufactured from Neoprene EPDM. The connector shall be a minimum of 3/8-inch thick and shall conform to ASTM C443 and ASTM C923. The connector shall be resistant to ozone, weathering, aging, chemicals, animal and vegetable fats, oils, and petroleum products and designed to accommodate pipe movement up to 2 inches radically or 22 degrees angularly in any direction.
- B. The connector shall be sized for the specific type and size pipe entering and leaving each manhole. The connector shall be precast into the manhole by the manhole manufacturer in accordance with the connector manufacturer's written instructions. A 304 stainless steel band and screw assembly shall be provided to seal the flexible neoprene connector against the pipe. During the invert construction stage, the interior annular space between the exterior of the pipe and the interior of the connector shall be filled with a Type II lean cement grout by the Contractor.
- C. Manufacturer shall be in accordance with the Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. The general installation procedures shall comply with the specific applicable standards set forth under Section 6, Utility Excavation, Trenching, and Backfilling; Section 9, Boring, Jacking, and Tunneling; and Section 11, Pipe, Fittings, Valves, and Appurtenances.
- B. The Contractor shall install all pipework meeting the requirements of AWWA for installation various types and classes of pipe. Lay all gravity sewers using laser beam methods. Obtain exact grade and alignment for each pipe by measuring to the invert of the pipe. Lay pipe upgrade, beginning at the lower end of the sewer, with pipe bell ends up-grade. Exercise extreme care to keep the pipe in exact alignment and elevation. It is the Contractor's responsibility to, coordinate utility locates with Sunshine State One-Call of Florida, Inc. (800-432-4770 or web site www.sunshine811.com), make exploratory excavations, and/or use other methods available to locate existing utilities before construction of any gravity sewers. If necessary, the Contractor shall adjust the new sewers and/or laterals, subject to approval by the Engineer, to avoid conflicts with existing piping. If a conflict is found between an existing utility and proposed grade, the Contractor is to furnish the Engineer all pertinent information so that remedial design can be performed. Install pipe joints on each line entering or leaving manhole, including stub lines,

as close to the manhole exterior wall as practical. In no case shall the pipe be walked on either before or after the joints have been made. Securely close all openings such as stubs, wyes, or other services along the lines by means of approved stoppers that fit into the bells of the pipe and are recommended by the pipe manufacturer. Install stoppers in such a manner that they may be removed at some future time without injury to the pipe bells. No bricking or grouting plugs in lines will be permitted.

- C. Reference Points and Layout: The Contractor shall be responsible for setting all grade lines, centerline of construction, and locating property lines. Any reference points, points of intersection, property corners, or bench marks, which are disturbed during construction, shall be restored by a Land Surveyor registered to practice in the State of Florida, and all costs thereof shall be borne by the Contractor. The Contractor shall assume all responsibility for the correctness of the grade and alignment stakes.
- D. Handling Pipe and Manholes: Every care shall be taken in handling and laying pipe and fittings to avoid damaging the pipe, scratching or marring machined surfaces, and abrasion of the pipe coating. The lined pipe and fittings must be handled only from the outside of the pipe and fittings. No forks, chains, straps, hooks, etc., shall be placed inside the pipe and fittings for lifting, positioning, or laying. If damaged, the material shall be repaired in accordance with the liner manufacturer's recommendations. Any fitting showing a crack and any fitting or pipe which has received a severe blow that may have caused an incipient fracture, even though no such fracture can be seen, shall be marked as rejected and removed at once from the work. In any pipe showing a distinct crack in which it is believed there is no incipient fracture beyond the limits of the visible crack, the cracked portion, if so approved by the Town, may be cut off before the pipe is laid so that the pipe used may be perfectly sound. The cut shall be made in the sound barrel at a point at least 12 inches from the visible limits of the crack. Except as otherwise approved, all cutting shall be done with a power driven cut off saw. All cut ends shall be examined for possible cracks caused by cutting. Keep gaskets away from oil, grease, excessive heat, and direct rays of the sun. Keep PVC pipe covered during storage to prevent damage by sunlight. All manhole sections shall be handled and installed in such a manner and by such means as to prevent damage. Manhole sections damaged during handling and installation will be rejected as directed by the Engineer, and replaced at no additional cost to the Town.
- E. Laying Pipe: Pipe shall be installed in accordance with the manufacturer's instructions, at the Engineer of Record's direction. DIP shall be installed in accordance with all applicable provisions of ASTM A746; PVC pipe shall be installed in accordance with ASTM D2321. Take all necessary precautions to prevent the entrance of mud, sand, or other obstructing matter into the pipelines.

Lay pipe on bedding prepared in accordance specification Section 6, Utility Excavation, Trenching, and Backfilling. Provide uniform bearing under the full length of the pipe barrel. Pipe shall be laid to produce a straight line of pipe on a uniform grade. Each pipe shall be laid to form a close joint with the preceding pipe to form a smooth inside flow line. Excavate for pipe bells and carefully lay pipe true to line and grade. Make adjustments to line and grade by scraping away or filling in and tamping under pipe barrel and not by wedging or blocking up any portion of the pipe. Any pipe that has its grade alignment or joints disturbed will be taken up and re-laid. All misalignment of pipe shall be corrected by the Contractor at his expense. Take up and relay pipe that has the grade or joint disturbed after laying. The pipe shall not be driven down to grade by striking it with any unyielding object. About the spigot end of each pipe against the base of the socket of the adjacent pipe in such a manner that there will be no unevenness of any kind along the bottom halves of the pipes. Compact sufficient backfill, immediately after the pipe has been jointed and inspected, to protect the pipe adequately from injury and movement. Just before jointing the pipes, the mating ends shall be thoroughly cleaned of all dirt, debris, and foreign material. The pipe shall be jointed in accordance with the recommendations of the manufacturer of the pipe and gasket. At the close of each day's work, and at other times when pipe is not being laid, protect the end of the pipe with a close-fitting stopper approved by the Engineer. Replace with sound pipe any defective pipe which may have been laid.

- 1. <u>Dewatering</u>: Water shall not be allowed in the trenches while the pipe is laid. The use of a dewatering system is a requirement on any runs of pipe where such pipe will be below the ground water elevation at the specific Site. Sump and pump type trenching may be used only on short shallow runs where well points would be impractical and excessively expensive, and only with the prior approval of the applicable Regulatory Agency. In all cases, density testing up to a point at least 1 foot above the water table shall be completed before removal of dewatering equipment. On sewer lines installed using dewatering, service laterals shall be installed while the trench is dry.
- 2. <u>Backfill and Defection</u>: Immediately after the pipe has been jointed and inspected, backfilling shall be placed in accordance with Section 6, Utility Excavation, Trenching, and Backfilling. Before and during the backfilling of any trench, precaution should be taken against flotation of pipelines therein due to entry of large quantities of water into the trench, which could cause uplift of the pipeline. Upon completion, installed pipelines shall show a full circle of light when lamped between manholes. The diameter deflection of PVC pipe shall not exceed 5% after completion and approval of construction, and for a period of 1 year thereafter.

- 3. <u>Compaction</u>: The mechanical compaction of backfill over sewer lines and appurtenances, within right-of-way and under all roadways, drives (including dirt drives), and parking areas shall be in accordance with Section 6, Utility Excavation, Trenching, and Backfilling.
- 4. <u>Joints</u>: The Contractor shall submit the specific type of joint to be used on all pipe, including complete data on all material to be used, to the Engineer for approval before beginning any pipework. Make all joints conform to the requirements of the manufacturer's printed instructions as approved for the type of joint installed.
 - a. All adapters necessary for the proper jointing of pipe shall be provided. Connections to other types of pipe shall be made with a watertight coupling in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
 - b. PVC joints shall form a watertight and airtight seal.
 - c. Jointing PVC to Vitrified Clay Pipe: Unless specifically indicated otherwise, connections of PVC to vitrified clay pipe in the run of the sewer line shall be made with by a manufacture provided in the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Approved Manufacturer List.
- 5. <u>Pipe Depth</u>: The minimum allowable cover for gravity sewers shall be 3 feet from the top of the pipe to finish grade, unless using DIP. The maximum allowable depth for gravity shall not exceed 18 feet without approval from the Town.
- 6. Horizontal and Vertical Separation:
 - a. The horizontal separation between wastewater gravity sewers and existing or proposed water mains shall not be less than 10 feet, measured from edge to edge, or as specified by FDEP. Where local conditions prevent a lateral separation of 10 feet between new sewer lines and any existing or proposed water main, the sewer may be laid closer than 10 feet to the water main if it is laid in the same trench with the water main located at the side of a bench of undisturbed earth. In either case, the elevation of the top of the sewer pipe shall be at least 18 inches below the invert of the water main.
 - b. Wherever new sewers must cross under water mains, the sewer shall be laid at such an elevation that the top of the sewer pipe is at least 18 inches below the bottom of the water main. When the

elevation of the sewer cannot be buried to meet the above requirements, special protection shall be provided or the water main shall be relocated to provide this separation and reconstructed with DIP for a distance of 10 feet on each side of the sewer with one full length of water main pipe centered over the sewer so that both joints are as far from the sewer as possible. Said protection shall consist of completely encasing, 6 inches minimum, the sewer pipe in concrete for a minimum distance of 10 feet each side of the water main, or installation of pressure-tight joint cast or DIP for the same dimension.

- F. Gravity Sewer Mains: The horizontal separation from existing, proposed, and future structures (including above ground structures, concrete footers and top of bank of ponds) shall be a minimum of 2 times the vertical depth of the deepest portion of the manhole-to-manhole sewer run.
- G. Precast Concrete Manholes: The Contractor shall construct manholes as shown and specified or directed in these documents. Manhole installation shall be as shown and in strict compliance with the manufacturer's printed instructions where specials are used for connections.
 - 1. Manhole tops shall be set to the proper elevation as shown on the Drawings or as directed by the Engineer and properly anchored to the masonry. Tops shall be adjusted using precast concrete rings. Concrete adjustment rings shall be 4,000 psi (minimum) concrete, Type II cement. Minimum height of rings shall be 2 inches. Rings shall be grouted in place. Concrete mortar (1/2-inch thick) shall be applied to the interior and exterior surfaces of the concrete adjustment rings.
 - a. Manholes in paved areas shall conform to the crown and grade of the existing adjacent pavement.
 - b. Tops of manholes in maintained grass areas shall be 3 inches above finished grade. Prior approval must be obtained for covers set flush with the ground.
 - c. Manholes in wooded areas or unmentioned areas shall be a minimum of 18 inches above grade level. Manholes on sloped ground in unmentioned areas shall be a minimum of 18 inches above ground level on uphill side of manhole unless approved otherwise.

- 2. <u>Riser and top sections</u> shall be installed plumb and such that all manhole steps are in alignment. Joints shall be made in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations, and to insure a watertight installation.
- 3. Inverts: Base sections shall be set level on bedding so prepared to prevent settlement and misalignment. Pipe openings shall be placed at the exact elevation and location to receive entering pipes. Base section shall be set such that the center of the manhole will coincide with the intersection of the incoming and outgoing pipes. The resulting angle shall be no less than 90 degrees and so constructed that both halves of an invert-channel shall be of equal length and radius. Manhole bases set off center shall be removed and reset. Shape inverts while manholes are under construction. Lay pipe continuously through manhole, build invert, break out pipe above mid-point, and smooth broken edges with cement mortar or cut off pipe at inside faces of manhole and construct invert to exact shape and size of pipe indicated. Manhole flow channels shall have smooth and carefully shaped bottoms, built up sides and benching sloped no less than 1/2 inch per foot constructed from concrete. No lateral sewer, service connection, or drop manhole pipe shall discharge onto the surface of the bench. Channels shall conform to the dimensions, grade, and alignment of the connecting pipe. The channel walls should be formed or shaped to the full height of the crown of the outlet sewer in such a manner to not obstruct maintenance, inspection, or flow in the sewer. Provide a true curve of the largest radius possible for changes in direction of the sewer and entering branch or branches.
- 4. Clean all joint surfaces (remove all sand, oil, debris, and other foreign items) and provide additional primer if recommended by the joint manufacturer.
- 5. The joint sealant and the manhole surfaces shall be dry during the installation period (shall not be installed if wet or during rain events). Joint sealant is applied to both the top and bottom joint surfaces (double ring method). The joint sealant shall be installed continuously around all joints with the ends placed butt-to-butt (not overlapped and no open gaps between sealants). The excess joint sealant shall be trimmed flush to the inside surfaces of the manhole. Trim the outside surfaces if an exterior joint sealant/tape is applied. Manholes with leaking joints (infiltration of ground water) will not be accepted by the Town.
- 6. Prime and double seal joint surfaces with premolded plastic joint sealer manufacture shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

- 7. All holes in sections used for handling and the annular space between the wall and entering pipes shall be thoroughly plugged with non-shrinking mortar or grout applied and cured in strict conformance with the manufacturer's recommendations so that there will be zero leakage through openings and around pipes. The mortar shall be finished smooth and flush with the adjoining interior and exterior manhole wall surfaces. Provide interior and exterior coating as specified above.
- 8. Apply a special primer and an exterior joint sealant membrane to the outside surfaces of all manhole joints/seams which are located below the top cone section. Apply the primer and joint membrane in accordance with the recommendations of the membrane manufacturer.
- H. Drop Connections: Where shown on the Drawings or directed by the Engineer, the Contractor shall construct inside drop connections to the manholes as shown and specified in this Section. Provide pipe restraints and supports as required. Outside manhole drops are not permitted. For inside manhole drops, inside piping shall be secured to manhole wall by a minimum of two 304 stainless steel straps and minimum 304 stainless steel hardware securely anchored to manhole wall. The space between the pipe and opening shall be sealed with a nonshrink grout.
- I. Stub Lines: The Contractor shall provide plugged stub lines where shown or directed by the Engineer for the connection of future sewer lines to manholes. Provide bell end closed with an approved stopper. Install bell of stub line as close to the manhole exterior's surface as practical. Accurately reference each stub line size for direction and record, complete with the actual invert elevation. Furnish the Engineer with two copies of the data on stub lines.
- J. Cleanouts: Construct as shown in the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Standard Details using pipe and fittings as specified in this Section. Applicable portions of these Specifications shall apply to the construction of this item.
- K. Connections at Structures: Where wastewater gravity sewers connect to structures, core bore into the existing manholes and use flexible connectors with stainless steel straps on all pipe to manhole connectors. The Contractor shall core suitable openings using a coring machine, jigsaw, or hole-saw into the existing structure or remove the existing pipe to accommodate the pipelines as indicated on the Contract Drawings and as specified. The portion of each existing structure removed for new installation shall be confined to the smallest opening possible, consistent with the work to be done. Manufacture shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
 - 1. <u>Repair Concrete Structures</u>: After the pipe is installed the Contractor shall carefully close up the openings around the pipe, using non-shrink

mortar and repair the existing structure invert, if necessary, in a manner satisfactory to the Engineer. If the existing structure has a specialty coating, repair that coating using coating manufacturer's product and installation requirements.

- L. Connecting to Existing Sewers: Where shown on the Drawings or directed by the Engineer, new sewers shall be connected to existing sewers by constructing a manhole over an existing line or by coring through the wall of an existing manhole. After approval of the new sewer line project by the Town, the old sewer shall be broken out and the inverts properly formed. On manholes without turns in direction, it will be permitted to use the lower half of the old pipe as the new invert.
 - 1. For an <u>existing manhole</u>, an opening shall be made and sewer pipe inserted. The opening shall be completely filled around the pipe with non-shrink grout so as to be watertight. A channel shall then be formed over the manhole table, or the table cut through and the channel formed in it, as may be required by the grade.
- M. Transition Connections: Where pipes of alternate materials are to be connected between manholes, suitable approved transition couplings shall be installed.
- N. Tracer Wire and Warning Tape Installation:
 - 1. General: Wherever nonmetallic pipe is installed, #10 tracer wire and warning tape shall be installed to facilitate future location of the gravity main.
 - 2. Tracer wires shall begin and terminate in the test boxes or cleanouts. Wire shall run continuously through test stations for the entire length of the pipe line and shall be strapped to the pipe at 10-foot intervals Test boxes shall be installed at each location as shown on the Drawings, spaced at intervals not exceeding the manhole spacing. Test boxes shall not be installed in streets or driveways. Tracer wire between boxes shall be continuous, unbroken lengths. The tracer wire shall not be installed in tension, but neither shall there be "coils" in the wire. The ends of the tracer wires shall be installed in the test boxes. The length of each tracer wire in each box or cleanout shall be long enough to extend no less than 1 foot and no greater than 2 feet above ground level. Breaks shall be repaired by splicing with a product by a manufacturer in accordance with the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Approved Manufacturer List. Repairs by "twisting" the two ends together will not be accepted.

3. Warning tape shall be buried in the backfill approximately 1 foot over the top of the PVC gravity main. Tape shall be laid in continuous lengths. Any breaks or tears shall be repaired before proceeding with the backfilling operations.

3.02 TESTING

A. General

- 1. The Contractor shall inspect all work constructed for faults or defects and any deviation from these documents or omissions shall be corrected at once. The Contractor shall conduct all tests The Contractor shall bear all costs for these tests and inspections.
- 2. Pipe testing shall closely follow pipe laying. No more than 1,000 feet of pipe shall remain untested at any time. Testing shall not proceed until all facilities are in place and concrete cured. All piping shall be thoroughly cleaned before testing to clear the lines of all foreign matter.
- B. Gravity Piping: The Contractor will use low-pressure air testing in accordance with Uni- Bell PVC Pipe Association, UNI-B-6-90, "Recommended Practice for Low-Pressure Air Testing of Installed Sewer Pipe", latest revisions. Infiltration and exfiltration shall not exceed 0 gallons per day per inch of diameter per mile as measured between manholes. Testing shall proceed for a continuous period of 2 hours, with infiltration amounts measured by methods approved by the Utility Department.

C. Manholes

- 1. Manholes shall be true circles of acceptable concrete or masonry work with properly corbeled tops, satisfactory inverts, and properly placed frames, covers, and steps.
- Vacuum Testing: All manholes shall be subjected to a vacuum test in accordance with ASTM C1244. The Contractor will furnish all necessary equipment and labor needed for conducting the tests. The Contractor shall have the option to test manholes before backfilling. All manholes tested by vacuum test shall be required as follows:
 - a. Plug pipes entering and leaving manhole.
 - b. Apply vacuum to the manhole after setting up of all mortar joints.
 - c. Draw a vacuum of 10 inches of mercury (HG).
 - d. The test shall pass if the vacuum remains at 10 inches HG or drops to 9 inches HG in a time longer than 1 minute.

- e. If the manhole fails the test, the Contractor shall locate the leak(s), make proper repairs, and then re-test until a successful test is obtained.
- 3. High-Voltage Spark Testing: Installed protective lining shall be tested for pinholes after a minimum 24-hour cure at a temperature of 70°F. Pinhole testing shall be accomplished using a Town approved device. Test voltage of 100-125 volts/mil of coating thickness shall be applied. All pinholes shall be marked and repaired using manufacturer's approved patch kit, or other approved method. High-voltage spark testing shall be approved by the product manufacturer.
- D. The Town will require internal color closed circuit television (CCTV) inspection (televising) of the sewer lines at the expense of the developer. The CCTV inspection shall be completed before the Contractor paving. The CCTV inspection will consist of a detailed computerized written report along with a DVD recording. The information on the report must coincide with the recording. The start screen of the recording shall have the project name, date, pipe size, the Contractors name, and the Developer's name. The inspection shall start at the most upstream manhole and work towards the most downstream or existing manhole.

1. <u>CCTV Report Information</u>:

- a. <u>Manholes</u>: The Report and Recording shall start with zero (00+00) station numbers at each manhole upstream and end with the station number at the next downstream manhole. (If an inspection has to be performed starting at the downstream manhole a written explanation must be submitted to the inspector with the Report and Recording.
- b. <u>Pipe Line</u>: Provide start and end station numbers for pipe material changes.
- c. <u>Taps</u>: Each tap shall have a station number shown on the Recording and coincide with the Report and Record Drawings. The Report and Recording shall indicate the lot number and/or address the tap in intended to serve.
- d. <u>Dead Ends or Abandonment's</u>: If a future stub, dead end, or obstruction cause (not ending in a manhole) or abandonment of video do to obstruction etc., a still image shall be shown on the Report and Recording for inspection. The Report and Recording shall show an explanation for what is shown.

- e. Existing Sewer System: The existing sewer system must be inspected and shown on the Report. The existing system shall be inspected by CCTV before its connection to the Town's system. This shall be from the tie-in manhole to the next downstream manhole. The Town of Howey-in-the-Hills reserves the right to request additional CCTV information or reinsertion to insure an acceptable completion. The project inspector also has the right to request a Town CCTV crew to inspect any and/or all of the proposed system.
- E. Deformation/Deflection Limits: Pipe shall be tested with a nine-point mandrel for deformation or deflection. Any pipe found to be deformed and/or deflected in excess of 5% of the nominal diameter of the pipe shall be removed and replaced with new pipe at no additional cost to the Town. All mandrels used in testing shall be available to be checked for proper sizing by use of truing rings at the request of a Town Representative. Results of the test shall be submitted to the Town for review and approval. The use of a re-rounding device or other similar equipment is not permitted to correct deflected (egg shape) pipe.
- F. Manhole Inspection: All manholes shall be inspected for leaks and any defects that may cause infiltration, or weaken the structural integrity. Before the final inspection, manholes shall be trimmed of any excess Ram-Nek joint sealant. Any voids in pre-cast shall be filled with non-shrink grout and the manhole shall be thoroughly painted, excluding invert and bench, as required. The gasket on the manhole cover shall be inspected for cuts, tears, scraps, and proper fit. If found damaged, the entire gasket seal shall be replaced in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendation, at the Contractor's expense.
- G. Warranty Test: To ensure the adequacy of the pipe described above and the manhole installation procedures, the Contractor shall remobilize to the work site 20 months following final approval-acceptance of the complete project, such time being within the 2-year warranty period. The date for such remobilization will be stated in the Final Approval issued by the Engineer of Record.
 - 1. The Contractor together with representatives of the Engineer of Record and the Town shall visually inspect every manhole and new line sections installed within the project area for cracks, damaged lining, leaks, or abnormal conditions. The line sections will be chosen by the Engineer of Record/Town at random subsequent to the manhole inspections.
 - 2. The Contractor shall appropriately correct any deficiencies that are found by such visual inspection, as approved by the Engineer of Record. To

- adequately locate certain deficiencies, the Contractor shall be required to use CCTV inspection and other methods.
- 3. All costs involved in remobilizing, inspecting, or correcting deficiencies will be considered incidental to the project and shall be the responsibility of the Contractor at no additional cost to the Town.
- H. Repair of Piping: At the option of the Engineer of Record, if piping is found to be defective during the warranty test period and if the Engineer of Record does not approve a method of pipe repair by the Contractor, the Contractor shall remove and replace the faulty pipe in an approved manner at no additional cost to the Town.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 15 WASTEWATER SERVICE CONNECTIONS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. This Section does not stand alone and is incorporated as part of the Town Construction Specification Manual (CSM). The CSM shall be used for other requirements that may not be covered in this Section.
- B. This Section covers the requirements for the construction of service connections to Town-owned lines.
- C. All piping and equipment of the same type shall be from one manufacturer, unless authorized in writing by the Town or the Town's representative.

1.02 SUBMITTALS

- A. All submittals shall be submitted in accordance with the shop drawing submittal requirements as specified in Section 1, General Provisions.
 - 1. Shop Drawings: The Contractor shall submit catalog cut sheets, manufacturer's descriptive literature, and other necessary information to the Public Services Director for approval before installation.

1.03 GENERAL

- A. Service connections shall be installed at the locations designated by the contract drawing. All connections and ties to the Town's sewer system will be performed by the Contractor under supervision of the Town. Catalog cuts and related date for all material shall be submitted to the Engineer of Record for review.
- B. Shown below is a schematic of a typical residential sewer service connection.

 This schematic shows the locations of both homeowner and Town cleanouts and

 Town and homeowners limits of responsibility for the service line.

1.04 DESIGN STANDARDS

A. The minimum service pipe size shall be 6 inches in diameter. Double service lines are strictly prohibited.

B. All service connections from restaurants, commercial food preparers, or others as designated by the Town for the removal of fats, oils, and grease (FOG) from discharges to the Town system shall be equipped with an appropriately sized grease trap as specified in Section 21, Utility Department Policies for Fats, Oils, and Grease.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

- A. All materials used to make service connections shall be compatible with each other and with the pipe materials to be joined and shall be corrosion proof.
- B. Fittings shall be as shown in the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Standard Details for single and double service connections. Tees will not be allowed.
- C. Service pipe installed as part of main sewer line construction shall be polyvinyl chloride (PVC) standard dimension ratio (SDR) 35 conforming to ASTM D3034, ASTM F794, or ASTM F949 with gasketed joints and all required markings consistent with main line material as specified in Section 14, Wastewater Gravity Sewer System.
- D. Service pipe installed by a plumber in conjunction with a main line tap, existing stub out or manhole shall be either ductile iron, or SCH 40 PVC drain, waste, and vent (DWV) pipe consistent with the existing stub out pipe.
- E. Adapters and Flexible Couplings: Prefabricated polyvinyl joint sealer adapters and sewer pipe couplings shall be by a manufacturer in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM. Flexible couplings shall be installed with stainless steel (SS) bands and adjusting screws.

F. Backwater Valve

- 1. Backwater valves shall be installed on all sewer laterals and service connections for medical and industrial facilities that connect to the Town's sewer system.
- 2. Valve shall be PVC and have a clear-view top for inspection and an integral clean out.
- 3. Valve shall be normally open with no flow restrictions.

- 4. Valve shall be located outside of the right-of-way and shall be the responsibility of the property owner.
- 5. Valve shall be installed with an access box that has a 4-inch-thick reinforced concrete collar pour around the access box lid and body.
- 6. Nuts, bolts, and other hardware shall be stainless steel.
- 7. Manufacturers shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

G. Service Connection to Existing Lines:

- 1. Minimum pipe size connection to either existing sewer main lines or manholes shall be 6 inches unless otherwise approved, before construction, by the Public Services Director or his designee.
- 2. The saddle shall include a ductile iron saddle casting with corrosion-resistant paint, styrene butadiene rubber (SBR) gasket, 304 SS band with 304 SS adjusting bolts and 304 SS pipe clamp.
- 3. Taps directly into manholes shall be made using ductile iron or PVC pipe.
- 4. Non-shrink grout for holes to manholes shall be as specified in Section 14, Wastewater Gravity Sewer System.
- H. Manhole Water Stop: Shall be a neoprene gasket and SS clamp by a manufacturer in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Service connections shall be properly installed at the required locations. All wyes, bends, service pipe, and other appurtenances shall be provided as required for each connection. The service pipe shall be terminated at the property line or easement line unless indicated otherwise on the Drawings or directed otherwise by the Public Services Director or his Designee. All joints shall be installed to provide watertight connections.
- B. All new services shall include tracing wire. Wire shall have a type THW insulated PVC copper conductor, #10 solid strand copper wire strapped to the pipe at 10-foot intervals and brought to grade at the cleanout. This branch run wire shall not

- be connected to the gravity sewer main tracer wire. Wire shall meet National Electric Codes and Underwriter Laboratories, Inc. requirements.
- C. All active lateral connections on sanitary sewers to be replaced shall be connected to the new sanitary sewer. The Contractor shall be responsible for locating lateral connections before construction.
- D. Unless approved otherwise by the Town, no gravity sewer main with sewer service laterals shall be constructed with a depth of cut greater than 18 feet.
- E. On curbed streets, the exact location for each installed service shall be marked by etching or cutting as "S" in the concrete curb and painted green. Where no curb exists or is planned, locations shall be adequately marked by a method approved by the Town. Method: 1/2-inch steel rebar, 3 inches below final grade. In addition, for new development areas where the sewer lateral is "not in use", a landscape timber (3-inch x 3-inch minimum pressure-treated (PT) timber, top painted green) shall be installed to mark the location of the 6-inch plug.
- F. Wye joints shall be installed as directed, with the branch turned to the proper direction, or as shown on the Drawings. Wyes shall be firmly supported by methods and materials used for bedding of main line pipe. Branch of wyes shall be installed at an angle 45 degrees to the springline unless grade requirement dictate otherwise.
- G. Bends for service lines shall be placed in the wyes where directed by the Engineer, or where necessary for proper alignment. No horizontal bends between the property line and the main line pipe are permitted.
- H. When installed during sewer line construction, service pipe shall be installed to the proper line and grade from the sewer line to the property line at a grade of not less than 1/4 inch per foot. Backfilling and bedding procedures shall be as for sewer line mains as specified in Sections 6, Utility Excavation, Trenching, and Backfilling and Section 14, Wastewater Gravity Sewer System. Watertight plugs shall be placed in the end of service line stubs. Plugs shall be as recommended by the pipe manufacturer and shall be installed in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendation.
- I. Yard piping shall be defined as the sewer service piping and appurtenances privately owned and located entirely on private property. All yard piping shall conform to local plumbing code and all applicable building codes. The property owner must obtain a plumbing permit before installing sewer services on their property. The homeowner is responsible for maintaining sewer service lines beyond the right-of-way line. The Town accepts no responsibility for installation or maintenance of any service line outside the Town's right-of-way line.

J. Service Connections to Existing Lines

- 1. Taps will not be made before applicable fees being paid and a sewer connection permit being obtained from the Town.
- 2. The main line will be tapped only when no service line stub is available. In the event the service line stub cannot be located by the Town personnel, the Plumber/Contractor will be allowed to tap the line. The Town will locate the service stub if, and only if, a reasonable effort has been made by the Plumber/Contractor. Service line shall be installed at an angle of 45° to the springline unless grade requirements dictate otherwise.

a. <u>Ties to Existing Service Line Stubs</u>:

- (1) Connection shall be made with a watertight flexible coupling suitable for the application.
- (2) Connection shall remain visible until inspection by the Town Inspector.
- (3) Backfill shall be carefully placed and tamped around the connection as to prevent any settlement or movement.

b. Taps to Sewer Main Lines:

(1) When authorized for use, tapping saddles may be used for lateral connections to 14-inch and larger ductile iron pipe or may be used in the construction of a new sewer service lateral which is tapping an existing (in-use) clay or PVC gravity sewer main. A sewer saddle shall not be used on completely new sewer system work. Tapping saddles shall be installed in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations. Under no condition shall the circular opening in the pipe wall be made with a cutting torch. Holes shall be laid out with a template at an angle of 45° to the vertical (unless grade requirements dictate otherwise) and shall be deburred and carefully beveled to provide a smooth hole shaped to conform to the fitting. Care shall be taken to prevent any foreign material from entering the cutin pipe opening. Any material or debris that does enter the line shall be removed. Taps shall be accomplished by a cutting machine method subject to the approval of the Engineer. Should the ductile iron pipe lining be damaged during the cutting of the pipe to receive the saddle, the defective area shall be repaired.

- (2) Where applicable, saddle and pipe mating surfaces shall be wiped clean and dry. Epoxy cement shall be used in cementing in accordance with the cement manufacturer's recommendations and ASTM D2855.
- (3) The service line shall be connected to the saddle by means of a "Donut" as specified by the tap saddle manufacturer.
- (4) A Town tap inspection shall be conducted after the hole is cut, but before connection is made up.
- (5) Any sewer main line broken or crushed during the installation of a tap shall be replaced by the plumber at no cost to the Town.
- (6) In the event water is entering into the ditch, the Contractor/Plumber shall pump the ditch as dry as necessary to make the complete connection visible at the time of inspection.
- (7) Backfill shall be carefully placed and tamped around the connection to prevent any settlement or movement.
- (8) Where multiple taps for service connections are proposed to be made to existing vitrified clay pipe (VCP) or Orangeburg pipe, the entire section of pipe between manholes shall be replaced as directed by the Town with either PVC or ductile iron pipe to assure no inflow/infiltration (I/I).

c. Taps to Manholes:

- (1) Service line must enter manhole at angle no less than 90° to the direction of flow.
- (2) Unless authorized by the Engineer in writing, or shown on the Drawings, lateral connections shall be limited to two ties into new or existing dead end manholes.
- (3) For manholes <u>less than 12 feet in depth:</u>
 - (a) The Plumber/Contractor shall either core drill or bust out the manhole wall directly above the manhole table. If slope of table is less than 2-1/2 inches per foot, the invert of service line shall enter the manhole 6 inches above table.
 - (b) The service pipe shall be pushed through the newly formed hole approximately 1 inch past the inside face of the manhole wall.

- (c) The core hole shall be filled with non-shrink grout and walls shall be troweled smooth.
- (d) A curved trough shall be formed on/in manhole table to direct flow into the main invert. If the service enters below the table, then table must be removed and a new trough formed.
- (e) A Town tap inspection shall be held <u>before</u>
 <u>backfilling commences</u>. Work must be visible and dewatered during inspection.
- (f) Backfill shall be carefully placed and tamped around the connection so as to prevent any settlement or movement and shall commence only after non-shrink grout has sufficiently hardened.

(4) For manholes greater than 12 feet in depth:

- (a) The Plumber/Contractor shall either core drill or bust out manhole wall a minimum of 4 feet below ground surface. If 4 feet cannot be obtained, notify the Town Engineering Department before proceeding.
- (b) Service pipe shall be inserted through the manhole wall. A tee shall be placed on pipe with run vertical for clean out. Pipe shall extend to manhole table and a 45° bend shall be installed on the end to direct flow into the invert. Inside piping shall be secured to manhole wall by means of two aluminum or SS straps securely anchored to manhole wall. The space between the entering pipe and the manhole opening shall be sealed with a non-shrink grout.
- (c) A curved trough shall be formed on/in manhole table to direct flow into main invert. The trough shall extend beyond the opening of 45° bend to its curvature or change in direction.
- (d) The cored hole shall be filled with non-shrink grout and walls shall be troweled smooth.
- (e) A Town tap inspection shall be held <u>before</u>
 <u>backfilling commences</u>. Work must be visible and dewatered.
- (f) Backfill shall be carefully placed and tamped around the connection so as to prevent any settlement or movement only after non-shrink grout has sufficiently hardened.

3.02 TESTING

- A. The Plumber shall contact the Town approximately 2 hours before tap inspection will be needed. Tap to main lines shall remain <u>disconnected and dewatered</u> until the tap has been approved by the Town Inspector. In the event a road or street must be cut in order to make the connection, the Plumber will obtain a road/street cut permit and have it at the job site at the time of the inspection. If the road/street cut permit is not available at this time, the tap will not be inspected.
- B. During the final inspection or project acceptance inspection, the Town may elect to field test the installed electronic markers using Town locate equipment. The Contractor shall assist in the field locate services required to complete this test.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 16 WASTEWATER FORCE MAIN SYSTEM

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. This Section does not stand alone and is incorporated as part of the Town Construction Specification Manual (CSM). The CSM shall be used for other requirements that may not be covered in this Section.
- B. This should be used only after the installation of a gravity system has been exhausted. This Section includes the general requirements for design and installation of force main systems serving sanitary sewage pumping stations. The relevant provisions of other sections of this specification shall be applicable to this Section unless otherwise indicated herein or approved by the Town.
- C. The Contractor shall provide all work necessary for the construction and testing of a force main system. This work shall include the installation of all force main lines, fittings, and appurtenances as may be required to complete the work as indicated in the Drawings and as specified herein.
- D. The work shall also include such connections, reconnections, temporary service, and all other provisions regarding existing sewer operations and modifications as is required to perform the new work. All references to Industry Standards (ASTM, ANSI, AWWA, etc.) shall be to the latest revision unless otherwise stated. Only those materials included in the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills CSM shall be installed. All materials shall be new unless specifically called for otherwise.
- E. All piping and equipment of the same type shall be from one manufacturer, unless authorized in writing by the Town or the Town's representative.

1.02 SUBMITTALS

- A. All submittals shall be submitted in accordance with the shop drawing submittal requirements as specified in Section 1, General Provisions.
 - 1. <u>Shop Drawings</u>: The Contractor shall submit catalog cut sheets, manufacturer's descriptive literature, and other necessary information to the Engineer for approval before installation.

2. <u>Certifications</u>: The Contractor shall submit a certification from the pipe manufacturer that the pipe and fittings supplied are new, have been manufactured for this project, and have been inspected at the plant.

1.03 DESIGN STANDARDS

A. The Developer shall comply with the applicable criteria set forth in WEF Manual of Practice No. 9, Latest Edition, Recommended Standards for Wastewater Facilities, Latest Edition, and Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP) requirements. Additionally, American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE) publication Pipeline Design for Water and Wastewater may be used as a design guide, if not in conflict with other requirements.

B. System Design

- 1. Force Main systems shall be of adequate size to efficiently transmit the total ultimate peak operational flows, applied by the connected sewage pumping station(s) to the effluent point. Consideration shall be given to possible future connection of other gravity sewer, pump stations, and force mains, and this probability shall be reviewed with the Town. Capacity computations shall be coordinated with the proposed pumping system(s), along with any future flow requirements, if applicable in order to provide adequate pipeline cleansing. Force main flow velocity shall not be less than 2 feet per second at ultimate design minimum pumping capacity, however, with multiple pumping station systems or phase development, this requirement may be difficult to meet and the system design shall receive special attention regarding cleaning, maintenance, pumping rates, future upgrading of systems by changing impellers, pump changes, parallel force mains, and other ways to increase future capability. Minimum force main diameter shall be 4 inches.
- 2. Operational Cost Considerations: In addition to initial capital expenditure, long-term pumping station operational costs shall also receive consideration when sizing force main systems or making decisions concerning whether gravity service or lift station service is to be provided.
- 3. Pipe for force main lines in sizes up to and including 48 inches shall be ductile iron, polyvinyl chloride (PVC), or high density polyethylene (HDPE), as shown on the Drawings and as herein specified. Pipe for force main lines larger than 48 inches shall be ductile iron as shown on the Drawings and herein specified. Pipe with diameters of 4 to 10 inches for sewer force mains shall have a minimum dimension ration (DR) of 25, Class 100. Pipe with diameters of 12 inches and larger for sewer force mains shall have a minimum DR of 26, Class 165. Pipe of any diameter

buried at 10 feet or more for any part of the pipe shall have a minimum DR of 26. Pipe to be installed underground shall be push-on joint or mechanical joint type. Pipe installed on bridges, piles or other above ground installations shall be push-on restrained joint using fast-grip gaskets, Field-Lok gaskets, restrained mechanical joint ductile iron pipe (DIP) or flanged DIP as described in these specifications. (Bell and rod restraints shall not be used unless approved otherwise by the Town). PVC or HDPE piping shall not be used on bridges or other above ground applications. Pipe sizes and applications shall conform to the following chart.

Pipe	Pipe Size	Joint Type	Application
Ductile Iron	4 inches and larger	Mechanical joint, push-on joint,	Any
		flanged joint, ball joint, etc.	
PVC DR 25 or 26	4 inches and larger	Push-on joint	below ground
PVC (Sch. 40)	3 inches and smaller	Solvent Weld	below ground
PVC (Sch. 80)	3 inches and smaller	Solvent Weld	below ground
Polyethylene (HDPE)	2 inches and larger	Fused	below ground

- 4. Restraint joints shall be provided at all changes in alignment.
- 5. The use of surge valves, surge tanks or other suitable means to protect the force main against severe pressure changes shall be evaluated.
- 6. An automatic air relief valve shall be placed at high points in the force main sewer to prevent air locking.
- 7. Force mains tying into manholes shall enter the manhole at or below the flow line of the receiving manhole, and at an angle of not less than 120 degrees, measured from the centerline of downstream (outlet) pipe.
- C. Design Calculations: The Engineer/Developer shall submit signed, dated, and sealed design calculations by and Professional Engineer licensed in the State of Florida with the final Construction Drawings for all wastewater projects.
 Calculations should show that the force mains will have sufficient hydraulic capacity for the peak hourly flows while meeting the requirements of this Section. Minor head losses shall be incorporated in the calculations.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 MATERIALS

A. The materials of construction shall comply with the specific applicable standards set forth under Section 6, Utility Excavation, Trenching, and Backfilling;

- Section 9, Boring, Jacking, and Tunneling; and Section 11, Pipe, Fittings, Valves, and Appurtenances. All material shall be free from defects impairing strength and durability, shall be of the best commercial quality for the purpose specified, and shall have structural properties sufficient to safely sustain or withstand strains and stresses to which it is normally subjected and be true to detail.
- B. Pipe material for force mains shall be as shown on the Construction Drawing. Pipe material shall be in accordance with the design requirements in this Section and Section 11, Pipe, Fittings, Valves, and Appurtenances, unless otherwise shown on the Contract Drawings. Pipe, fittings, valves, restrainers, and other appurtenances shall be as specified in Section 11, Pipe, Fittings, Valves, and Appurtenances. Additional valves and appurtenances are specified below. In order to preclude possible domestic water tapping, all installed underground nonmetallic wastewater force mains shall be green or DIP marked with a continuous green stripe located within the top 90 degrees of the pipe.
- C. Nonmetallic Marking Tape: Marking tape shall be "Extra-Stretch" marking tape for wastewater, colored green. Extra-Stretch marking tape shall consist of 6-ply copolymer film bonded together without the use of adhesives, specifically formulated for prolonged use underground. It shall be highly resistant to alkalis, acids, and other destructive agents found in the soil. Extra-stretch tape shall have a minimum thickness of 6 mils, minimum tensile strength of 80 pounds per 3-inch-wide strip, and a minimum elongation of 600%. Tape shall bear a continuous printed message repeated every 16 to 36 inches warning of the installation buried below. Installation instructions for the tape shall be printed with each message along the entire length. Manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
- D. Tracer wire shall have a green, type TWH insulated PVC copper conductor, #10 solid strand copper wire that is strapped to the pipe at 10-foot intervals installed. Wire shall meet National Electric Codes and Underwriter Laboratories, Inc. requirements. Manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
- E. Air release valves shall have with 316 stainless steel service saddle, 316 stainless steel piping, and 316 stainless steel ball valve. Air release valve manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
- F. Combination air valves shall have a 316 stainless steel service saddle, 316 stainless steel piping, and 316 stainless steel ball valve. Combination air valves manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

- G. Piping Supports: The Contractor shall furnish and install all supports necessary to hold the piping and appurtenances in a firm, substantial manner at the lines and grades indicated on the Drawings or as specified. Piping within pumping stations shall be adequately supported from floors, walls, ceilings, or beams. Supports from the floor shall be by approved saddle stands or suitable concrete piers as indicated or approved.
 - 1. Pipe saddles shall be shaped to fit the pipe with which they will be used and shall be capable of screw adjustment. Concrete piers shall conform accurately to the bottom one-third to one-half of the pipe. Piping along walls shall be supported by approved wall brackets with attached pipe rolls or saddles or by wall brackets with adjustable hanger rods. For piping supported from the ceiling, approved rod hangers of a type capable of screw adjustment after erection of the piping and with suitable adjustable concrete inserts or beam clamps shall be used. If required, piping supports shall be placed so as to provide a uniform slope in the pipe without sagging. Supports shall be located wherever necessary, and in no case shall they exceed 4 feet on centers for PVC pipe or manufacturer's recommendations for DIP.
- H. All material shall be free from defects impairing strength and durability, shall be of the best commercial quality for the purpose specified, and shall have structural properties sufficient to safely sustain or withstand strains and stresses to which it is normally subjected and be true to detail.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. The general installation procedures shall comply with the specific applicable standards set forth under Section 6, Utility Excavation, Trenching, and Backfilling; Section 9, Boring, Jacking, and Tunneling; and Section 11, Pipe, Fittings, Valves, and Appurtenances.
- B. General: The Contractor shall install all pipework meeting the requirements of AWWA for installation various types and classes of pipe. It is the Contractor's responsibility to, coordinate utility locates with Sunshine State One-Call of Florida, Inc. (800-432-4770 or website www.sunshine811.com), make exploratory excavations, and/or use other methods available to locate existing utilities before construction of any gravity sewers. If necessary, the Contractor shall adjust the new force mains, subject to approval by the Engineer, to avoid conflicts with existing piping. If a conflict is found between an existing utility and proposed grade, the Contractor is to furnish the Engineer of Record all pertinent information so that remedial design can be performed.

- C. Reference Points and Layout: The Contractor shall be responsible for setting all grade lines, centerline of construction, and locating property lines. The Town will provide a bench mark. Any reference points, points of intersection, property corners, or bench marks, which are disturbed during construction, shall be restored by a Land Surveyor registered to practice in the State of Florida, and all costs thereof shall be borne by the Contractor. The Contractor shall assume all responsibility for the correctness of the grade and alignment stakes.
- D. Pipe Handling: Every care shall be taken in handling and laying pipe and fittings to avoid damaging the pipe, scratching or marring machined surfaces, and abrasion of the pipe coating. The lined Pipe and Fittings must be handled only from the outside of the pipe and fittings. No forks, chains, straps, hooks, etc. shall be placed inside the pipe and fittings for lifting, positioning, or laying. Carry pipe into position – do not drag. Do not dump or drop any of the materials of this Section into the trench. Lower pipe and accessories into trench by means of ropes, belt slings, or other equipment approved by the Engineer. Thoroughly clean interior of pipe and accessories before lowering pipe into trench. Keep clean during laying operations by plugging or other methods approved by the Engineer. Before installation, inspect each piece of pipe and fitting for defects. Material found to be defective before or after laying shall be replaced with sound material meeting the specified requirements, and without additional cost to the Town. If damaged, the material shall be repaired in accordance with the liner manufacturer's recommendations. Any fitting showing a crack and any fitting or pipe which has received a severe blow that may have caused an incipient fracture. even though no such fracture can be seen, shall be marked as rejected and removed at once from the work. In any pipe showing a distinct crack in which it is believed there is no incipient fracture beyond the limits of the visible crack, the cracked portion, if so approved by the Town, may be cut off before the pipe is laid so that the pipe used may be perfectly sound. The cut shall be made in the sound barrel at a point at least 12 inches from the visible limits of the crack. Except as otherwise approved, all cutting shall be done with a power driven cut off saw. All cut ends shall be examined for possible cracks caused by cutting. Keep gaskets away from oil, grease, excessive heat, and direct rays of the sun. Keep PVC pipe covered during storage to prevent damage by sunlight.
- E. Pipe Installation: Pipe shall be installed in accordance with AWWA C600 for ductile iron force main, ASTM D2321 for PVC force main, the manufacturer's instruction, and the Engineer's direction. Underground pipe shall be furnished in nominal 18- or 20-foot laying lengths unless indicated otherwise on the Drawings. Pipe shall be cut to length as required to fit installation conditions.
 - 1. Rest the full length of each section of pipe solidly on the pipe bed, with recesses excavated to accommodate bells, couplings, and joints.

- 2. Take up and relay pipe that has the grade or joint disturbed after laying.
- 3. Special Construction Requirements for 24-Inch and Larger PVC Pipe: For PVC pipe 24 inches and larger, unless approved otherwise by the Town, a foundation bed of granular material (57 stone) shall be placed under and around all ductile iron fittings and valves for additional support of heavy system components. A foundation bed of granular material shall be provided for all valves 20-inch size and larger. For granular materials, the minimum vertical limit is 12 inches under the fitting or valve, up to onethird the overall height of the fitting or valve. The minimum horizontal limits of the granular material shall be 12 inches in all directions beyond the outer edges of the fitting or valve. The compaction of soils below the granular material shall be at 98% of the maximum density. All spool pieces between 24 inches and larger ductile fittings and valves shall be at least 5 feet long. Where possible, a full joint of pipe (no short pipe lengths) shall be connected to all fittings and valves. No joint deflection shall be allowed at the fittings or valves.
- 4. Pipe Depth: The standard minimum cover for sewage force main systems shall be 36 inches from the top of the pipe to finish grade. The maximum allowable depth of cover for sewage force main shall be 84 inches. Where these conditions cannot be met, special consideration will be given. Additional depth may be required where future surface improvements are planned or anticipated.
- 5. Horizontal and Vertical Separation:
 - a. The horizontal separation between sanitary force mains and existing or proposed water mains shall not be less than 10 feet, or as specified by FDEP. The elevation of the top of the sewer pipe shall be at least 18 inches below the invert of the water main.
 - b. Wherever new sanitary force mains must cross under water mains, the sewer shall be laid at such an elevation that the top of the sewer pipe is at least 18 inches below the bottom of the water main. When the elevation of the sanitary force main cannot be buried to meet the above requirements, special protection shall be provided or the water main shall be relocated to provide this separation and reconstructed with DIP for a distance of 10 feet on each side of the sewer with one full length of water main pipe centered over the sewer so that both joints are as far from the sewer as possible. Said protection shall consist of completely encasing, 6 inches minimum, the sewer pipe in concrete for a minimum distance of 10 feet each

side of the water main, or installation of pressure-tight joint cast or DIP for the same dimension.

- 6. Joints: The Contractor shall submit the specific type of joint to be used on all pipe, including complete data on all material to be used, to the Engineer for approval before beginning any pipework. Make all joints conform to the requirements of the manufacturer's printed instructions as approved for the type of joint installed.
 - a. Underground pipe shall be installed using push on joints or mechanical joints as shown on the Drawings. All adapters necessary for the proper jointing of pipe shall be provided.
 Connections to other types of pipe shall be made with a dresser restrained joint coupling or watertight couplings suitable for application.
 - b. PVC Joints shall form a watertight and airtight seal.
- F. Tracer Wire and Warning Tape Installation
 - 1. General: Wherever nonmetallic pipe is installed, No. 10 tracer wire and warning tape shall be installed to facilitate future location of the force main. Manufacturers shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
 - 2. Tracer wires shall begin and terminate in the test boxes. Wire shall run continuously through test stations for the entire length of the pipeline and shall be strapped to the pipe at 10-foot intervals Test boxes shall be installed at each location as shown on the Drawings, spaced at intervals not exceeding 500 feet. Test boxes shall not be installed in streets or driveways. Tracer wire between boxes shall be continuous, unbroken lengths. The tracer wire shall not be installed in tension, but neither shall there be "coils" in the wire. The ends of the tracer wires shall be installed in the test boxes. The length of each tracer wire in each box shall be long enough to extend no less than 1 foot and no greater than 2 feet above ground level. Breaks shall be repaired by splicing with a split-bolt clamp. Repairs by "twisting" the two ends together will not be accepted.
 - 3. Warning tape shall be buried in the backfill approximately 1 foot over the top of the PVC force main. Tape shall be laid in continuous lengths. Any breaks or tears shall be repaired before proceeding with the backfilling operations.

- 4. For pipe installed via horizontal directional drill, see Section 10, Horizontal Directional Drilling, for tracer wire requirements.
- G. Sewer Air Release Valve or Combination Sewer Valve
 - 1. General: Where the force main profile is such that air pockets or entrapment could occur resulting in flow blockage, provisions for automatic air release and/or venting shall be provided. Where free-flow will occur during operation or after pumping stops, combined air release and vacuum valve assemblies shall be provided. Construction shall provide for minimum contact between operating mechanisms and sewage.
 - 2. Install gravel drainage bed and doghouse manhole as specified in the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Standard Details. Manhole shall be installed with wall section plumb and level and in accordance to Section 14, Wastewater Gravity Sewer System.
- H. Thrust Restraint: All non-flanged fittings and valves shall be restrained. In addition, restraint joints shall be provided at all changes in alignment. Restrained joints shall be of the type specified in Section 11, Pipe, Fittings, Valves, and Appurtenances. The use of thrust blocks shall be limited to situations such as point repair where exposing several joints of pipe is not feasible due to existing ground conditions and also must be used with mechanical restraining devices in the judgment of the Engineer. Locate thrust blocking between solid ground and the fitting to be anchored. Unless otherwise shown or directed by the Engineer, place the base and thrust bearing sides of thrust blocking directly against undisturbed earth. Place thrust blocking so the fitting joints will be accessible for repair.
- I. System Connections: All connections and ties to the Town sewer system and transfer of services will be performed by the Contractor under supervision of a Town representative.
- J. Valves and Valve Locations: Valves shall be installed on all subsidiary force mains at the point of connection to the major main and where force mains are to be extended and at intervals not exceeding 1,000 feet. At future connection branches or ends, the valves shall be restrained by methods to facilitate said connection without system shut down. All valves on force mains shall be plug type valves only.
- K. Tapping Sleeve and Valve Connections: Unless approved otherwise by the Town, tapped connections in the barrel of a pipe shall be less than the diameter of pipe being tapped except 4-inch pipe which may be tapped with a 4-inch tapping sleeve and valve. No taps shall be made within 5 feet of a joint.

- L. Branch Connections: Branch connections are not allowable. All force mains must terminate at manholes, wet wells, or force mains. Force mains shall not terminate into gravity sewers.
- M. Terminal Discharge: Force mains shall enter the terminal facility (gravity sewer manhole, pumping station wet well, or other) at a point equal to the operational water level of said receiving unit. Should an elevation drop be required to obtain the outlet connection, the prior down-slope of the force main shall not exceed 45 degrees, and adequate air venting shall be provided at the profile breakpoint.
- N. Force Main Connection to Existing Manhole: Where a new force main is connected into an existing manhole, the manhole shall be properly prepared to receive the new force main and repaired or replaced as indicated or specified. Manhole inverts shall be reshaped as required by the new connection to provide a smooth flowing channel of the exact shape of the sewer to which it connects. An approved gate valve or plug valve must be installed immediately before the 45° bends going into the manhole. Force mains tying into manholes shall enter the manhole at or below the flow line of the receiving manhole, and at an angle of not less than 120 degrees, measured from the centerline of downstream (outlet) pipe.
- O. Clean Out Connections: Should force mains appear to be susceptible to sedimentation clogging, as created by depressed crossings or extended low flow (velocity) periods, suitable clean out connections shall be provided in accordance with the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Standard Details.
- P. Identification: In order to preclude possible domestic water tapping, all installed underground nonmetallic sanitary sewage force mains shall be green or DIP marked with a continuous green stripe located within the top 90 degrees of the pipe.

3.02 TESTING

- A. HDPE pipe testing procedures shall be as specified in Section 11, Pipe, Fittings, Valves, and Appurtenances. The Contractor shall perform leakage and pressure testing of all other (non-HDPE pipe) sanitary sewage force mains, as set forth in the following, and shall conduct said tests in the presence of representatives from the Town and/or other authorized agencies with 48 hours' advance notice provided.
- B. Piping and appurtenances to be tested shall be within sections between valves or adequate plugs, not exceeding 2,000 feet with prior approval from the Town. Testing shall not proceed until restraining devices are installed. All piping shall be thoroughly cleaned and flushed before testing to clear the lines of all foreign

matter. While the piping is being filled with water, care shall be exercised to permit the escape of air from extremities of the test section, with additional release cocks provided if required.

C. Leakage and pressure testing shall be performed simultaneously at 100 psi for all sizes of force mains. The testing procedure shall continue for an uninterrupted period of not less than 2 hours by way of a pump taking supply from a container suitable for measuring water loss. The amount of loss shall be determined by measuring the volume displaced from said container. No pipe will be accepted if pressure loss is greater than 5 psi regardless of the leakage test results. Testing shall be in accordance with the applicable AWWA provisions for PVC, AWWA M23, and for DIP, AWWA C600, Section 4. The allowable rate of leakage shall be less than the number of gallons per hour determined by the following formulas:

$$\frac{\text{PVC}}{\text{L} = \frac{\text{N*D*P}^{1/2}}{7400}} \qquad \qquad \frac{\text{DIP}}{\text{L} = \frac{\text{S*D*P}^{1/2}}{133,200}} \\
\text{For 100 psi; test:} \qquad \text{L} = 0.00135 \text{ ND (PVC)}$$

For 100 psi; test: L = 0.000133 ND (FVC)For 100 psi; test: L = 0.000075 SD (DIP)

Where:

L = allowable leakage in gallons per hour.

N= number of joints in section tested.

S = length of pipe tested, in feet.

D = nominal diameter of the pipe in inches.

P = average test pressure maintained during the leakage test in pounds per square inch.

- D. Should the test fail, necessary repairs shall be accomplished by the Contractor and the test repeated until within the established limits. The Contractor shall furnish the necessary labor, water, pumps, gauges, and all other items required to conduct the required sanitary sewage force main testing and shall perform the necessary system repairs required to comply with the specified pressure and leakage testing.
- E. During the pressure and leakage testing, all exposed pipe, fittings, valves, and joints shall be examined carefully during the test. Any damaged or defective pipe, fittings, or valves that are discovered following the pressure test shall be repaired or replaced with sound material and the test shall be repeated until it is satisfactory. For new installations, the Contractor shall be limited to the number of repair couplings used to repair pipe joint leaks. Unless approved otherwise by the Town, the Contractor is limited to two repair couplings per 1,000 linear feet installed pipe. Should the actual number of joint leaks exceed the above limit, then the Town may require the Contractor to remove and re-install the entire associated main or certain sections of the main at the Contractor's expense. For

- new work "bell joint leak clamps" or similar devices are not acceptable for the repair of leaks at the joint.
- F. All tapping saddle/valve assemblies shall be subject to a 1-hour pressure test at 125 psi with no allowable leakage, before making tap.
- G. Tracing Wire Testing: After construction and backfilling is complete, but before final inspection, the Town inspector will test the tracer wire with standard Town locating equipment. If the inspector determines that the tracer is not operating properly, the Contractor shall locate and correct the problem. The force main will not be accepted and placed in operation until the tracer system is acceptable to the Town.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 17 WASTEWATER LIFT STATIONS

PART 1 GENERAL

1.01 SCOPE OF WORK

- A. This Section does not stand alone and is incorporated as part of the Town Construction Specification Manual (CSM). The CSM shall be used for other requirements that may not be covered in this Section.
- B. This Section includes the general requirements for the design criteria and installation of sewage pumping stations including all labor, materials, tools, equipment, and performance of all work necessary or incidental to furnish an operable wastewater lift station as shown on the Drawings and specified herein. The relevant provisions included in these Specifications shall be applicable to this Section, unless otherwise indicated herein or approved by the Town.
- C. A Sanitary Sewer Lift Station Design Data sheet shall be submitted with all lift station design proposals. All references to Industry Standards (ASTM, ANSI, etc.) shall be to the latest revision unless otherwise stated. Only those materials included in the Town CSM, (including, but not limited to, submersible pumps, VFD equipment and control panels), shall be installed. All materials shall be new unless specifically called for otherwise. All structures, pumps, and panels shall require a complete shop drawing submittal, as detailed in this specification for the Town's review and approval. All precast concrete duplex and triplex lift station shall conform to the respective Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Standard Detail. Any private pumping station that connects to the Town's sewer system that has any pump over 3 Hp shall conform to the Town standards and shall be reviewed by the Town.
- D. All piping and equipment of the same type shall be from one manufacturer, unless authorized in writing by the Town or the Town's representative.
- E. Private Sanitary Sewer Lift Station Requirements: Privately owned collection systems connected to the Town's system shall comply with the following.
 - 1. Discharger of private wastewater collection system must provide a copy of the contract with a reputable person or firm experienced in the operations, maintenance, and repairs of lift stations to the Town. The Lift Station Maintenance Contractor must have access to equipment needed to pull and service pumps as well as pumping and hauling lift station waste. The Contractor must be able to have a 24-hour/7-days-a-week response time

- and be able to respond to the site within 2 hours after notification of spill or overflow.
- 2. The Lift Station Maintenance Contractor shall provide 24-hour emergency telephone numbers for themselves and the property owner, enabling the Town to notify the property owner and Contractor of a reported emergency.
- 3. Upon expiration or change of status of the Contractor, the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Wastewater Department shall be notified in writing within 72 hours.
- 4. A sign shall be posted on or adjacent to the lift station site (preferably on the control panel). The sign size should be approximately 24- x 30-inch, white background with red letters. The letters should be of a size legible from a distance of 30 feet. The sign shall state the following:
 - a. Private Sanitary Sewer Lift Station.
 - b. In case of Emergency call (phone number).
 - c. Owner or Business Name and phone number.
 - d. Contractors name and phone number.
- 5. The Town shall have the right to inspect all private wastewater collection systems and appurtenances, and to cause discontinuance of sewer service if the private wastewater collection system is not maintained in a sanitary and effective operating condition or if the public sewer facilities may be harmed thereby
- 6. Report spills immediately to Florida Department of Environmental Protection (FDEP), and provide spill response contact information if differing from contact information provided.

1.02 SUBMITTALS

- A. All submittals shall be submitted in accordance with the shop drawing submittal requirements as specified in Section 1, General Provisions.
- B. All structures, pumps, and panels shall require a complete shop drawing submittal, as detailed in this specification for the Town's review and approval.

C. Product Data:

1. Before fabrication, pump station manufacturer shall submit submittal data for review and approval.

2. Submittal shall include shop drawings, electrical ladder logic drawings, and support data as follows: catalog cuts sheets reflecting characteristics for major items of equipment, materials of construction, major dimensions, motor and V-belt drive data, pump characteristic curves showing the design duty point capacity (GPM), head (FT), net positive suction head required (NPSHr), and hydraulic brake horsepower (BHP). Electrical components used in the motor branch and liquid level control shall be fully described.

D. Submittals shall include at least the following:

1. Wet well:

- a. Base sections, riser sections, eccentric and concentric conical top sections, flat slab tops, and grade rings with notarized certificate indicating compliance with ASTM C478.
- b. Location and elevation of all penetrations.
- c. Applicable lifting and installation details or instructions.
- d. Access covers with description literature and cut sheets.
- e. Method of repair for minor damage to precast concrete sections.
- f. Delivery, unloading, and receiving instructions.
- g. Buoyancy calculations and counter measures by a Professional Engineer licensed in the State of Florida and shall be signed, dated, and sealed.
- 2. All precast structures shall be designed by a Professional Engineer licensed in the State in Florida. Calculations and Design Drawings shall be signed, dated, and sealed, and submitted for review before fabrication. Design Drawings shall demonstrate that the applicable industry design standards listed in this Section have been met.

3. <u>Precast concrete structures</u>:

- a. Sectional Drawings and elevations showing dimensions and reinforcing steel placement.
- b. Structural calculations including assumptions.
- c. Concrete design mix.
- 4. The Contractor shall submit written certification from the pump supplier that the wet well size and layout are acceptable for the pump installation.

- 5. The Contractor shall submit integrated shop drawings for the pumping system illustrating the mechanical and electrical equipment and components specified in this Section and including the following:
 - a. Product Data: For each mechanical, structural, and electrical component, include the manufacturer's descriptive literature, product specifications, published details, technical bulletins, performance, and capacity-rating curves with primary and secondary design conditions clearly noted, charts, and schedules, catalog data sheets, and other submittal materials as required to verify that the proposed products conform to the quality and function of the specified products.
 - (1) <u>Identification</u>: Clearly indicate by an arrow on submissions covering more than one product type or style exactly which product is being submitted for approval.
 - (2) <u>Equipment Characteristics</u>: Provide bearing ratings, complete motor data, service factors, shaft diameters, coupling type, and weights of principal parts and assembled equipment.
 - (3) <u>Manufacturer</u>: Include the catalog name, company name, address, and telephone number for the manufacturer of each product submitted.
 - (4) <u>Equipment Drawings</u>: Submit completely dimensioned plan, elevations, and cross-sections of system equipment and sub-assemblies.
 - (5) <u>Layout Drawings</u>: Submit completely dimensioned drawing of pump, pump base, anchor bolt size and patterns, wet well hatch, wet well vent, installation notes, recommended grout configuration of wet well bottom, pipe support material and spacing, and other pertinent setting details.
 - (6) <u>Product List</u>: Provide a list of equipment and components on each drawing with each product identified by legend reference. Include product name, manufacturer, and model number.
 - (7) <u>Wiring Diagrams</u>: Submit complete interconnecting wiring diagrams and schedules for electrical apparatus showing numbered wiring terminals in the pump control panel conforming to NEMA ICS-1-101. Identify field device terminals, wire number, wire sizes, control and power wire types, and interfaced elements.
 - (8) <u>Control Panel Drawing</u>: Submit a dimensioned drawing of the control panel indicating the primary electrical components and panel face with control devices, lights,

indicators, and other panel-face-mounted apparatus located and identified. Provide an internal face view of the equipment arrangement with equipment identified.

- 6. <u>Pump Test Report</u>: Submit certified copies of factory-run pump performance test curves. Factory-certified performance test curves shall indicate the following:
 - a. Flow in gallons per minute.
 - b. Total head in feet of water.
 - c. Horsepower.
 - d. Pump efficiency in percent of input shaft horsepower.
 - e. Pump data:
 - (1) Model number.
 - (2) Serial number.
 - (3) Impeller diameter and type.
 - (4) Impeller speed.
 - f. Test condition data:
 - (1) Date of test.
 - (2) Mean water temperature.
- E. Operations and Maintenance Manuals:
 - 1. Operation shall be in accordance with written instructions provided by the pump station manufacturer. Comprehensive instructions supplied at time of shipment shall enable personnel to properly operate and maintain all equipment supplied. Content and instructions shall assume operating personnel are familiar with pumps, motors, piping and valves, but lack experience on exact equipment supplied.
 - 2. Documentation shall be specific to the pump station supplied and collated in functional sections. Each section shall combine to form a complete system manual covering all aspects of equipment supplied by the station manufacturer. Support data for any equipment supplied by others, even if mounted or included in overall station design, shall also be provided. Instructions shall include the following as a minimum:

- a. Functional description of each major component, complete with operating instructions.
- b. Instructions for operating pumps and pump controls in all modes of operation.
- Calibration and adjustment of equipment for initial start-up, replacement of level control components, or as required for routine maintenance.
- d. Support data for commercially available components not produced by the station manufacturer, but supplied in accordance with the Specifications, shall be supported by literature from the prime manufacturer and incorporated as appendices.
- e. Electrical schematic diagram of the pump station circuits shall be in accordance with NFPA 70. Schematics shall illustrate, to the extent of authorized repair, pump motor branch, control, and alarm system circuits including interconnections. Wire numbers and legend symbols shall be shown. Schematic diagrams for individual components, not normally repairable by the station operator, need not be included. Details for such parts shall not be substituted for an overall system schematic. Partial schematics, block diagrams, and simplified schematics shall not be provided in lieu of an overall system diagram.
- f. Mechanical layout drawing of the pump station and components, prepared in accordance with good commercial practice, shall provide installation dimensions and location of all pumps, motors, valves, and piping.
- 3. Operation and maintenance instructions that rely on vendor cut-sheets and literature that include general configurations or require operating personnel to selectively read portions of the manual shall not be acceptable. Operation and maintenance instructions must be specific to equipment supplied in accordance with these Specifications.

1.03 DESIGN STANDARDS

A. Reference: The Developer shall comply with the applicable regulations established by FDEP. Additionally, the criteria provided in the Recommended Standards for Wastewater Facilities, Latest Edition, and Water Environment Federation (WEF) Manual of Practice No. 9, Latest Edition, may generally be used as design guidelines, if not in conflict with state, county, Town, or other

- regulatory agency requirements. See the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Standard Details for a standard precast concrete duplex and triplex lift station.
- B. Lift station structures and equipment shall be protected from physical damage by flooding to the 100-year flood elevation. An all-weather access road shall be provided to the lift station.
- C. Design Flows: Sewage pumping stations shall be designed for the total ultimate development flow from all contributory areas. The design average daily flow shall be computed at the unit rates set forth under Section 14, Wastewater Gravity Sewer System. The maximum required pumping capability shall be the product of selected peak factors times the accumulative average daily flow (ADF) from the total service area. In general, the following factors shall be applicable for the range of flow contributions indicated (million gallons per day average daily flow: MGD ADF), unless larger values are required or smaller amounts are justified, with prior approval from the Town.

FLOW RANGE	PEAK FACTOR
0.00 to 0.05 MGD-ADF	3.5 to 4.0
0.05 to 0.25 MGD-ADF	3.0
0.25 to 2.00 MGD-ADF	2.5

Note: Special analysis shall be made for flows beyond 2.00 MGD-ADF and peak factors less than 2.5.

D. No wastewater lift station shall be allowed to be connected to a downstream system that is undersized to handle the design flows. The Developer/Contractor shall be responsible for the cost to upsize any downstream affected system components in order for the Town to accept the flow. Should the Town desire to increase the capacity beyond the added flow, it may participate in the cost.

E. Pump Selection:

- 1. For pumping stations with a peak flow demand of 1,000 gallons per minute (GPM) or less, a minimum of two pump units of equal capacity shall be provided (with one pump operating to meet peak hourly flow, and one pump on standby). Where the peak hourly design flow exceeds 1,000 GPM, three or more units shall be included in the facility (with two pumps operating to meet maximum demand and one pump on standby).
- 2. The selected sewage pump system shall have the minimum capability of pumping the design peak flow at the maximum computed system total dynamic head (TDH) requirements.

- 3. Head-Capacity curves shall be prepared for the proposed pumping system in order to determine the various operational conditions. Hydraulic computations shall be in accordance with good engineering, practice, with pipe friction loss calculated by the "Hazen-Williams Formula", using standard friction factors based on the materials used.
- 4. Provision shall be made to automatically alternate pumps in use.

F. Wet Well Design

- 1. The wet well structure shall provide a minimum capacity between operational water levels sufficient to allow a minimum of 5 minutes between successive starts of the pumps, when the effluent rate is one-half the maximum one pump capacity. The filling time at the initial and design average flow shall not exceed 30 minutes unless the facility is designed to provide flow equalization. Low water levels shall provide adequate submergence to preclude pump inlet vortexing, air binding, or other design considerations. Operational maximum high water levels shall not exceed the invert elevation of the lowest influent pipe, with high water alarm no higher than the 0.8 of said pipe. A minimum size hopper bottom shall be provided, with the wet well floor sloping to the bottom at a slope of not less than one to one (1/1). Additionally, where the wet well extends below the ground water table, the structure shall be designed to eliminate any possibility of flotation.
- 2. Minimum wet well size shall be 6-foot diameter. A 12-foot-diameter wet well (minimum) shall be used in cases where the pump discharge piping (in the wet well) is 10-inch-diameter or larger.
- 3. The wet well shall have a vent.
- 4. Odor control shall be provided as required and specified by the Town utility department for remote stations and/or areas of low flow, at the discretion of the Public Services Director.
- 5. Any station that receives flow from another lift station or which is designed to pump 250 GPM or more shall be provided with a cast in place high-density polyethylene (HDPE) liner.
- G. Station Water System (Non-Potable): All sewage pumping stations shall be provided with a station water system, with adequate capacity and pressure, for wash down or other requirements. System must meet the Town's requirement for cross-connection and back flow prevention.

- H. Emergency Power Provisions: Generators and Emergency Power Connections. It is in the best interests of the public to maintain uninterrupted wastewater flow even during periods of commercial power outages. Therefore, any lift station with a design wastewater flow of 250 GPM or greater will be provided with an onsite standby, diesel, power generator, and automatic transfer switch. In addition, at the discretion of the Director of Environmental Services, any proposed station that is located in a remote area, or area located at a considerable distance from the Environmental Services Offices, may be required to be equipped with an emergency generator. Any other lift station not falling onto the above criteria shall be equipped with standby power generator connections for emergency auxiliary pumping. Standard generator plugs manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
- I. Sewage Pumps, Motors, and Standby Generators:
 - 1. Sewage pumping units shall be capable of handling raw, unscreened sewage and shall be capable of passing a sphere of at least 3 inches in diameter and the suction and discharge openings shall be at least 4 inches in diameter. Pumps shall be electric motor driven and of a proven design that has been in sewage service under similar conditions for at least 5 years. Pumps shall provide the required peak design performance requirements and be suitable for operation within the total hydraulic range of operation. Pumps manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM. Also provide a 3-inch camlock quick coupling for emergency by-pass at pumping stations with plug valve.
 - 2. Operating conditions and unit sizes shall be shown on the Drawings.
 - 3. The pump design operating conditions shall be within 20% +/- of the best efficiency point, unless otherwise approved by the Town. When possible, the pump selection shall be made in the center of the family of curves.
 - 4. Pump motors should be non-overloading, excluding service factor, throughout the entire operating range of the pumps. Two or more normally closed heat sensing miniature switches connected in series and embedded within the motor windings shall be provided to shut off power and initiate alarm light for motor over-temperature condition. See attached Drawing.
- J. On-Site Standby Generator: See Section 20, Standby Power Generator Diesel, of these Specifications for information on standby generators for lift stations.

- K. Pump Controls and SCADA System: See Section 19, Wastewater Pump Controller/Remote Terminal Unit (RTU), of these Specifications for information on the pump control and SCADA control panels.
- L. Factory Built Facilities: Factory built facilities shall have prior Town approval before inclusion in Drawings.

M. Valves and Valve Vaults:

- 1. <u>Valve Vaults</u>: Valve vaults must be a minimum of 6 feet by 6 feet (inside dimension), with no less than 12 inches from the sidewall to the valve clearance. Vault must be coated, with Inextol epoxy inside and outside with a finish coat of 32 mils. All metal on the inside of the valve vault shall be coated with Inextol Epoxy and will also have a finish coat of 32 mils.
- 2. <u>Valves</u>: A shutoff and check valve shall be placed on the discharge line of each pump outside the wet well in a separate valve vault. The check valve shall be located between the shutoff valve and the pump. All valves used in station valve boxes (except for check valves) shall be plug valves. All valves shall be in accordance with Section 11, Pipe, Fittings, Valves, and Appurtenances.
- N. Each lift station shall be fenced or secured in a locked building/enclosure or be located in a restricted access area to prevent access by unauthorized persons. A weather durable sign with a 24-hour emergency telephone number shall be located at a conspicuous point on the fence or structure of the lift station, unless the lift station is located within a restricted area.
- O. Design Calculations: The Engineer/Developer shall submit signed, dated, and sealed design calculations by and Professional Engineer licensed in the State of Florida with the final Construction Drawings for all wastewater lift stations. Calculations shall include high head and low head condition system curves plotted on the manufacturer's pump curve, hydraulic analysis of force main system including all friction and minor losses, operating cycles with wet well sizing, and buoyancy calculations. System curves shall verify that the pumps are operating at peak efficiency and are suitable for the design flow application. Pump and motor selection shall be designed based on the hydraulic grade line at the point of connection.

1.04 WARRANTY

A. Lift station Warranty: The station manufacturer shall warranty the complete lift station and all equipment provided to be free from defects in materials and

workmanship for 2 years from the date it is placed in permanent operation by the manufacturer's representative. Warranty shall include 100% coverage of the manufacturer's labor, materials and equipment to remove and replace defective materials and workmanship at no cost to the Town.

- B. Pump Manufacturer Warranty: The manufacturer shall warrant to the Town for permanent installation in municipal sewage service submersible pump and motor against defects in materials and workmanship including normal wear and tear to the following parts for a period of 5 years, mechanical seals, bearings, shafts, motor electrical cables, and motor stators.
 - 1. The manufacturer shall warrant to the Town for permanent installation in municipal sewage service submersible pump and motor against defects in materials and workmanship including normal wear and tear to the following parts for a period of 5 years, mechanical seals, bearings, shafts, motor electrical cables, and motor stators. The warranty shall include no less than 100% coverage for original equipment manufactured (OEM) parts and in-shop labor for pump/motor repairs for the full 5 years at no cost to the Town. This warranty shall not apply to parts that fail due to abuse, neglect, mishandling, or acts of God. The warranty period shall commence upon the date of final acceptance for use the pumping station and/or of the replacement pump by the Town.
 - 2. Verification of guarantees of performance and warranty certificate shall be indicated in the shop drawing submittal and in the Operation and Maintenance Manual.
 - 3. The pump distributor shall employ and make available proficient manufacturer-authorized service technicians to perform service calls to pumps supplied to the Town on a 24-hour basis, 7 days a week. The pump distributor shall provide service technicians company-owned service vehicles equipped with lifts/booms capable of retrieving all sizes of submersible pumps from wet wells, all necessary tools, test and safety equipment, etc., that are required to make field repairs. Service personnel shall adhere to all of the Town's Safety Rules and Regulations and be trained and certified for confined space entries and carry liability and workers' compensation insurance.
 - 4. During the warranty period, the pump distributor shall at no cost to the Town repair and re-install the subject pump within 24 hours or provide a loaner pump(s) which can be transported, installed, and capable of maintaining operation of the Town's sites. The location address, contact names, phone numbers, (including emergency, mobile, etc.) and fax numbers of the manufacturer-authorized warehouse and service center

shall be indicated in the shop drawing submittal and in the Operation and Maintenance Manual.

- C. Specialty Wet Well Liner Manufacturer Warranty: The liner manufacturer shall warrant the liner against defects for at least 5 years after the date of acceptance by the Town. Defects are defined as cracking, delaminating, or leaking. The warranty shall require the manufacturer to supply all necessary labor, materials, and equipment to repair defects to satisfaction of the Town. The Contractor and/or manufacturer shall not make any exemption or exception to the above stated conditions or warranty.
- D. Fiberglass Wet Well and Valve Box Warranty: The basin/structure manufacturer shall warrant the wet well against defects for at least 5 years after the date of acceptance by the Town. Defects are defined as cracking, delamination, or leaking. The warranty shall require the manufacturer to supply all necessary labor, materials, and equipment to repair defects to the satisfaction of the Town. The Contractor and/or manufacturer shall not make any exemptions or exception to the above stated conditions or warranty.

PART 2 PRODUCTS

2.01 GENERAL

A. All material shall be free from defects impairing strength and durability and be of the best commercial quality for the purpose specified. Unless indicated otherwise on the Drawings, all metal components in the wet well, with the exception of pumps and motors shall be 316 stainless steel as specified herein or on the Drawings. The pumps, motors, and guide rail system shall be supplied by the pump supplier to ensure unit compatibility. Major items of equipment shall include wet well, valve vault, non-clog submersible pumps, pump discharge piping, and fittings, valves, and gauges inside the wet well and valve vault, access hatches, pump support brackets, pump guide rails, coatings, wet well liner, floats, and backflow prevention.

2.02 PRECAST CONCRETE WET WELL

A. Precast concrete wet well shall consist of one monolithically cast base section and a 12-inch long (at a minimum) base slab extension for counter flotation. The wet well floor shall have stainless steel anchor bolts for mounting of pump bases. Wet well bases, sections, and miscellaneous structures shall conform to the requirements of ASTM C478 (specification for precast concrete manhole sections and structures) except as modified herein. Cement shall meet the requirements of ASTM C150/C150M (specification for Portland cement, Type II). Wall thickness shall be as specified on the Contract Drawings and in accordance the Town of

Howey-in-the-Hills Standard Details. If no wall thickness is specified, then the minimum wall thickness shall be 1/12 the inside diameter in inches plus 1 inch. Rings shall be custom-made with openings to meet indicated pipe alignment conditions and invert elevations. Both top slab and bottom slab shall be 12 inches thick (at a minimum). For concrete base and risers, the reinforcing steel shall be designed, signed and sealed by a Florida Registered Structural Engineer and shall be submitted with the shop drawings. All openings in wet well sections shall be cast-in with the exception of the influent pipe opening which shall be cored in the wall. Joint contact surfaces shall be formed with machined castings and shall be exactly parallel and specifically designed by a Professional Engineer. Wet well diameter and height shall be as shown on the Contract Drawings and in accordance with the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Standard Details. The wet well shall be HDPE lined with material by a manufacturer in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM, with a minimum thickness of 2 mm, mechanically anchored to the concrete and with all joints extrusion welded by certified welders. The Contractor shall submit shop drawings consisting of manufacturer's standard details of various sections, for approval, before placing order for structures.

1. <u>Joints</u>: Joints shall have sealing compound, conforming to Federal Specification SS S-00210. Joint shall be wrapped with a vapor barrier joint tape. Cement mortar joints will not be acceptable, except that each joint shall be wiped inside the manhole with cement mortar <u>after</u> assembly. Joints shall be watertight. Manufacturers shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

2.03 FIBERGLASS WET WELL – (ALTERNATE WET WELL CONSTRUCTION)

A. Unless noted otherwise by the Town, the Contractor may construct a fiberglass wet well in lieu of a precast concrete wet well. The fiberglass wet well shall be designed (signed and sealed) by a Florida Professional Engineer. The design shall include the operating conditions as noted on the Drawings, a 24-inch (minimum) thick (12 inches thick inside the wet well and 12 inches thick outside the wet well) reinforced concrete hold-down base which extends 24 inches beyond the outside of the wet well, a 6-inch-thick (minimum) reinforced concrete top slab, pump access frame and cover and other standard wet well features as shown on the Drawings. Pumps shall be anchored to a 1-inch-thick steel plate. The complete design (designed by a Florida Professional Engineer) must be submitted in the form of a shop drawing for the Town's review and approval. Fiberglass reinforced polyester wet wells shall be manufactured from commercial grade unsaturated polyester resin with fiberglass reinforcements. Unless approved otherwise by the Town, the wet well shall be a one-piece unit.

- 1. <u>Reinforcing Material</u>: The reinforcing materials shall be a commercial Grade "E" type glass in the form of mat, continuous roving, chopped roving, roving fabric, or a combination of the above, having a coupling agent that will provide a suitable bond between the glass reinforcements and the resin.
- 2. <u>Surfacing Materials</u>: If reinforcing materials are used on the surface exposed to the contained substance, it shall be a commercial grade chemical-resistant glass that will provide a suitable bond with the resin and leave a resin rich surface.
- 3. <u>Fillers and Additives</u>: Fillers, when used, shall be inert to the environment and wet well construction. Additives, such as thixotropic agents, catalysts, promoters, etc., may be added as required by the specific manufacturing process to be used. The resulting reinforced plastic material must meet the requirement of this specification.
- 4. <u>Exterior Surface</u>: The exterior surface shall be relatively smooth with no sharp projections. Hand-work finish is acceptable if enough resin is present to eliminate fiber show. The exterior surface shall be free of blisters larger than 1/2 inch in diameter, delamination and fiber show.
- 5. <u>Interior Surface</u>: The interior surface shall be resin rich with no exposed fibers. The surface shall be free of crazing, delamination, blisters larger than 1/2 inch in diameter, and wrinkles of 1/8 inch or greater in depth. Surface pits shall be permitted if they are less than 3/4 inch in diameter and less than 1/16 inch deep.

6. Defects Not Permitted:

- a. Exposed fibers: glass fibers not wet out with resin.
- b. Resin runs: runs of resin and sand on the surface.
- c. Dry areas: areas with glass not wet out with resin.
- d. Delamination: separation in the laminate.
- e. Blisters: light colored areas larger than 1/2 inch in diameter.
- f. Crazing: cracks caused by sharp objects.
- g. Pits or Voids: air pockets.
- h. Wrinkles: smooth irregularities in the surface.
- i. Sharp Projection: fiber or resin projections necessitating gloves for handling.
- 7. <u>Installation of Brackets</u>: Manufacturer or manufacturer certified field personnel shall glass in all stainless steel fasteners and brackets, discharge

piping brackets, etc. Manufacturer of wet well shall be responsible for integrity of all field glassing.

- 8. <u>Marking and Identification</u>: Each wet well shall be marked with the following information:
 - a. Manufacturer's name or trademark.
 - b. Manufacturing special number.
 - c. Total length and nominal diameter.
- 9. <u>Load Rating:</u> The complete wet well shall have a minimum dynamic-load rating of 16,000 ft-lbs when tested in accordance with ASTM D3753, Section 8, test methods ASTM D790 and ASTM D695. To establish this rating the complete wet well shall not leak, crack, or suffer other damage when load tested to 40,000 ft-lbs and shall not deflect vertically downward more than 1/4 inch at the point of load application when loaded to 24,000 pounds.
- 10. <u>Stiffness</u>: The wet well cylinder shall have a minimum pipe-stiffness value as shown in Table 1 (at a minimum) when tested in accordance with ASTM D3757, Section 8.

Table 1: Stiffness Requirements (Minimum)			
Length, Feet	F/AY psi		
10 to 20	2.01		
21 to 30	3.02		
31 to 40	5.24		

2.04 VALVE PIT

A. The valve pit shall consist of a concrete structure sized to adequately house the equipment and allow room for removal of equipment and regular maintenance as shown on the Contract Drawings in accordance to the Town of Howey-in-the-Hills Standard Details. All pipe wall penetrations shall be through cast-in or cored holes with flexible rubber sealing connections.

2.05 CONCRETE CEMENT AND REINFORCING

A. Concrete cement shall be Type II, having a maximum Tri-calcium aluminate (3CaOAL203) content of 8%. Coarse aggregate shall be sound, crushed, angular granitic stone only. Smooth or rounded stone is not acceptable. Fine aggregate and coarse aggregate shall meet the requirements of ASTM C33/C33M. Calcium chloride or admixtures containing calcium chloride shall not be used in the concrete mix.

B. Reinforcing shall meet or exceed the minimums described in ASTM C478.

2.06 FLEXIBLE PIPE-CONNECTORS

A. Watertight connections between all pipe and wet well shall be achieved with neoprene-EPDM flexible pipe connectors. The neoprene-EPDM material the connector is manufactured from shall conform to ASTM C443 and shall be a minimum of 3/8 inch (9.4 mm) thick or greater. The material shall be resistant to ozone, weathering, aging, and chemicals, including acids, alkalis, animal and vegetable fats, oils, and petroleum products.

2.07 SUBMERSIBLE NON-CLOG SEWAGE PUMPS

- A. The pumps shall be designed to pump raw sewage wastewater, sludge, and other fibrous materials without injurious damage during operation and conform to the requirements of the National Electrical Code. The design shall be such that the lifting cover, stator housing and volute casing are of ASTM A48/A48M, Class 25 gray iron construction, with all nuts, bolts, washers, and other fastening devices coming into contact with the sewage constructed of 316 stainless steel. All mating surfaces (pump assembly), of major components shall be machined and fitted with O-rings where watertight sealing is required. All rotating parts shall be accurately machined and shall be in as nearly perfect rotational balance as possible. Excessive vibration shall be sufficient cause for rejection of the equipment. The pump impellers shall be re-balanced after being trimmed. Pumps shall be submersible pumps by a manufacturer in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.
- B. Pump Performance and Sizing: Each pump shall have the necessary characteristics and be properly selected to perform under the operating characteristics shown on the attached "Pump Data Sheets".
- C. Seals: Pumps shall have mechanical seals, which shall require neither maintenance nor adjustment and shall be readily accessible for inspection and replacement. The seals shall not rely upon the pumped media for lubrication and shall not be damaged if the pump is run un-submerged for extended periods while pumping under load. Mechanical seals shall be solid hard faced, (not laminated type). The top and bottom seal shall be carbon-ceramic faced, tungsten carbide, or silicon carbide material. A double electrode shall be mounted in the seal chamber to detect any water entering the chamber through the lower seal. Water in the chamber shall cause a red light to turn on at the control box. This signal shall not stop motor but shall act as a warning only, indicating service is required. One spare upper and lower seal each shall be provided for each pump by the manufacturer.

- D. Impeller shall be cast iron and of the non-clog enclosed type. The impeller casing shall have well-rounded water passages and smooth interior surfaces free from cracks, porosity, blowholes, or other irregularities. The impeller shall be a single or double vane of hard alloy gray iron construction, dynamically balanced, double shrouded, with a smooth long thoroughfare and having no acute angles, with not more than two non-clog passages and capable of passing a minimum 3-inch solids. Screw impellers are not acceptable. A stainless steel rotating wear ring shall be installed on the impeller with a bronze stationary volute wear ring of, to provide efficient sealing between the volute and impeller. Impeller is to be driven by stainless steel shaft key and impeller is held in place with stainless steel lock screw and washer. Impeller and motor shall lift off of case as a unit without disturbing piping.
- E. Motors: The pump shall be driven by a totally submersible electric motor. Pump motor shall be of sufficient horsepower as to be non-overloading over the entire length of the pump curve. The stator housing shall be a watertight casing. Motor insulation shall be moisture resistant, Class F, 155°C at a minimum. Motor shall be NEMA Design B. Motor shall be designed to operate in a totally, partially, or non-submerged condition without damage to the motor. Motors shall not contain any insulating fluid consisting of material classified as hazardous waste by the US Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) such as tetrachloroethylene or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB). Motors shall be provided with thermal sensors in the motor windings designed such that the pump will automatically shut off and set off an alarm condition on high temperature condition.
- F. Power Cords and Control Cords: Sufficient cord shall be provided to suit the arrangement shown on the Drawings, minimum 25 feet of each cord. Cords shall be STW-A, water resistant 600V, 60°C, UL and CSA approved, and applied dependent on amp draw for size. Cords shall be attached to the pump in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations to protect against leakage. Both control and power cords shall have a green carrier ground conductor that attaches to motor frame. Power cords and control cords shall junction at a box mounted outside the well, but not inside the control panel. Cords shall be connected in a manner to allow removal of pumps for maintenance.
- G. Discharge Base Elbow: The pump manufacturer shall furnish a discharge base and discharge elbow for the pump supplied. The base shall be sufficiently rigid to firmly support the guide rails, discharge piping and pump under all operating conditions. The base shall be suitable for bolting to the floor, (bolting to a standard 1 inch thick metal plate, see details on Drawings), of the wet well. The face of the discharge elbow inlet flange shall make contact with the face of the pump discharge nozzle flange. The pump and motor assembly shall be a "quick disconnect" type connected to and supported by the discharge base and guide rails

allowing the pump to be removed from the wet well and replaced without the need for unbolting any flange, lowering the liquid level or requiring operating personnel to enter the wet well. Pump shall be provided with a sealing flange and guide rail sliding bracket. The bracket shall be designed to obtain a leak proof seal between flange faces as final alignment of the pump occurs in the connected position. The bracket shall maintain proper contact and a suitably sealed connection between flange faces under all operating conditions. Metal-to-metal mating surfaces are acceptable, if machined finished.

- H. Exterior of pump shall be coated with manufacturer's standard finish (powder coated epoxy finish is preferred, not required).
- I. The pump supplier shall provide a vinyl or aluminum placard or tag which indicates all operating conditions of the pumps, including name plate data, impeller size and part number, design flow, TDH, and other pump-related data.
- J. Pump Test: A written report of pump tests shall be provided with each pump before shipment. The required manufacturer testing is detailed below in the testing section of this Section. The manufacturer shall furnish the Engineer of Record with three copies of certified performance curves for each pump.

2.08 PUMP DATA SHEET

17.18.

A.	•	The pump data sheet submitted to the Town by the Contractor before pump purchase shall contain the following:		
	1.	Lift station No:		
	2.	Description – Service: Solids Handling Lift station.		
	3.	GPM:		
	4.	Total Head – Feet:		
	5.	Fluid: Domestic Wastewater.		
	6.	Hp:		
	7.	Temperature Degree F.: Ambient.		
	8.	pH: 5 to 8.		
	9.	Specific Gravity: 1.0.		
	10.	Minimum Sphere Diameter: 3 inches.		
	11.	Power Service:		
	12.	Maximum Speed:		
	13.	Number Required:		
	14.	Electrical Cable Required/Pump:		
	15.	Electrical Circuit Breaker Rating: Supplier to furnish.		
	16	Maximum Full Load Amps: Supplier to furnish		

Maximum Locked Rotor KVA: Supplier to furnish.

Maximum Starter Amps: Supplier to furnish.

19.	NEC Code Letter:	Supplier	to furnish.
-----	------------------	----------	-------------

20. Remarks: .

2.09 PIPE, FITTINGS, PRESSURE GAUGES, AND VALVES

A. All external piping shall be ductile iron pressure Class 350 (flanged joint for exposed pipe and mechanical joint for buried pipe) and all internal wet well piping from the pump discharge elbow to the valve box shall be a minimum of standard dimension ratio (SDR) 11 HDPE. All piping, fittings, valves, and appurtenances shall meet the specifications in Section 11, Pipe, Fittings, Valves, and Appurtenances. Pipe supports shall be provided as needed. Pressure gauges shall be stainless steel with stainless steel diaphragm, liquid filled, 4-inch-diameter dial with 0- to 100-psi range. Gauges and diaphragms manufacturers shall be in accordance with the Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

2.10 ACCESS COVERS

A. Access covers shall have clear opening of 36 x 84-inch access. Access frame and cover shall have a 1/4-inch-thick, one-piece, mill finish, extruded aluminum frame, incorporating a continuous concrete anchor. Door panel(s) shall be 1/4inch-thick aluminum diamond plate, reinforced to withstand a live load of 300 psi. Door(s) shall open to 90 degrees and automatically lock with stainless steel hold open arms with aluminum release handles. Door(s) shall close flush with the frame. Unit shall lock with a noncorrosive locking bar. All access frame, cover, hardware and fasteners shall be constructed of 316 stainless steel. All surfaces in contact with concrete shall have a shop coat of zinc chromatic primer, approved alkali resistant paint or approved protective coating. Double door access covers shall have removable center bar support. Cover must be compatible with enclosed equipment. Padlocks for access covers shall be brass padlock, keyed alike, and furnished with two keys per lock. Bolts in locking device shall be stainless steel. Manufacturers shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

2.11 BRACKETS, SUPPORTS, AND MISCELLANEOUS METAL PARTS

A. Brackets, supports, and miscellaneous metal parts shall be stainless steel and provided as needed to support piping, floats, controls, and their equipment for a complete installation. Anchor bolts shall be 300 series stainless steel and shall be provided. All metal shall be stainless steel. A lifting chain and hook, minimum 3/8 inch stainless steel, shall be provided with each pump. Three feet of excess chain above the top of the wet well shall be provided to expedite removal. A chain/motor electric cable holder shall be provided and appropriately sized to accommodate the lift chains and motor electrical cables provided without

deformation. Chain/electric cable holder shall include extra heavy duty 3/8 inch rod hooks for attaching control floats, lifting chains, and other wet well accessories (six hooks minimum) and be located on the side of the wet well hatch opening opposite to the discharge piping.

2.12 PUMP GUIDE RAILS WITH END BRACKETS

A. Pump guide rails with end brackets shall be provided for each pump. Guide rails shall be a minimum of 2.0-inch stainless steel pipe and sized to fit the discharge base and the sliding bracket and shall extend upwards from the discharge base to the access hatch cover at the top of the wet well. Intermediate rail braces shall be supplied and solidly secured to the wet well wall. Guide rails and brackets shall be 316 stainless steel. Each pump shall connect automatically and firmly to the discharge piping when lowered into place. It shall not be necessary to enter the wet well to remove or replace a pump.

2.13 POWER-POLE

- A. The Contractor shall confirm service arrangements with the power company before commencing work. The Contractor shall run underground wiring to nearest transformer or hand hole. If no power pole is available, the Contractor shall provide a power pole and shall connect to local power company at pole's weatherhead. Pole shall have mounted on it:
 - 1. 250-watt mercury vapor lighting fixture, 120-volt with photo cell, and 2-foot mounting arm.
 - 2. A lightning arrestor.
 - 3. A volt surge capacitor.
 - 4. The meter base box, by local power company.
 - 5. A fusible, 304 stainless steel disconnect switch.

2.14 MOTOR BRANCH COMPONENTS

- A. Mounting: All motor branch components shall be of the highest industrial quality, securely fastened to a removable sub-plate with screws and lockwashers. The sub-plate shall be tapped to accept all mounting screws. Self-tapping screws shall not be used to mount any components.
- B. Circuit Breaker and Operating Mechanisms: A properly sized heavy-duty air circuit breaker shall be furnished for each pump motor, and shall have a symmetrical RMS interrupting rating as noted on the Drawings. All circuit breakers shall be sealed by the manufacturer after calibration to prevent tampering. A padlocking operating mechanism shall be installed on each motor circuit breaker. Operating handles for the mechanisms shall be located on the

- exterior of the control compartment door, with interlocks which permit the door to be opened only when circuit breakers are in the OFF position.
- C. Motor Starters: An open frame, across-the-line, National Electrical Manufacturers Association (NEMA)-rated magnetic motor starter shall be furnished for each pump motor. Starters of NEMA Size 1 and above shall be designed for addition of at least two auxiliary contacts. Starters rated "O", "OO", or half size are not acceptable. Power contacts shall be double-break and made of cadmium oxide silver. All motor starters shall be equipped to provide under-voltage release and overload protection on all three phases. Motor starter contacts shall be easily replaceable without removing the motor starter from its mounted position. Acceptable starters manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM.

2.15 ALARMS

- A. High Pump Temperature Protection: Each control panel shall be equipped with circuitry to override the level control system and shut down the pump motor(s) when required to protect the pump motor from damage caused by excessive temperature. A thermostat shall be mounted in each motor to detect its temperature, and a single relay shall be supplied for each thermostat. If the pump motor temperature should rise to a level which could cause damage, the thermostat shall cause the signal relay to drop out of the motor starter. An electrical indicator, visible on the front of the control panel, shall indicate that the pump motor has been stopped because of a high temperature condition. The pump shall remain locked out until the pump has cooled and the circuit has been manually reset. Automatic reset of such a circuit shall not be acceptable.
- B. High Water Alarm: When the wet well level reaches a preset high water level, a switch shall energize a signal relay circuit to visibly indicate such on the front of the control panel. The relay shall maintain the signal until manually reset.

2.16 WIRING

- A. Wiring: The pumping system as furnished by the manufacturer shall be completely wired, except for the power feeder lines to the panel main disconnect, final connections to remote alarm devices, pumps, and level switches. The Contractor shall be responsible for all interconnecting wiring and conduit. All wiring, workmanship, and schematic wiring diagrams shall be in compliance with applicable standards and specifications set forth by the National Electrical Code (NEC).
- B. Wire Identification and Sizing: Control circuit wiring inside the panel, with the exception of internal wiring of individual components, shall be 14-gauge

minimum, Type MTW or THW, 600 volts. Wiring in conduit shall be 14-gauge minimum. Motor branch wiring shall be 10-gauge minimum. Motor branch conductors and other power conductors shall not be loaded above 75°C temperature rating. Wires shall be clearly numbered at each end in conformance with applicable standards. All wire connectors in the control panel shall be of the ring tongue type with nylon insulated shanks. All wires on the sub-plate shall be bundled and tied. All wiring outside the panel shall be in conduit.

C. Wire Bundles: Control conductors connecting components mounted on the panel enclosure door shall be bundled and tied in accordance with good commercial practice. Bundles shall be made flexible at the hinged side of the enclosure. Adequate length and flex shall be allowed so that the door can swing to its full open position without undue mechanical stress or abrasion on the conductors or insulation. Bundles shall be clamped and held in place with mechanical fastening devices on each side of the hinge.

2.17 WIRE BUNDLES

- A. Power Supply: All stations shall be provided with a control power transformer, single phase primary, to 120 volts/1 ph/60 hertz secondary. Transformer shall be rated for the loads of the lights, alarms, and control power. Power service for the pump motor circuits shall be as indicated on the pump data sheets.
- B. Backflow Protection for Potable Water Supply: Backflow preventing devices shall be of the type specified in Section 11, Pipe, Fittings, Valves, and Appurtenances.

2.18 EMERGENCY POWER PROVISIONS

A. It is in the best interests of the public to maintain uninterrupted wastewater flow even during periods of commercial power outages. Therefore, any lift station with a design wastewater flow of 250 GPM or greater will be provided with an onsite standby, diesel, power generator, and automatic transfer switch. In addition, at the discretion of the Public Services Director, any proposed station that is located in a remote area, wetland, or area located at a considerable distance from the operation center, may be required to be equipped with an emergency generator. Any other lift station not falling onto the above criteria shall be equipped with standby power generator connections for emergency auxiliary pumping. Standard generator plugs manufacturer shall be in accordance with the Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM. Refer to Section 20, Standby Power Generator – Diesel, for technical specifications on automatic standby emergency generator with diesel engine drive and above ground fuel storage tank. All generators shall be sized to run two pumps, at a minimum.

PART 3 EXECUTION

3.01 INSTALLATION

- A. Submersible Pump Facilities: Installation shall include the removable pump units, aluminum access frame and cover, stainless steel pipe pump guide bars, pump discharge connection, and other necessary appurtenances. All piping and structures shall be installed in accordance to the manufacturer's recommendations, Section 6, Utility Excavation, Trenching, and Backfilling, as shown on the Contract Drawings, and described herein.
- B. Equipment furnished and installed shall be fabricated, assembled, erected, and placed in proper operating condition in full accordance with Drawings, Specifications, engineering data, instructions, and recommendations of the equipment manufacturer, unless exceptions are noted and approved by the Town. Before commencing the pumping station installation and/or the furnishing of replacement pumps, the pump distributor shall submit for approval, detailed and dimensioned shop drawings for pumps including factory curves of identical model pumps provided to the Town. The pump distributor shall furnish and deliver one hard copy and one electronic copy on CD/DVD at the time of acceptance for use of the pumping station and/or of the replacement pump(s) by the Town Operation and Maintenance data and motor and pump nameplate data (including serial numbers) for each pump supplied.
- C. Reference Points and Layout: The Contractor shall be responsible for setting all grade stakes, lines, and levels. The Contractor or Contractor's Surveyor will provide centerline of construction and will establish a bench mark. Any reference points, points of intersection, property corners, or bench marks, which are disturbed during construction, shall be restored by a Land Surveyor registered to practice in the State of Florida, and all costs thereof shall be borne by the Contractor. The Contractor shall assume all responsibility for the correctness of the grade and alignment stakes.
- D. The Contractor shall be responsible for all bypass pumping as required. A bypass pumping plan shall be submitted at the time or permit application to the environmental services director. Citizen consideration will be reviewed when bypass pumping equipment is required. Sound attenuating enclosures may be required at the discretion of the Environmental Services Director.
- E. The station and valve vault shall be installed level and plumb by the Contractor in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations, Section 6 Utility Excavation, Trenching, and Backfilling, as shown on the Drawings, and described herein.

- F. Wet Well and Valve Vault shall be handled and installed in such a manner and by such means as to prevent damage. All sections damaged during handling will be rejected as directed by the Engineer of Record and replaced at no additional cost to the Town. All holes in sections used for their handling and the annular space between the wall and entering pipes shall be thoroughly plugged with an approved, non-shrinking mortar or grout, applied and cured in strict conformance with the manufacturer's recommendations, so that there will be zero leakage through openings and around pipes. The mortar shall be finished smooth and flush with the adjoining interior and exterior manhole wall surfaces. Wet well base shall be installed on a firm 12-inch (minimum) leveling course of granular material (57 stone) foundation as shown on the Drawings so prepared to prevent settlement and misalignment.
- G. Wet Well Sections shall be installed plumb and with all pipe holes at the proper elevation. If not approved otherwise by the Town, the construction schedule for setting wet well base and riser sections shall be approved by a Town representative. The Town representative shall be present, on site, during this installation.
- H. Wet Well Riser Sections of the wet well shall be installed using joint sealant and shall be made in accordance with manufacturer's recommendations and to insure a watertight installation. Steps shall be in proper alignment and shall be placed so that safety entry-egress to the wet well is achieved.
- I. Wet Well Joints shall be sealed with joint sealer and wrapped with joint tape manufacturers shall be in accordance with the Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM., over the entire joint surface, with joints pre-primed. Joints shall be watertight. Upon completion of installation, excess joint sealer shall be trimmed flush with inside and outside surface of structure. All exterior joints of precast concrete wet wells shall be sealed with one 12-inch-wide exterior joint sealant membrane centered on joint. The tape shall be capable of sealing joints against groundwater infiltration. The installation of the membrane shall be in conformance with the recommendations of the manufacturer. Surface must be smooth, clean, dry, and free of voids, loose aggregate, dirt, or other matter that will hinder the adhesion of the membrane. A primer shall be used in accordance with the recommendations of the membrane manufacturer. If recommended by the manufacturer, heat shall be applied to all areas being sealed. Each joint shall be wiped inside the manhole with cement mortar after assembly.
- J. A flexible pipe connector shall be used to connect sewer pipes to the precast concrete wet well.

- K. During the wet well invert construction stage, the interior annular space between the exterior of the pipe and the interior of the connector shall be filled with a Type II lean cement grout by the Contractor.
- L. Corrosion Protection: Precast concrete wet well interior shall be lined with a cast in place HDPE liner with a minimum thickness of 2 mm, mechanically anchored to the concrete and with all joints extrusion welded by certified welders. Manufacturers shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM. The exterior of the wet well (below grade), shall be given two coats of bituminous water proofing materials which meets the coating requirements as specified for sewage manholes in Section 14, Wastewater Gravity Sewer System. All exposed metal shall be painted with two coats of exterior black enamel paint. Inside and outside of valve vault shall be painted with two coats of material by a manufacturer in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM, applied in accordance with the manufacturer's recommendations.
- M. Pumps and piping shall be installed in accordance with the written instructions provided in the shop drawings and as indicated on the Drawings. The manufacturer shall furnish such detailed instructions as may be required for proper installation. The manufacturer shall also furnish the services of a qualified service representative to inspect equipment installation, make minor adjustments and place equipment in permanent operation. The manufacturer's representative shall provide whatever items required for proper installation, operation, and instruction. Service shall be not less than 2 days and divided into not less than two trips to the site. The first trip shall be for inspection, minor adjustments, initial operational services, and initial instruction. A second trip, 30 days later after pump has been placed into operation, shall be for final adjustments and orientation of the Town's operation personnel. The Town and Engineer of Record shall be notified at least 24 hours in advance of each trip. A manufacturersupplied pump nameplate for each pump shall be placed (with adhesive) inside the front panel of the pump control panel.
- N. Pump discharge base shall be leveled, plumbed, and aligned into position to fit connecting piping. The discharge base shall be solidly secured to the wet well floor using a 1 inch thick steel hold-down plate (see details) and appropriately sized 316 stainless steel anchors then grouted after initial fitting and alignment and before final bolting of the discharge piping. This work shall be inspected by the Town before any liquid being allowed into the wet well. After final alignment and bolting, pump discharge base and all connections shall be inspected. If any movement or opening of any joints is observed, any and all piping, including pump discharge base, shall be corrected.

- O. Pump performance shall be stable and free from cavitation and noise throughout the specified operating head range at minimum suction submergence.
- P. Lifting cables shall be cut off flush to finish grade after installation.
- Q. Float switches, probes and transducers shall be installed separately and at elevations shown on Drawings and shall be equipped with individual weights in the floats or on the cables.
- R. Backflow-preventing devices shall be installed as specified in Section 11, Pipe, Fittings, Valves, and Appurtenances. Backflow device shall be tested by a certified tester within 5 days of installation, with written results provided to the Town.
- S. After installation and cleaning up of construction debris, wet well shall be provided with water sufficient to provide start up and pump down tests as necessary to verify pump operation and efficiency for as long a period of time as necessary to accomplish such tasks.
- T. Changes in structures, piping, electrical work, or other work which is necessary to accommodate equipment supplied by the Contractor shall be made at no additional cost to the Town. No equipment structure shall be constructed until certified equipment dimensions and requirements are available to the Contractor in the form of approved shop drawings.

3.02 QUALITY ASSURANCE AND CERTIFICATION

- A. Factory Pump Certificate Test: The pumps and motors shall be given an operations performance test in accordance with the standards of the Hydraulic Institute. Recordings of the tests shall substantiate the correct performance of the equipment at the design submergences to include a ten percent variance of the head, capacity, speed, and efficiency as herein specified. A complete written report certifying the foregoing test results shall be submitted to the Engineer of Record before shipment of pumps.
- B. The pump manufacturer shall also perform the following testing on each pump before shipment.
 - 1. Megger the pump motor and cable for insulation breaks or moisture intrusion.
 - 2. Before submergence, run pump dry and check for correct rotation.

- 3. Pump shall be run continuously for 30 minutes in a submerged condition, with a minimum submergence of 10 feet.
- 4. Pump shall be removed from test tank, meggered immediately for moisture, and all seals checked for water intrusion.
- 5. Pumps shall be operated at a minimum of six points to establish the hydraulic curve. KW input shall be monitored and recorded. One test point shall be performed with discharge valve closed. Pumps shall develop appropriate capacity and head within Hydraulic Institute Standards without excessive noise, vibration, or cavitations. If specifically requested by the Town a vibration test shall be performed on each pump to demonstrate compliance.
- 6. For pumps less than 100 Hp, the pump supplier shall submit copies of certified Hydraulic Institute test reports including factory pump curves of identical model pump(s) provided to the Town (in lieu of written certified test reports for each pump supplied).
- 7. For pumps 100 Hp and greater, the above certified pump performance test (at a minimum) must be completed on each actual pump supplied. A Town representative(s) may choose to be present to witness the certified test (Town's travel expenses by the Town).
- C. The manufacturer shall demonstrate the ability to fabricate the various lift station structural components, as specified, using adequate numbers of skilled workmen, tools, and facilities.
- D. Concrete Certification: All concrete units shall be poured and vibrated using steel forms, in a Prestressed Concrete Institute (PCI) certified manufacturing facility.
- E. Final Certification: After installation and final testing of equipment and instrumentation, the manufacturer furnishing supervision and/or inspection services shall make written certification to both the Engineer of Record and the Town that his equipment and the controls have been properly installed and operate in accordance with the Specifications and Drawings, and that the operating and maintenance instructions have been furnished to the Engineer of Record.

3.03 TESTING

A. Field Acceptance Testing:

- 1. <u>Pre-Final Inspection</u>: Before final inspection, the Contractor shall conduct a pre-final site inspection (including energizing each pump), in the presence of a Town representative. Any deficiencies noted at this time shall be corrected before scheduling of the final inspection.
- 2. <u>Final Inspection</u>: The Contractor shall be responsible for conducting the following field acceptance tests and start-up procedures in the presence of a Town representative. The Contractor shall notify the Town, the Engineer, and the pump manufacturer's representative 48 hours before start-up. The time and date of this final inspection shall be scheduled by the Town. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, piping, equipment, water, and materials required to perform the acceptance testing. The Contractor shall ensure the force main is full of water before the pump test.
- 3. Wet well shall be tested for exfiltration by filling up with water to a level 2 feet below the top of the flat slab and measuring the amount of drop over 1 hour. Exfiltration shall be 0 gallons per foot diameter per foot depth per day.
- 4. The Contractor shall demonstrate that the pump mounting and guide rail systems are fully operational. The Contractor shall remove and reinstall the pumps in the presence of the Town representative, before conducting the performance test.
- 5. Pump Performance: Before acceptance, as part of the final inspection, and before placing the station in operation, the Contractor shall conduct a pump performance test. Pumps shall operate according to the operating conditions indicated on the Drawings without excessive vibration or overheating. Testing shall be performed using clean water. The Contractor shall supply water at its own expense to perform the required testing. Pumping rates shall be determined by pumping a calculated volume of water in a specified time interval. Head and flow conditions shall be measured and recorded. Water levels during testing shall fall within the pump control levels shown on the Drawings. Amperage draws shall be monitored to determine effectiveness and efficiency of equipment. The test shall be repeated until satisfactory results are obtained. The test results shall be recorded on the Pump Test Report sheet included at the end of this Section. If the Contractor is unable to demonstrate to the Town that the pumping unit performs satisfactorily, the unit shall be rejected. The Contractor shall then remove and replace the defective unit at its own expense. Satisfactory performance includes, but is not limited to, the following:
 - a. Pumps: Pumps shall deliver rated GPM at rated TDH.

- b. Motors: Running amperage shall be noted and recorded on each leg of power cord while pump is operating under full load.
- c. All self-test trip relays shall demonstrate ability to simulate a fault condition. All test results shall be recorded on the pump test report and be submitted to the Engineer.
- d. Pumps shall operate within 5 % of the approved, certified, head-capacity curve.
- e. Following performance testing, pumps shall be meggered for pump-moisture intrusion.
- f. Pump spare parts shall be in accordance with the manufacture's recommendations.
- g. For dry-pit submersible pumps, the closed loop cooling system shall provide adequate cooling, in accordance with the pump manufacturer's recommendation, throughout the pumping range.
- 6. <u>SCADA Inspections</u>: A Town representative shall be present to verify that the pump sensors and controls perform control sequences satisfactorily including but not limited to correct start and stop elevations, proper highlevel alarm functions. Town SCADA equipment manufacturer shall be in accordance with Appendix A, Approved Manufacturer List of the Town CSM. SCADA inspections will include communication testing.

END OF SECTION

PUMP TEST REPORT

PROJECT:		DATE:	
LOCATION:			
GPS COORDINATES:			
LONGITUDE / LATITUDE:			
WATER METER NO:			
ELECTRIC METER NO:			
PUMP DATA			
Manufacturer:			
Model / Impeller Size:			
Motor HP:	RPM:		
Wet Well Diameter:			
Pump Design Point:	GPM @	Feet TDH	
TEST DATA			
Pump No:			
Serial No:			
Start Time:			
Stop Time:			
Elapsed Time (min.):			
Water Elevation Start (HWL) (ft.): _			
Water Elevation Stop (MWL) (ft.): _			
Net Draw down (ft.)			
(Subtract water El. Stop from water			
Total Gallons:			
Gallons / Minute:			
(Divide total gallons by minutes)			
Pressure Gauge Reading (ft.)			
Gauge Elevation to MWL (ft.)			
Height to Gauge (ft.)			
Total Head @ Pump (ft.)			
Ampmeter Reading (amps)			
Guide Rail Operation Checked			
Contractor Representative:			
Town's Inspection Representative: _			
Town's Maintenance Representative	:		
Pump Manufacturer's Representative	e:		
Engineering of Record Representative	ve:		